
1. The Board may adjourn from the public meeting at any time during the agenda to receive information from legal 

counsel regarding potential or existing litigation and to deliberate toward a decision on such matters. 

 

 

TRUCKEE MEADOWS WATER AUTHORITY 

Board of Directors 

 AGENDA  

Wednesday, February 15, 2017 at 10:00 a.m. 

Sparks Council Chambers, 745 4th Street, Sparks, NV 
 

Board Members 

Chair Geno Martini Vice Chair Vaughn Hartung  

Member Neoma Jardon Member Jeanne Herman 

Member Jenny Brekhus Member Naomi Duerr 

Member Ron Smith  

NOTES: 

1. The announcement of this meeting has been posted at the following locations: Truckee Meadows Water Authority 

(1355 Capital Blvd., Reno), Reno City Hall (1 E. First St., Reno), Sparks City Hall (431 Prater Way, Sparks), Sparks Justice 

Court (1675 E. Prater Way, Sparks), Washoe County Courthouse (75 Court St., Reno), Washoe County Central Library (301 

South Center St., Reno), Washoe County Administration (1001 East Ninth St., Reno), at http://www.tmwa.com, and State of 

Nevada Public Notice Website, https://notice.nv.gov/. 

2. In accordance with NRS 241.020, this agenda closes three working days prior to the meeting. We are pleased to make 

reasonable accommodations for persons who are disabled and wish to attend meetings. If you require special arrangements for 

the meeting, please call 834-8002 before the meeting date. 

3. The Board may elect to combine agenda items, consider agenda items out of order, remove agenda items, or delay 

discussion on agenda items. Arrive at the meeting at the posted time to hear item(s) of interest. 

4. Asterisks (*) denote non-action items. 

5. Public comment is limited to three minutes and is allowed during the public comment periods. The public may sign-up 

to speak during the public comment period or on a specific agenda item by completing a “Request to Speak” card and submitting 

it to the clerk. In addition to the public comment periods, the Chairman has the discretion to allow public comment on any agenda 

item, including any item on which action is to be taken. 

6. In the event the Chairman and Vice-Chairman are absent, the remaining Board members may elect a temporary 

presiding officer to preside over the meeting until the Chairman or Vice-Chairman are present (Standing Item of Possible 

Action). 

7. Notice of possible quorum of Western Regional Water Commission:  Because several members of the Truckee 

Meadows Water Authority Board of Directors are also Trustees of the Western Regional Water Commission, it is possible that a 

quorum of the Western Regional Water Commission may be present, however, such members will not deliberate or take action at 

this meeting in their capacity as Trustees of the Western Regional Water Commission. 

 

1. Roll call* 

2. Pledge of allegiance* 

3. Public comment  limited to no more than three minutes per speaker* 

4. Approval of the agenda (For Possible Action) 

5. Approval of the minutes of the January 18, 2017 meeting of the TMWA Board of Directors 

(For Possible Action) 

http://www.tmwa.com/
https://notice.nv.gov/


Truckee Meadows Water Authority Board of Directors Agenda for February 15, 2017 

Page 2 

1. The Board may adjourn from the public meeting at any time during the agenda to receive information from legal 

counsel regarding potential or existing litigation and to deliberate toward a decision on such matters. 

6. Water Supply Update — Bill Hauck* 

7. Discussion and possible action and direction to staff regarding 2017 legislative activities, 

current bills, and TMWA recommended positions on legislative proposals  John 

Zimmerman and Steve Walker, Walker & Associates (For Possible Action) 

8. Discussion and action on appointment or reappointment of four persons to the Board of 

Trustees of the Western Regional Water Commission consisting of one TMWA Board 

member each from: the Reno City Council, Sparks City Council, Washoe County Board of 

Commissioners, and one person to represent TMWA as successor to South Truckee 

Meadows General Improvement District, from the following list of eligible persons: Jenny 

Brekhus, Jeanne Herman, Neoma Jardon, Bob Lucey, Ron Smith, for two-year terms ending 

March 31, 2019 — Mark Foree (For Possible Action) 

9. Presentation of Financial Performance for First Half Fiscal Year 2017 — Michele Sullivan, 

Tabitha Carlisle* 

10. Discussion and action on adoption of Resolution No. 248: A resolution designated by the 

short title “2017 refunding bond resolution” authorizing the issuance by the authority of its 

“Truckee Meadows Water Authority, Water Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2017,” for the 

purpose of defraying wholly or in part the cost of refunding certain outstanding bonds; 

providing the form, terms, and conditions of the bonds and the security therefor; providing 

for the collection and disposition of revenues derived from the operation of the authority’s 

water system; pledging such revenues to the payment of the bonds; providing other 

covenants, agreements, details and other matters relating thereto —  Michele Sullivan (For 

Possible Action) 

11. Discussion and action regarding appointment of, and possible approval of contract with, 

Tami Fruhwirth as TMWA’s Ombudsman — Andy Gebhardt (For Possible Action) 

12. General Manager’s Report*  

13. Public comment  limited to no more than three minutes per speaker* 

14. Board comments and requests for future agenda items* 

15. Adjournment (For Possible Action) 

 



 

 

January 18, 2017 TMWA Board Minutes Page 1 of 6 

DRAFT – NOT APPROVED BY BOARD 

TRUCKEE MEADOWS WATER AUTHORITY  

DRAFT MINUTES OF THE JANUARY 18, 2017  

MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

The Board of Directors met on Wednesday, January 18, 2017, at Washoe County Commission Chambers, 

1001 E. Ninth Street, Reno, Nevada. Vice Chair Hartung called the meeting to order at 10:00 a.m. 

 

1.  ROLL CALL 

Members Present: Jenny Brekhus, Alternate Member Kristopher Dahir, Naomi Duerr, Vaughn Hartung, 

Jeanne Herman, Neoma Jardon, and Ron Smith. 

Member Absent: Geno Martini 

A quorum was present. 

 

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Alternate Member Dahir. 

 

3. PUBLIC COMMENT 

There was no public comment. 

 

4. APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA 

Upon motion by Member Smith, second by Member Jardon, which 

motion duly carried by unanimous consent of the members present, the 

Board approved the agenda. 

 

5. APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES OF THE DECEMBER 21, 2016 MINUTES 

Upon motion by Member Brekhus, second by Member Smith, which 

motion duly carried by unanimous consent of the members present, the 

Board approved the December 21, 2016 minutes. 

 

6. WATER SUPPLY UPDATE 

Member Hartung praised Mr. Hauck and thanked him for all his work and efforts during the flood on 

behalf of TMWA and the community.  

02-15-17 BOARD Agenda Item 5 



 

 

January 18, 2017 TMWA Board Minutes Page 2 of 6 

DRAFT – NOT APPROVED BY BOARD 

Bill Hauck, TMWA Senior Hydrologist, reported the recent storms are one of the best starts to the water 

year in recent history. Mr. Hauck stated the snowpack levels are measured at almost 200% of the average, 

Lake Tahoe is almost 2 feet above the natural rim and is projected to peak at about 4 feet above the rim, 

all other reservoirs on the Truckee River system are expected to fill and spill, and normal river flows are 

projected through 2018. 

 

7. PRESENTATION ON THE STATE OF NEVADA'S INTEGRATED SOURCE 

WATER PROTECTION PROGRAM, DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION, 

APPROVAL OF STAFF RECOMMENDATION TO SUBMIT LETTER 

REQUESTING TO PARTICIPATE IN THE STATE OF NEVADA'S INTEGRATED 

SOURCE WATER PROTECTION PROGRAM WITH CONCURRENT UPDATE AND 

DEVELOPMENT OF A TRUCKEE RIVER WATERSHED MANAGEMENT PLAN 

John Enloe, TMWA Director of Natural Resources, introduced Kim Borgzinner and Birgit Henson from 

the Nevada Division of Environmental Protection (NDEP).  

Ms. Borgzinner presented on the Integrated Source Water Protection Program (ISWPP) and how 

successful the program, which is completely voluntary, has been in other communities since its inception 

in 2012. The success can be attributed to stakeholder input and community collaboration in other counties 

creating specific programs to meet the needs at the local level.  

Ms. Henson presented on how the Non-Point Source (NPS) program funds projects to mitigate or reduce 

NPS pollution. She noted the plan is to create a group of watershed stakeholders, and with TMWA being 

one stakeholder, they can then utilize state funds to create and implement a watershed management plan.  

Member Duerr asked if funding has been procured. Ms. Henson replied not yet, today they are asking for 

approval to have TMWA participate in the program to develop the plan in order to obtain future funding. 

Alternate Member Dahir inquired if there is any accountability. Ms. Henson replied that it is a voluntary 

program with no regulatory oversight and the state provides funding. 

Upon motion by Member Smith, second by Alternate Member Dahir, 

which motion duly carried by unanimous consent of the members present, 

the Board approved the staff recommendation to submit a letter 

requesting to participate in the State of Nevada's Integrated Source Water 

Protection Program with concurrent update and development of a 

Truckee River Watershed Management Plan. 

 

8. PRESENTATION ON PROPOSED BILLS FOR THE 2017 LEGISLATIVE SESSION 

AND DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION ON TMWA LEGISLATIVE 

POSITION RECOMMENDATIONS 

John Zimmerman, TMWA Water Resources Manager, informed the Board that the TMWA Legislative 

Subcommittee met on January 13 to review the staff recommendations on positions on proposed bills. The 

02-15-17 BOARD Agenda Item 5 



 

 

January 18, 2017 TMWA Board Minutes Page 3 of 6 

DRAFT – NOT APPROVED BY BOARD 

legislative subcommittee approved all but one recommended position. The exception was AB 72, which 

proposes changes to how plumbing code changes are administered by governments; staff’s 

recommendation is “Watch, Oppose”, but the legislative subcommittee approved “Watch” only. Staff is 

continuing to track bill draft requests (BDRs) as they become bills and will continue to update both the 

TMWA legislative subcommittee and Board.  

Mr. Zimmerman requested the Board appoint a board member who would be the point person and speak 

on behalf of TMWA, alongside Mr. Pagni and Mr. Walker, at the Legislature.  

Vice Chair Hartung asked Michael Pagni, TMWA General Counsel, if the Board can choose a member 

today. Mr. Pagni replied, the agenda as it is written does not allow for such an action, but the legislative 

subcommittee can decide at their next meeting. 

Member Brekhus expressed her position in support of AB 72. 

Steve Walker, TMWA lobbyist, provided an overview of water-related bills introduced thus far and the 

position the TMWA Legislative Subcommittee decided to recommend; discussion followed. 

Vice Chair Hartung excused himself to attend the ribbon cutting ceremony for the new Washoe County 

Medical Examiner’s building. He asked Member Jardon to continue as acting chair. With no further 

questions or discussion Member Jardon continued the meeting as acting chair. 

*Vice Chair Hartung departed at 10:52 a.m. 

Alternate Member Dahir inquired about TMWA’s opposition to AB 48. Mr. Pagni replied the bill would 

prohibit a municipal utility from charging different rates to customers who live within the city from those 

who live outside of the city. TMWA’s position to oppose is because the bill does not explain what a 

municipal utility is and TMWA’s connection fees are based on the pipes needed to serve the area and not 

based on political lines.  

Member Brekhus asked if it was connection fees or monthly user charges. Mr. Pagni replied it is different 

rate or fee, the language is broad. 

Member Brekhus commented that this bill goes against good land-use planning measures and does not 

agree with the State preempting local government agencies since it does not provide funding. Mr. Walker 

added the bill is sponsored by Clark County and the majority of the statute being amended is specific to 

using the population delimiter of (greater than) 700,000. 

Mr. Pagni continued with AB 8 (Support) which would expand the law, which allows a governing body 

of a city to collect delinquent sewer charges, to expand to any utility service charges. The Joint Powers 

Agreement (JPA) provides TMWA some conferred powers. If it passes, it may allow TMWA another 

avenue to collect delinquent charges; AB 71 (Watch; Neutral) establishes a hybrid retirement program; 

staff is still analyzing the impacts on our collective bargaining agreement. 

Member Brekhus inquired if the Governor’s budget included water related line items. Mr. Walker replied 

there has been a request to include sponsorship of cloud seeding program, but nothing as of today. 

Upon motion by Member Duerr, second by Member Herman, which 

motion duly carried by unanimous consent of the members present, the 

02-15-17 BOARD Agenda Item 5 



 

 

January 18, 2017 TMWA Board Minutes Page 4 of 6 

DRAFT – NOT APPROVED BY BOARD 

Board approved to accept the TMWA legislative subcommittee’s position 

recommendations. 

 

9. DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION, APPROVAL OF STAFF 

RECOMMENDATION FOR AN INTERIM OMBUDSMAN AND DIRECTION TO 

STAFF TO SEND OUT A REQUEST FOR QUOTE (RFQ) TO RECRUIT A NEW 

OMBUDSMAN 

Andy Gebhardt, TMWA Director of Operations & Water Quality, reported that TMWA’s Ombudsman, 

Joanne Stralla, passed away at the end of November and staff is requesting Board approval to contract 

with Tammy Fruhwirth as an interim ombudsman and for staff to send out a request for qualifications 

(RFQ) for filling the vacancy. Ms. Fruhwirth has a very strong customer service background. 

Member Smith inquired if Ms. Fruhwirth is interested in becoming TMWA’s permanent Ombudsman. 

Mr. Gebhardt replied yes, Ms. Fruhwirth is agreeable to becoming TMWA’s permanent ombudsman.  

Member Brekhus noted that the amount TMWA has paid the ombudsman in the past is not a large amount, 

but it still may be prudent to go through the RFQ process to show that there is a vetting process, however 

she deferred to the Board. 

Mr. Gebhardt mentioned staff has enjoyed working with Ms. Fruhwirth during this interim period and it 

would be difficult to find someone locally with her experience and strong utility customer service 

background. 

Upon motion by Member Smith, second by Member Herman, which 

motion duly carried by unanimous consent of the members present, the 

Board approved staff to hire Tammy Fruhwirth as the permanent 

ombudsman. 

 

10. PRESENTATION OF PUBLIC OPEN HOUSE SCHEDULE FOR PROPOSED RATE 

ADJUSTMENT AND DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE DIRECTION TO STAFF ON 

OPEN HOUSE AND PUBLIC NOTIFICATIONS OF PROPOSED RATE 

ADJUSTMENT 

Mr. Gebhardt presented the schedule for the four public open houses for the proposed rate adjustment; the 

information was sent out in January bill inserts, and will be publicly noticed. 

Upon motion by Member Duerr, second by Member Hartung, which 

motion duly carried by unanimous consent of the members present, the 

Board approved the public open house schedule and public notifications 

for proposed rate adjustment. 

 

02-15-17 BOARD Agenda Item 5 



 

 

January 18, 2017 TMWA Board Minutes Page 5 of 6 

DRAFT – NOT APPROVED BY BOARD 

11. PRESENTATION OF TRUCKEE RIVER FUND ACTIVITIES FOR CALENDAR 

YEAR 2016 

Mr. Enloe reported since the inception of the Truckee River Fund (TRF) in 2005, the TMWA Board of 

Directors has approved funding for 138 projects, approximately $11.4 million. Mr. Enloe further stated 

the total funding match is almost double at $20.3 million, which is extremely impressive and speaks to 

the support the community has shown over the years with regards to how the money is leveraged and 

alternate funding sources are gained to ensure the TRF’s mission to safeguard the Truckee River 

watershed, protect water quality and educate the community are fulfilled. 

Mr. Enloe highlighted a few projects such as the City of Reno approving the Highland Canal Stormwater 

Improvement project, which will reduce non-point source pollution to the canal and construction will begin 

within the next few months. He noted Chalk Bluff continued to treat water during the flood event but they 

had to take water from the river rather than the canal because of the storm drainage entering the canal; the 

Nature Conservancy’s project, Optimizing Restoration Investments in the Truckee Watershed, which has 

been successful by focusing on restoring old logging roads which were the highest source contributing 

sediment to the river; Keep Truckee Meadows Beautiful, Truckee River Clean-Up, which has grown in 

support; and the Sierra Nevada Journey’s Watershed Education Initiative, an education effort for students 

in the Washoe County School District. 

 

12. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT 

Mr. Foree reported TMWA’s settlement with the Public Utilities Commission (PUC) has been resolved 

and TMWA received a $1,000 fine due to instances where an NV Energy natural gas service line was 

damaged. He reported staff has completed two trainings and pertinent staff will continue to be trained to 

prevent further damages; one such practice is to increase the distance from excavation near the on-the-

ground markings. 

Mr. Foree commended TMWA staff in their efforts to prevent flooding to TMWA’s infrastructure, and 

protecting the hydro facilities and buildings. He noted that the only significant damage TMWA sustained 

(still relatively minor in cost) was to a pump station vault on West Huffaker Lane due to the overflow of 

the Lake ditch; no customers went without water, but 12 customers had low water pressure for a few days. 

Also, with the heavy rains/snow, the Donner Lake outlet was clogged with wooden debris and there was 

potential for flooding properties around the lake. TMWA contacted the Truckee-Donner Public Utility 

District (PUD) who referred staff to a contractor that could clear the debris, avoiding any flooding from 

occurring. He commended staff and the contractor for working late into the early morning in a very 

difficult situation with high winds, deep snow and trees falling in the area.  

Lastly, TMWA was contacted by NvWarn (a Nevada water/wastewater mutual aid network) and the 

Washoe County District Health Department (WCDHD) to assist the Sutcliffe community (225 customers) 

in repairing their water system and reestablishing water service. The community, part of the Pyramid Lake 

Paiute Tribe (PLPT), had been without water for about six days because a water main washed out, which 

completely drained their entire system. TMWA crews and staff did an excellent job working with the 

02-15-17 BOARD Agenda Item 5 



 

 

January 18, 2017 TMWA Board Minutes Page 6 of 6 

DRAFT – NOT APPROVED BY BOARD 

WCDHD, PLPT’s representatives and other agencies and reestablished water service within about 24 

hours; water samples have been taken and preliminary results are good.  TMWA’s efforts included 

repairing water main breaks/leaks, building a road so that Lyon County Utility’s potable water trucks 

(filled from TMWA’s system in Spanish Springs) could get to the water storage tank site, providing a 

pump and generator to pump water from the tankers into the water storage tank, flushing mains and taking 

bacteriological samples. 

Member Brekhus asked if Washoe County (the County) declared an emergency and TMWA will be 

reimbursed. Mr. Foree replied the PLPT will go through the County and State of Nevada for 

reimbursement for TMWA’s costs, which are approximately $30,000. Jack Byrom, TMWA EOC, added 

both the County and State declared emergencies and PLPT would need to apply for funding to either entity 

to reimburse TMWA. 

Member Brekhus inquired what it cost to assist the River Belle mobile home park in Verdi in 2016. Mr. 

Foree replied it was a very minor cost, a few thousand dollars. 

 

13. PUBLIC COMMENT 

There was no public comment. 

 

14. BOARD COMMENTS AND REQUESTS FOR FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 

Member Smith commended the community and how everyone stepped up and supported each other during 

the flooding of the previous week; particularly CB Concrete Company who showed up at Cottonwood 

Park with a cement truck full of sand and helped fill sandbags in record time.  

 

15. ADJOURNMENT 

With no further discussion, Acting Chair Jardon adjourned the meeting at 11:21 a.m. 

 

Approved by the TMWA Board of Directors in session on _____________________. 

Sonia Folsom, Recording Secretary 

 

*Vice Chair Hartung was present for agenda items 1 through 8 

02-15-17 BOARD Agenda Item 5 



1

Water Supply Outlook
Bill Hauck, Senior Hydrologist

TMWA Board of Directors Meeting

February 15, 2017

02-15-17 BOARD Agenda Item 6 



2

02-15-17 BOARD Agenda Item 6 

http://droughtmonitor.unl.edu/data/pngs/current/current_west_trd.png
http://droughtmonitor.unl.edu/data/pngs/current/current_west_trd.png


Percent of Average Precipitation  (1/15/2017-2/13/2017)

3

02-15-17 BOARD Agenda Item 6 

http://www.wrcc.dri.edu/cgi-bin/anomimage.pl?wrc30dPpct.gif
http://www.wrcc.dri.edu/cgi-bin/anomimage.pl?wrc30dPpct.gif


Current Precipitation and Snowpack Status

4

02-15-17 BOARD Agenda Item 6 

http://www.wcc.nrcs.usda.gov/gis/images/west_wytdprecpctnormal_update.png
http://www.wcc.nrcs.usda.gov/gis/images/west_wytdprecpctnormal_update.png
http://www.wcc.nrcs.usda.gov/gis/images/west_swepctnormal_update.png
http://www.wcc.nrcs.usda.gov/gis/images/west_swepctnormal_update.png


Lake Tahoe Basin Time Series SNOTEL Snowpack Summary

5

02-15-17 BOARD Agenda Item 6 



Lake Tahoe Basin Percent of Normal Peak Snowpack (%)

6

02-15-17 BOARD Agenda Item 6 



7

02-15-17 BOARD Agenda Item 6 



Lake Tahoe Elevation Hydrograph (actual and projected)

8

Maximum elevation-6229.1 feet

Natural rim-6223.0 feet

0.00

1.00

2.00

3.00

4.00

5.00

6.00

7.00

8.00

9.00

10.00

1
/1

/2
0

1
0

5
/1

/2
0

1
0

9
/1

/2
0

1
0

1
/1

/2
0

1
1

5
/1

/2
0

1
1

9
/1

/2
0

1
1

1
/1

/2
0

1
2

5
/1

/2
0

1
2

9
/1

/2
0

1
2

1
/1

/2
0

1
3

5
/1

/2
0

1
3

9
/1

/2
0

1
3

1
/1

/2
0

1
4

5
/1

/2
0

1
4

9
/1

/2
0

1
4

1
/1

/2
0

1
5

5
/1

/2
0

1
5

9
/1

/2
0

1
5

1
/1

/2
0

1
6

5
/1

/2
0

1
6

9
/1

/2
0

1
6

1
/1

/2
0

1
7

5
/1

/2
0

1
7

9
/1

/2
0

1
7

D
ai

ly
 G

ag
e 

H
ei

gh
t 

(f
ee

t)

02-15-17 BOARD Agenda Item 6 



Lake Tahoe Elevation 1900-Present

9

6220

6221

6222

6223

6224

6225

6226

6227

6228

6229

6230

6231

6232

1
9

0
0

1
9

0
5

1
9

1
0

1
9

1
5

1
9

2
0

1
9

2
5

1
9

3
0

1
9

3
5

1
9

4
0

1
9

4
5

1
9

5
0

1
9

5
5

1
9

6
0

1
9

6
5

1
9

7
0

1
9

7
5

1
9

8
0

1
9

8
5

1
9

9
0

1
9

9
5

2
0

0
0

2
0

0
5

2
0

1
0

2
0

1
5

El
ev

at
io

n
 (

fe
et

)

Maximum elevation-6229.1 feet

Natural rim-6223.0 feet

02-15-17 BOARD Agenda Item 6 



The Truckee & Carson River Systems

10

Lake

Tahoe

Donner Lake

Prosser

Independence Lake

Boca

Stampede

Pyramid

Lake

Lahontan

Reservoir

Derby Dam

FALLON

RENO/SPARKS

NORTH

Truckee

River

CALIFORNIA NEVADA

Carson River

02-15-17 BOARD Agenda Item 6 



Lake Tahoe Elevation Comparison (4 Drought Years)

11

6219.0

6220.0

6221.0

6222.0

6223.0

6224.0

6225.0

6226.0

6227.0

6228.0

6229.0

6230.0

St
o

ra
ge

 E
le

va
ti

o
n

 (
Fe

et
-L

ak
e 

Ta
h

o
e 

D
at

u
m

) 
   

  

Water Year

1986-1995 2000-2006 2006 to 2011 2011 to Present

1986

1999

2006
2011

1987

2000

2007

2012

1988

2001

2008

2013

1989

2002

2009

2014

1990

2003

2010

2015

1991

2004

2011

2016

1992

2005

2017

1993

2006

1994 1995

Maximum elevation-6229.1 feet

Natural rim-6223.0 feet

02-15-17 BOARD Agenda Item 6 



Truckee River Flow at CA/NV State Line (actual and projected)

12

0

1,000

2,000

3,000

4,000

5,000

6,000

7,000

1
/1

/2
0

1
4

3
/1

/2
0

1
4

5
/1

/2
0

1
4

7
/1

/2
0

1
4

9
/1

/2
0

1
4

1
1

/1
/2

0
14

1
/1

/2
0

1
5

3
/1

/2
0

1
5

5
/1

/2
0

1
5

7
/1

/2
0

1
5

9
/1

/2
0

1
5

1
1

/1
/2

0
15

1
/1

/2
0

1
6

3
/1

/2
0

1
6

5
/1

/2
0

1
6

7
/1

/2
0

1
6

9
/1

/2
0

1
6

1
1

/1
/2

0
16

1
/1

/2
0

1
7

3
/1

/2
0

1
7

5
/1

/2
0

1
7

7
/1

/2
0

1
7

9
/1

/2
0

1
7

1
1

/1
/2

0
17

D
is

ch
ar

ge
 in

 C
u

b
ic

 F
ee

t 
Pe

r 
Se

co
n

d
 (

C
FS

)

Actual Daily Flow 2014-2016 Projected Daily Flow 2017

02-15-17 BOARD Agenda Item 6 



2017 Water Supply Summary 

13

• Blockbuster Water Year  

• Precipitation and Snowpack > 200+% average

• Lake Tahoe currently 3.2 feet above natural rim (more than 50% full)

• Streamflow runoff projections also 200+% average

• Lake Tahoe expected to fill in 2017 (in addition to all other Truckee River reservoirs)

• Precautionary drawdown commenced at both Lake Tahoe, Stampede and Lahontan reservoirs

• Based on current runoff forecast, normal Truckee River flows anticipated for several years 

• Nipping at the heals of one of the best water years on record (1983)

• Drought is over

02-15-17 BOARD Agenda Item 6 



14

Bill Hauck, Senior Hydrologist  
Email: bhauck@tmwa.com

O: (775) 834-8111 M: (775) 250-1333

Thank you!
Questions?

02-15-17 BOARD Agenda Item 6 



02-15-17 BOARD Agenda Item 7 

  Page 1 of 1 

 
 

STAFF REPORT 

 

 

TO: Chairman and Board Members 

FROM: John Zimmerman, Manager of Water Resources 

DATE: February 6, 2017 

SUBJECT: Discussion and possible action and direction to staff regarding 2017 

legislative activities, current bills, and TMWA recommended positions on 

legislative proposals 

 

 

This is a standing item on the Board’s monthly agenda regarding the 2017 legislative 

session.  Attached is a table of the proposed bills the Board reviewed and made a decision on at 

the January Board meeting.  Since that meeting, more bills have been introduced.  Staff is 

currently reviewing the additional legislation and the TMWA legislative subcommittee will meet 

on February 10th to review staff’s recommendations on those bills.  Staff, TMWA lobbyist Steve 

Walker, and General Counsel Michael Pagni will update the Board regarding the new legislation 

and the subcommittee’s recommendations and discuss any relevant new information regarding 

the session or existing bills the Board has already reviewed. 

 

Staff requests the Board provide direction regarding TMWA’s position on, and possible 

action regarding, the additional bills. 

 

Key 2017 Legislative Deadlines: 

 

February 6-----Opening Day 

March 20-------Legislators’ Bill Introductions  

March 27-------Committees’ Bill Introductions 

April 14--------Committee Passage (1st House) 

April 25--------First House Passage 

May 19---------Committee Passage (2nd House) 

May 26---------Second House Passage 

June 5-----------Sine Die 

 

 

 



2017 Legislative Session 01-18-17 BOARD Agenda Item 8

02-15-17 BOARD Agenda Item 7

Content Description Sponsors Tags Board/Committee Position Status/Location Most Recent History Actions

AB3
Makes various changes relating to the administration of workers' 

compensation claims. (BDR 53-161)
Committee on Commerce and Labor Human Resources 1/4 WATCH, NEUTRAL First Reading 11/21/2016 -- From printer.

AB5
Provides for the creation of certain local improvement districts. 

(BDR 22-233)
Committee on Government Affairs Energy; Governance 1/3 WATCH, NEUTRAL First Reading 11/21/2016 -- From printer.

AB8
Revises provisions governing the collection of delinquent 

municipal utility charges. (BDR 21-323)
Committee on Government Affairs

Financial, Risk Management; 

Governance
11/21 WATCH, SUPPORT First Reading 11/21/2016 -- From printer.

AB11
Revises provisions governing the operation of unmanned aerial 

vehicles. (BDR 44-137)
Committee on Transportation

Emergency Mgmt, Safety, 

Motor Vehicles; Governance
11/21 WATCH, NEUTRAL First Reading 11/21/2016 -- From printer.

AB26

Revises provisions governing the dissemination of certain 

records of criminal history to certain persons by the Central 

Repository for Nevada Records of Criminal History. (BDR 14-

138)

Committee on Corrections, Probation, and Parole Human Resources 1/4 WATCH, NEUTRAL First Reading 11/21/2016 -- From printer.

AB30
Establishes a committee to review the current tax structure in this 

State. (BDR S-432)
Committee on Taxation Financial, Risk Management 1/10 WATCH, NEUTRAL First Reading 11/21/2016 -- From printer.

AB32 Revises provisions governing pest control. (BDR 49-176) Committee on Natural Resources, Agriculture, and Mining Governance 1/9 WATCH, NEUTRAL First Reading 11/21/2016 -- From printer.

AB34 Revises provisions relating to state lands. (BDR 26-179) Committee on Natural Resources, Agriculture, and Mining Property 12/20 WATCH, NEUTRAL First Reading 11/21/2016 -- From printer.

AB36 Revises the Charter of the City of Reno. (BDR S-448) Committee on Legislative Operations and Elections
Governance; Open Meeting, Records, 

Boards and Elections
1/6 WATCH, NEUTRAL First Reading 11/21/2016 -- From printer.

AB39

Revises provisions governing the appointment of representatives 

to a governing board for regional planning in certain counties. 

(BDR 22-433)

Committee on Government Affairs
Governance; Open Meeting, Records, 

Boards and Elections
11/21 WATCH, NEUTRAL First Reading 11/21/2016 -- From printer.

AB42
Revises various provisions relating to public records. (BDR 19-

389)
Committee on Government Affairs Open Meeting, Records, Boards and Elections 11/21 WATCH, NEUTRAL First Reading 11/21/2016 -- From printer.

AB48
Makes various changes relating to local government. (BDR 21-

435)
Committee on Government Affairs Financial, Risk Management

11/21 OPPOSE, NEUTRAL 

WITH AMENDMENT
First Reading 11/21/2016 -- From printer.

AB50

Revises provisions relating to the imposition of certain fees, civil 

penalties and administrative fines by the State Environmental 

Commission. (BDR 40-181)

Committee on Natural Resources, Agriculture, and Mining
Financial, Risk Management; 

Governance
12/29 WATCH First Reading 11/21/2016 -- From printer.

AB54
Revises provisions relating to reports of certain accidents or 

motor vehicle crashes by employers. (BDR 53-160)
Committee on Commerce and Labor Emergency Mgmt, Safety, Motor Vehicles 1/6 WATCH, NEUTRAL First Reading 11/21/2016 -- From printer.

1



2017 Legislative Session 01-18-17 BOARD Agenda Item 8

02-15-17 BOARD Agenda Item 7

Content Description Sponsors Tags Board/Committee Position Status/Location Most Recent History Actions

AB71
Revises provisions governing public employees' retirement. 

(BDR 23-429)
Committee on Government Affairs PERS, PEBS 14 WATCH, NEUTRAL First Reading 11/21/2016 -- From printer.

AB72
Revises provisions relating to the Uniform Plumbing Code. 

(BDR 40-237)
Committee on Health and Human Services Public Works

1/13 WATCH; 

Staff Recommendation: 

WATCH, OPPOSE

First Reading 11/21/2016 -- From printer.

AB79
Revises provisions relating to economic development. (BDR S-

404)
Committee on Government Affairs

Financial, Risk Management; Water Rights 

(Resources, Conservation)
1/6 WATCH, NEUTRAL First Reading 11/21/2016 -- From printer.

AB83 Makes various changes relating to insurance. (BDR 57-159) Committee on Commerce and Labor Financial, Risk Management 1/6 WATCH, NEUTRAL First Reading 11/21/2016 -- From printer.

SB10
Revises provisions governing the publication of information 

concerning unclaimed and abandoned property. (BDR 10-407)
Committee on Judiciary Property 11/21 WATCH, NEUTRAL First Reading 11/23/2016 -- From printer.

SB21 Abolishes the Nye County Water District. (BDR S-478) Committee on Government Affairs Water Rights (Resources, Conservation) 11/21 WATCH First Reading 11/23/2016 -- From printer.

SB23

Clarifies requirements relating to a petition for judicial review of 

a final administrative decision in a contested case. (BDR 18-

374)

Committee on Government Affairs Governance 11/21 WATCH First Reading 11/23/2016 -- From printer.

SB24
Authorizes cities to enact ordinances requiring the registration of 

vacant properties. (BDR 21-421)
Committee on Government Affairs Governance; Property 11/21 WATCH First Reading 11/23/2016 -- From printer.

SB26

Makes certain changes concerning governmental entities that 

contract with or invest in companies that boycott Israel. (BDR 27-

418)

Committee on Government Affairs Governance 11/21 WATCH, NEUTRAL First Reading 11/23/2016 -- From printer.

SB27

Revises the definition of the term “mental illness” for purposes 

of provisions relating to criminal procedure, mental health and 

intellectual disabilities. (BDR 39-133)

Committee on Health and Human Services Human Resources 11/21 NEUTRAL First Reading 11/23/2016 -- From printer.

SB36
Revises provisions relating to ethics in government. (BDR 23-

230)
Committee on Legislative Operations and Elections Governance 11/21 WATCH, NEUTRAL First Reading 11/23/2016 -- From printer.

SB47
Makes various changes relating to the appropriation of water. 

(BDR 48-499)
Committee on Natural Resources Water Rights (Resources, Conservation) 1/6 WATCH, SUPPORT First Reading 11/23/2016 -- From printer.

SB48
Revises provisions relating to relations between local 

governments and their employees. (BDR 23-428)
Committee on Government Affairs Human Resources 1/4 WATCH, NEUTRAL First Reading 11/23/2016 -- From printer.

SB51
Makes various changes relating to the adjudication of vested 

water rights. (BDR 48-180)
Committee on Natural Resources Water Rights (Resources, Conservation) 12/29 WATCH, NEUTRAL First Reading 11/23/2016 -- From printer.

SB52
Revises provisions relating to unemployment compensation. 

(BDR 53-226)
Committee on Commerce, Labor and Energy Human Resources 1/4 WATCH, NEUTRAL First Reading 11/23/2016 -- From printer.

SB53
Revises provisions relating to the installation, operation and 

maintenance of telecommunications facilities. (BDR 18-234)
Committee on Transportation Information Tech 1/6 WATCH First Reading 11/23/2016 -- From printer.

2



2017 Legislative Session 01-18-17 BOARD Agenda Item 8

02-15-17 BOARD Agenda Item 7

Content Description Sponsors Tags Board/Committee Position Status/Location Most Recent History Actions

SB63
Revises provisions which govern responsibility for the costs of 

maintenance and repair of certain county roads. (BDR 20-324)
Committee on Revenue and Economic Development Governance; Property 1/6 WATCH, NEUTRAL First Reading 11/23/2016 -- From printer.

SB67
Revises provisions relating to fire safety requirements for multi-

story buildings occupied by people. (BDR 42-412)
Committee on Government Affairs Emergency Mgmt, Safety, Motor Vehicles 1/6 WATCH, NEUTRAL First Reading 11/23/2016 -- From printer.

SB69

Revises provisions governing state agencies, boards and 

commissions that regulate occupations and professions. (BDR 54-

229)

Committee on Commerce, Labor and Energy
Governance; Human Resources; 

Open Meeting, Records, Boards and Elections
1/5 WATCH, NEUTRAL First Reading 11/23/2016 -- From printer.

SB73 Revises provisions relating to water. (BDR 48-177) Committee on Natural Resources
Property; Water Rights (Resources, 

Conservation)
1/6 WATCH, NEUTRAL First Reading 11/23/2016 -- From printer.

SB74 Revises provisions relating to water. (BDR 48-178) Committee on Natural Resources Water Rights (Resources, Conservation) 12/29 WATCH First Reading 11/23/2016 -- From printer.

SB78
Revises provisions relating to local government financial 

administration. (BDR 31-403)
Committee on Government Affairs Financial, Risk Management 1/9 WATCH, NEUTRAL First Reading 11/23/2016 -- From printer.

SB80

Makes various changes relating to the Public Employees' 

Benefits Program and the Deferred Compensation Program. 

(BDR 18-243)

Committee on Government Affairs PERS, PEBS 1/5 WATCH, NEUTRAL First Reading 11/23/2016 -- From printer.

SB82
Revises provisions relating to employment and trade secrets. 

(BDR 53-419)
Committee on Commerce, Labor and Energy Human Resources 1/5 WATCH, NEUTRAL First Reading 11/23/2016 -- From printer.

SB84
Makes various changes relating to ethics in government. 

(BDR 23-250)
Committee on Legislative Operations and Elections Governance 1/6 WATCH First Reading 11/23/2016 -- From printer.

3



02-15-17 BOARD Agenda Item 8 

  Page 1 of 2 

 
 

STAFF REPORT 

 

TO: Board of Directors 

FROM: Mark Foree, General Manager 

DATE: February 6, 2017 

SUBJECT: Discussion and action on appointment or reappointment of four persons to the 

Board of Trustees of the Western Regional Water Commission consisting of 

one TMWA Board member each from: the Reno City Council, Sparks City 

Council, Washoe County Board of Commissioners, and one person to 

represent TMWA as successor to South Truckee Meadows General 

Improvement District, from the following list of eligible persons: Jenny 

Brekhus, Jeanne Herman, Neoma Jardon, Bob Lucey, Ron Smith, for two-

year terms ending March 31, 2019 
 

 

RECOMMENDATION 

 

It is recommended that the TMWA Board appoint four members to the Western Regional Water 

Commission to serve a two-year term, commencing April 1, 2017 to include: 

1. One TMWA Board member who is a member of the Reno City Council 

2. One TMWA Board member who is a member of the Sparks City Council 

3. One TMWA Board member who is a member of the Washoe County Board of County 

Commissioners 

4. One member designated by the TMWA Board as South Truckee Meadows General 

Improvement District (STMGID) successor 

 

DISCUSSION 

 
During the 2007 legislative session, SB487 was enacted to create the Western Regional Water 

Commission (effective date April 1, 2008), a governing board to oversee water resources planning and 

management in Washoe County. The Western Regional Water Commission Act, Chapter 531, Statutes 

of Nevada, Section 25, provides for appointments to the Board of Trustees as follows:  

 

Sec. 25. 1. The Regional Water Commission must be directed and governed by a Board of Trustees 

composed of the following nine members appointed pursuant to this section:  

(a) Two members of the City Council of the City of Reno;  

(b) Two members of the City Council of the City of Sparks;  

(c) Two members of the Board of County Commissioners of Washoe County;  

(d) One member representing the Truckee Meadows Water Reclamation Facility or its successor;  

(e) One member designated by the Board of Trustees of the South Truckee Meadows General 

Improvement District or its successor; and  



02-15-17 BOARD Agenda Item 8 

  Page 2 of 2 

(f) One member of the Board of Trustees of the Sun Valley General Improvement District or its 

successor.  

2. The City Council of the City of Reno, the City Council of the City of Sparks and the Board of 

County Commissioners of Washoe County shall each appoint one trustee from their membership for 

an initial term of 2 years.  

3. The Board of Directors of the Truckee Meadows Water Authority or its successor shall appoint 

from its membership, for initial terms of 3 years:  

(a) One trustee who is a member of the City Council of the City of Reno;  

(b) One trustee who is a member of the City Council of the City of Sparks; and  

(c) One trustee who is a member of the Board of County Commissioners of Washoe County.  

The trustees appointed pursuant to this subsection must be different persons than those 

appointed pursuant to subsection 2.  

4. The Board of Trustees of the Sun Valley General Improvement District or its successor and the 

Board of Trustees of the South Truckee Meadows General Improvement District or its successor 

shall each appoint one trustee from its membership for an initial term of 3 years.  

5. The owners of the Truckee Meadows Water Reclamation Facility or its successor shall jointly 

appoint one trustee for an initial term of 2 years.  

6. After the initial terms, each trustee who is appointed to the Board serves for a term of 2 years. A 

trustee may be reappointed.  

7. All trustees must be elected officials. No trustee may serve beyond his term of office.  

8. The position of a trustee must be considered vacated upon his loss of any of the qualifications 

required for his appointment, and in such event, the appointing authority shall appoint a successor to 

fill the remainder of the unexpired term. 

 

The current appointees to the Western Regional Water Commission Board are as follows: 

 

Appointing Body Trustee 

City of Reno  Councilmember Naomi Duerr 

City of Sparks Councilmember Donald Abbott 

Washoe County  Commissioner Vaughn Hartung 

TMWA (Section 3 - from TMWA Board): Councilmember Ron Smith (Sparks) 

Councilmember Jenny Brekhus (Reno) 

Commissioner Jeanne Herman (Washoe) 

Truckee Meadows Water Reclamation Facility Vacant 

Sun Valley General Improvement District SVGID Trustee Sandra Ainsworth 

TMWA (Section 4 – as successor to STMGID) Commissioner Bob Lucey 

 
      

 



02-07-17 SAC Agenda Item 10 

02-15-17 BOARD Agenda Item 9 

Page 1 of 3 

 

 
 

TO:  TMWA Board of Directors 

FROM: Michele Sullivan, Chief Financial Officer 

  Tabitha Carlisle, Financial Controller 

DATE: January 31, 2017  

SUBJECT: Presentation of Financial Performance for First Half Fiscal Year 2017 

 

 

First Half Financial Results 
 

TMWA’s financial performance was strong for the six months ended December 31, 2016, with 

total operating revenues $5.4 million or 9.9% more than the revised budget and operating 

spending $2.3 million or 8.4% under budget. Please refer to Attachment A-1 for budget to 

actual comparisons. TMWA personnel continue to do an excellent job managing operating 

expenses and are optimizing consolidated water utility operations on a continual basis. The 

revised budget does reflect water demands much lower than historical highs as a result of 

community response to drought conditions. Water use did increase compared to the prior year as 

drought conditions lessened and customers relaxed their conservation efforts.   In addition, the 

first few months of the fiscal year in our area experienced little to no precipitation, leading to 

increased water use compared to the prior year.   

 

Total operating revenues were $5.4 million or 9.9% more than the revised budget. Water sales 

were higher than budget due to a dry summer and some relaxation of conservation efforts.  

Hydroelectric power sales were $0.1 million or 16.1% higher than budget due to good river 

flows.  Verdi hydroelectric plant was in operation through December. Other operating sales were 

$0.2 million or 19% higher than budget which was due to more than expected inspection 

business service fees and late payment customer service fees.  

 

Total spending on operations was $2.3 million, or 8.4% below budget. Spending on wages and 

salaries was $0.3 million or 3.75% less than budget due to a few sporadic position vacancies, 

offset by significant overtime devoted to repairing water system leaks. Lower spending on 

employee benefits by $0.5 million or 10.8% less than budget, is reflective of a lower actual 

premium increase of 5% versus the budgeted increase. Services and supplies spending was $1.4 

million or 10.7% less than budget, a notable achievement with control over power expenses of 

$0.5 million being the greatest contributor to this positive spending variance. Other smaller 

variances make-up the rest: CIS contract services, storage fees, and river monitoring,  all of 

which are expected to be expended in the second half of the year.    

 

Investment income was slightly above budget. Investment returns have increased slightly over 

the last quarter. TMWA’s other investment returns range from 0.6% to 5.5% and are laddered in 

maturities in a manner to meet future cash flow requirements. 



02-07-17 SAC Agenda Item 10 

02-15-17 BOARD Agenda Item 9 

Page 2 of 3 

 

  

Interest expense on TMWA’s outstanding debt was lower than expected due to the premium on 

the Refunding of the 2006 Series Senior Debt. 

 

In total, developer contributions are significantly ahead of budget by $1.7 million. Development 

has been concentrated in residential activity and small commercial activities. It is difficult to 

project the level of developer fee contributions since entitled developments and shadow 

inventories cannot be accurately determined. Regardless, as a matter of policy, TMWA is not 

reliant on growth for financial stability. TMWA received the last portion of the TROA grant 

from the Bureau of Reclamation for $1.2M.  TMWA also received $1.2M from Scannell 

Properties for their portion of costs related to the Truckee Canyon Water Treatment Plant 

Expansion, which is shown in Contribution From Others.  

 

Spending on capital outlays and construction projects as of December 31, 2016, was 

approximately $11.6 million. Construction spending in the first half of the fiscal year was 

primarily focused on various distribution system improvements. Capital spending is expected to 

increase during the remainder of the year with the Stead and 4th Street/ Prater main replacements. 

Please refer to Attachment A-2 which contains TMWA’s Statement of Cash Flows that presents 

total capital spending and other cash flow information for the first half of the fiscal year.  

 

Also reflected in Attachment A-2, TMWA redeemed $4.4 million in TECP in December of 

2016 as a result of water (right) will-serve sales.  

 

Year over Year - Six Months Ended December 2016 compared to December 2015 

 

Please refer to Attachment A-3.  For the six months ended December 2016 as compared to 

December 2015 were favorable.  Total operating revenues were $5.9M or 11.0% higher, 

contributing to the overall increase in operating income of $5.8M or 47.9%. Water sales 

increased $4.9M due to a drier summer in 2016 and lessened conservation efforts from a high 

precipitation winter.  Hydroelectric sales were $.8M for the six months ended December 2016 

compared to $0 in 2015.  River flows were strong in 2016 compared to 2015 where the 

hydroelectric plants were not in operation for most of the year.  Operating expenses were slightly 

higher in 2016 due to increases in salaries and wages and employee benefits which resulted from 

hiring new staff for fire hydrant maintenance and an increase in health insurance premiums of 

20%. 

 

Other non-operating expenses, without the one-time gain on disposal of assets in December 

2015, would have decreased mainly due to a decrease in interest expense.  Defeasment and 

refunding of the 2006 Series Senior Lien Debt in April 2016 reduced the interest expense in the 

current year. TMWA received $3.5M from the disposal of water rights as part of TROA 

implementation in December 2015, which offset total non-operating expenses of $8.8M in 2015.   

 

In total, developer contributions are significantly ahead of last year by $4.8 million. 

Development has accelerated in residential activity and small commercial activities. TMWA 

received the last portion of the TROA grant from the Bureau of Reclamation for $1.2M in 

December 2016.   TMWA also received $1.2M from Scannell Properties for their portion of 



02-07-17 SAC Agenda Item 10 

02-15-17 BOARD Agenda Item 9 

Page 3 of 3 

 

costs related to the Truckee Canyon Water Treatment Plant Expansion, which is shown in 

Contribution From Others. 

 

First Half Cash Position  

 

Referring to TMWA’s Statement of Net Assets in Attachment A-4, total cash on hand was $197 

million as of December 31, 2016 which is approximately $10 million higher than at the 

beginning of the fiscal year. Of this total, $119.5 million was unrestricted to be used to meet 

upcoming and future operating/maintenance expenses, principal/interest payments, and 

construction project payments. Unrestricted cash increased due to lower debt service owed in the 

next twelve months and higher than expected revenue. 

 

The remaining $77.7 million was restricted to pay for scheduled bond principal and interest 

payments as well as maintaining required reserves as stipulated in TMWA’s bond indentures. In 

addition, the treasury reserve transferred from the dissolved South Truckee Meadows General 

Improvement District (STMGID) is included in restricted reserves for use on capital 

improvements in the former STMGID service area.  



02-07-17 SAC Agenda Item 10 
Attachments A1 thru A4 

Page 1 of 5



02-07-17 SAC Agenda Item 10 
Attachments A1 thru A4 

Page 2 of 5



02-07-17 SAC Agenda Item 10 
Attachments A1 thru A4 

Page 3 of 5



02-07-17 SAC Agenda Item 10 
Attachments A1 thru A4 

Page 4 of 5



02-07-17 SAC Agenda Item 10 
Attachments A1 thru A4 

Page 5 of 5



02-15-17 BOARD Agenda Item 10 

  Page 1 of 1 

 

 

STAFF REPORT 

 

 

TO: TMWA Board of Directors 

FROM: Michele Sullivan, Chief Financial Officer 

DATE: February 6, 2017 

SUBJECT: Discussion and action on adoption of Resolution No. 248: A resolution 

designated by the short title “2017 refunding bond resolution” authorizing 

the issuance by the authority of its “Truckee Meadows Water Authority, 

Water Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2017,” for the purpose of defraying 

wholly or in part the cost of refunding certain outstanding bonds; providing 

the form, terms, and conditions of the bonds and the security therefor; 

providing for the collection and disposition of revenues derived from the 

operation of the authority’s water system; pledging such revenues to the 

payment of the bonds; providing other covenants, agreements, details and 

other matters relating thereto 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION 

 

Staff recommends that the Board of Directors of the Truckee Meadows Water Authority approve 

the resolution providing for the issuance of approximately $152,090,000 in bonds (2017 

refunding bonds) to defease TMWA’s callable 2007 Revenue Bonds in the amount of 

$202,900,000.  The reduction in principle includes the release of the debt service reserve balance 

in excess of $32,000,000 which will be used to reduce the principal balance outstanding on the 

Revenue Bonds. 

 

 

BACKGROUND 

 

TMWA has successfully refunded (refinanced) it’s Revenue Bonds in the past which has brought 

significant savings to TMWA’s customers. TMWA staff and its financial advisory firms Public 

Financial Management and Hobbs Ong & Associates have been monitoring the bond market for 

defeasance opportunities in relation to TMWA’s outstanding 2007 Revenue Bonds. In December 

2016, based upon market bond conditions at that time, defeasance calculations indicated that net 

present value savings would amount to over $15 million or 7.4% on the refunded bonds. This is 

very significant since TMWA’s Debt Management Policy targets any present value savings 

above 3% for triggering refunding efforts. TMWA will be pricing the refunding bonds on March 

9th, which allows TMWA to refund the refunding bonds (and that may be potentially valuable) in 

the future. If TMWA refunded these bonds over 90 days prior to the call date in July 2017, this 

would not allow TMWA to refund the refunding bonds. RBC Capital, Morgan Stanley and 

Citigroup will be the underwriters on the refunding. 





02-15-17 BOARD Agenda Item 10 



02-15-17 BOARD Agenda Item 10 



02-15-17 BOARD Agenda Item 10 



02-15-17 BOARD Agenda Item 10 



02-15-17 BOARD Agenda Item 10 



02-15-17 BOARD Agenda Item 10 



02-15-17 BOARD Agenda Item 10 



02-15-17 BOARD Agenda Item 10 



02-15-17 BOARD Agenda Item 10 



02-15-17 BOARD Agenda Item 10 



02-15-17 BOARD Agenda Item 10 



02-15-17 BOARD Agenda Item 10 



02-15-17 BOARD Agenda Item 10 



02-15-17 BOARD Agenda Item 10 



02-15-17 BOARD Agenda Item 10 



02-15-17 BOARD Agenda Item 10 



02-15-17 BOARD Agenda Item 10 



02-15-17 BOARD Agenda Item 10 



02-15-17 BOARD Agenda Item 10 



02-15-17 BOARD Agenda Item 10 



02-15-17 BOARD Agenda Item 10 



02-15-17 BOARD Agenda Item 10 



02-15-17 BOARD Agenda Item 10 



02-15-17 BOARD Agenda Item 10 



02-15-17 BOARD Agenda Item 10 



02-15-17 BOARD Agenda Item 10 



02-15-17 BOARD Agenda Item 10 



02-15-17 BOARD Agenda Item 10 



02-15-17 BOARD Agenda Item 10 



02-15-17 BOARD Agenda Item 10 



02-15-17 BOARD Agenda Item 10 



02-15-17 BOARD Agenda Item 10 



02-15-17 BOARD Agenda Item 10 



02-15-17 BOARD Agenda Item 10 



02-15-17 BOARD Agenda Item 10 



02-15-17 BOARD Agenda Item 10 



02-15-17 BOARD Agenda Item 10 



02-15-17 BOARD Agenda Item 10 



02-15-17 BOARD Agenda Item 10 



02-15-17 BOARD Agenda Item 10 



02-15-17 BOARD Agenda Item 10 



02-15-17 BOARD Agenda Item 10 



02-15-17 BOARD Agenda Item 10 



02-15-17 BOARD Agenda Item 10 



02-15-17 BOARD Agenda Item 10 



02-15-17 BOARD Agenda Item 10 



02-15-17 BOARD Agenda Item 10 



02-15-17 BOARD Agenda Item 10 



02-15-17 BOARD Agenda Item 10 



02-15-17 BOARD Agenda Item 10 



02-15-17 BOARD Agenda Item 10 



02-15-17 BOARD Agenda Item 10 



02-15-17 BOARD Agenda Item 10 



02-15-17 BOARD Agenda Item 10 



02-15-17 BOARD Agenda Item 10 



02-15-17 BOARD Agenda Item 10 



02-15-17 BOARD Agenda Item 10 



02-15-17 BOARD Agenda Item 10 



02-15-17 BOARD Agenda Item 10 



02-15-17 BOARD Agenda Item 10 



02-15-17 BOARD Agenda Item 10 



02-15-17 BOARD Agenda Item 10 



02-15-17 BOARD Agenda Item 10 



02-15-17 BOARD Agenda Item 10 



02-15-17 BOARD Agenda Item 10 



02-15-17 BOARD Agenda Item 10 



02-15-17 BOARD Agenda Item 10 



02-15-17 BOARD Agenda Item 10 



02-15-17 BOARD Agenda Item 10 



02-15-17 BOARD Agenda Item 10 



02-15-17 BOARD Agenda Item 10 



02-15-17 BOARD Agenda Item 10 



02-15-17 BOARD Agenda Item 10 



02-15-17 BOARD Agenda Item 10 



02-15-17 BOARD Agenda Item 10 



02-15-17 BOARD Agenda Item 10 



02-15-17 BOARD Agenda Item 10 



02-15-17 BOARD Agenda Item 10 



02-15-17 BOARD Agenda Item 10 



02-15-17 BOARD Agenda Item 10 



02-15-17 BOARD Agenda Item 10 



02-15-17 BOARD Agenda Item 10 



02-15-17 BOARD Agenda Item 10 



02-15-17 BOARD Agenda Item 10 



02-15-17 BOARD Agenda Item 10 



02-15-17 BOARD Agenda Item 10 



02-15-17 BOARD Agenda Item 10 



02-15-17 BOARD Agenda Item 10 



02-15-17 BOARD Agenda Item 10 



02-15-17 BOARD Agenda Item 10 



02-15-17 BOARD Agenda Item 10 



02-15-17 BOARD Agenda Item 10 



02-15-17 BOARD Agenda Item 10 



02-15-17 BOARD Agenda Item 10 



02-15-17 BOARD Agenda Item 10 



1. The Board may adjourn from the public meeting at any time during the agenda to receive information from legal 

counsel regarding potential or existing litigation and to deliberate toward a decision on such matters. 

 

 

TRUCKEE MEADOWS WATER AUTHORITY 

Board of Directors 

 AGENDA  

Wednesday, February 15, 2017 at 10:00 a.m. 

Sparks Council Chambers, 745 4th Street, Sparks, NV 
 

Board Members 

Chair Geno Martini Vice Chair Vaughn Hartung  

Member Neoma Jardon Member Jeanne Herman 

Member Jenny Brekhus Member Naomi Duerr 

Member Ron Smith  

NOTES: 

1. The announcement of this meeting has been posted at the following locations: Truckee Meadows Water Authority 

(1355 Capital Blvd., Reno), Reno City Hall (1 E. First St., Reno), Sparks City Hall (431 Prater Way, Sparks), Sparks Justice 

Court (1675 E. Prater Way, Sparks), Washoe County Courthouse (75 Court St., Reno), Washoe County Central Library (301 

South Center St., Reno), Washoe County Administration (1001 East Ninth St., Reno), at http://www.tmwa.com, and State of 

Nevada Public Notice Website, https://notice.nv.gov/. 

2. In accordance with NRS 241.020, this agenda closes three working days prior to the meeting. We are pleased to make 

reasonable accommodations for persons who are disabled and wish to attend meetings. If you require special arrangements for 

the meeting, please call 834-8002 before the meeting date. 

3. The Board may elect to combine agenda items, consider agenda items out of order, remove agenda items, or delay 

discussion on agenda items. Arrive at the meeting at the posted time to hear item(s) of interest. 

4. Asterisks (*) denote non-action items. 

5. Public comment is limited to three minutes and is allowed during the public comment periods. The public may sign-up 

to speak during the public comment period or on a specific agenda item by completing a “Request to Speak” card and submitting 

it to the clerk. In addition to the public comment periods, the Chairman has the discretion to allow public comment on any agenda 

item, including any item on which action is to be taken. 

6. In the event the Chairman and Vice-Chairman are absent, the remaining Board members may elect a temporary 

presiding officer to preside over the meeting until the Chairman or Vice-Chairman are present (Standing Item of Possible 

Action). 

7. Notice of possible quorum of Western Regional Water Commission:  Because several members of the Truckee 

Meadows Water Authority Board of Directors are also Trustees of the Western Regional Water Commission, it is possible that a 

quorum of the Western Regional Water Commission may be present, however, such members will not deliberate or take action at 

this meeting in their capacity as Trustees of the Western Regional Water Commission. 

 

1. Roll call* 

2. Pledge of allegiance* 

3. Public comment  limited to no more than three minutes per speaker* 

4. Approval of the agenda (For Possible Action) 

5. Approval of the minutes of the January 18, 2017 meeting of the TMWA Board of Directors 

(For Possible Action) 

02-15-17 BOARD Agenda Item 10 

http://www.tmwa.com/
https://notice.nv.gov/


Truckee Meadows Water Authority Board of Directors Agenda for February 15, 2017 

Page 2 

1. The Board may adjourn from the public meeting at any time during the agenda to receive information from legal 

counsel regarding potential or existing litigation and to deliberate toward a decision on such matters. 

6. Water Supply Update — Bill Hauck* 

7. Discussion and possible action and direction to staff regarding 2017 legislative activities, 

current bills, and TMWA recommended positions on legislative proposals John 

Zimmerman and Steve Walker, Walker & Associates (For Possible Action) 

8. Discussion and action on appointment or reappointment of four persons to the Board of 

Trustees of the Western Regional Water Commission consisting of one TMWA Board 

member each from: the Reno City Council, Sparks City Council, Washoe County Board of 

Commissioners, and one person to represent TMWA as successor to South Truckee 

Meadows General Improvement District, from the following list of eligible persons: Jenny 

Brekhus, Jeanne Herman, Neoma Jardon, Bob Lucey, Ron Smith, for two-year terms ending 

March 31, 2019 — Mark Foree (For Possible Action) 

9. Presentation of Financial Performance for First Half Fiscal Year 2017 — Michele Sullivan, 

Tabitha Carlisle* 

10. Discussion and action on adoption of Resolution No. 248: A resolution designated by the 

short title “2017 refunding bond resolution” authorizing the issuance by the authority of its 

“Truckee Meadows Water Authority, Water Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2017,” for the 

purpose of defraying wholly or in part the cost of refunding certain outstanding bonds; 

providing the form, terms, and conditions of the bonds and the security therefor; providing 

for the collection and disposition of revenues derived from the operation of the authority’s 

water system; pledging such revenues to the payment of the bonds; providing other 

covenants, agreements, details and other matters relating thereto —  Michele Sullivan (For 

Possible Action) 

11. Discussion and action regarding appointment of, and possible approval of contract with, 

Tami Fruhwirth as TMWA’s Ombudsman — Andy Gebhardt (For Possible Action) 

12. General Manager’s Report*  

13. Public comment  limited to no more than three minutes per speaker* 

14. Board comments and requests for future agenda items* 

15. Adjournment (For Possible Action) 

 

02-15-17 BOARD Agenda Item 10 



02-15-17 BOARD Agenda Item 10 



02-15-17 BOARD Agenda Item 10 

Page 1 of 1



 

Hobbs, Ong 
& ASSOCIATES, INC. 
Financial Consultants/Advisors 

3900 Paradise Road 
Suite 152 
Las Vegas, NV  89169 

702 733-7223 
702 733-7250 fax 

601 S. Figueroa 
Suite 4500 
Los Angeles, CA 90017  

213-489-4075 
www.pfm.com 

 

February 1, 2017 

 

Mr. Mark Foree 
General Manager 
Truckee Meadows Water Authority 
1355 Capital Blvd. 
Reno, NV 89502 
 
Dear Mr. Foree: 
 
As required by the Nevada Revised Statutes, this letter serves as the financial advisors’ certification of the 
potential benefits to be derived from a negotiated method of sale for the Truckee Meadows Water Authority, 
Water Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2017 (the “Series 2017 Bonds”).   
 
The Series 2017 Bonds will be issued to:  (i) refund the Truckee Meadows Water Authority Water Revenue 
Refunding Bonds, Series 2007, and (ii) pay costs of issuance.    
 
As of 2015, the Washoe County Water Utility and the South Truckee Meadows General Improvement District 
were merged into TMWA, increasing TMWA’s service area and number of accounts.  A negotiated bond sale 
will enable TMWA to benefit from more extensive investor outreach and pre-marketing, enabling investors to 
understand the nuances and benefits of the new, larger TMWA.  Working with both investors and the rating 
agencies, the lead manager can work with TMWA and the Financial Advisors to ensure that we achieve the 
lowest yield and structure the transaction to achieve the most effective pricing (including adjusting coupons to 
respond to different investor needs).  In addition, since timing and the ability to move quickly to take advantage 
of interest rates is important, the negotiated method of sale provides the greatest chance of success.  A 
negotiated sale will provide the most flexibility to enter, as well as to pull the transaction and re-enter quickly. 
In today’s still volatile financial market, flexibility is critical to a successful transaction.  Given the volatility in 
today’s capital markets, particularly since the November presidential election and the dependency of the savings 
and economics on interest rates, we recommend the refunding bonds be issued through a negotiated sale, using 
a team of underwriters. 
 
While it is always difficult to determine interest rate differentials as a result of a negotiated or competitive sale, 
we estimate the benefit of using a negotiated sale could be up to 2 basis points in terms of annual interest costs.  
These potential savings would be derived from lower fixed spreads to the tax-exempt MMD benchmark on the 
day of pricing. 
 
 
  

02-15-17 BOARD Agenda Item 10 

Page 1 of 2



 TMWA 
 February 1, 2017 
 Page 2 

 
Thank you for this opportunity to serve the District.  Please let us know if you have any questions. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
Brian Thomas  Katherine Ong 
Managing Director  Director 
Public Financial Management Inc.  Hobbs, Ong & Associates, Inc. 
 
 
cc: Guy Hobbs – Hobbs, Ong & Associates, Inc. 
 Jennifer Stern, Ryan Howard – Sherman and Howard L.L.C. 
 

02-15-17 BOARD Agenda Item 10 

Page 2 of 2



02-15-17 BOARD Agenda Item 11 

 

 
 

STAFF REPORT 

 

 

TO: Chairman and Board Members 

THRU: Mark Foree, General Manager 

FROM: Andy Gebhardt, Director Operations and Water Quality 

DATE: February 15, 2017 

SUBJECT: Discussion and action regarding appointment of, and possible approval of 

contract with, Tami Fruhwirth as TMWA’s Ombudsman 

  

 

 

Summary 

 

In January, the Board indicated that they would like Tami Fruhwirth to become TMWA’s 

Ombudsman.  Staff is formally requesting Board approve the contract with Ms. Fruhwirth to 

officially become TMWA’s Ombudsman. 

 

 

Background 

 

On November 1, 2005, pursuant to Board direction, Truckee Meadows Water Authority entered 

into a Professional Services Agreement with Don Rhoden to provide Ombudsman services for 

TMWA customers.  This contract was renewed annually, until Mr. Rhoden’s resignation in late 

2008.  In December of 2008, TMWA entered in to a contract with Joanne Stralla, following Ms. 

Stralla’s appointment to the Ombudsman position by the Board in November, 2008.  With Ms. 

Stralla’s passing in November of 2016, staff recommended Tami Fruhwirth as a possible 

candidate for the Ombudsman position. Ms. Fruhwirth has extensive customer service 

experience, particularly in the Utility arena, and is known to many of us at TMWA. The Board 

previously agreed to staff’s recommendation of Ms. Fruhwirth for the Ombudsman position.  

Attached you will find the proposed contract with Ms. Fruhwirth.  The proposed contract is 

virtually identical to the previous contract with Ms. Stralla, including the compensation amount 

of approximately $2,700 per year.   

 

 

 



02-15-17 BOARD Agenda Item 11 
Attachment 



02-15-17 BOARD Agenda Item 11 
Attachment 



02-15-17 BOARD Agenda Item 11 
Attachment 



02-15-17 BOARD Agenda Item 11 
Attachment 



02-15-17 BOARD Agenda Item 11 
Attachment 



02-15-17 BOARD Agenda Item 11 
Attachment 



02-15-17 BOARD Agenda Item 11 
Attachment 



02-15-17 BOARD Agenda Item 11 
Attachment 



02-15-17 BOARD Agenda Item 11 
Attachment 



02-15-17 BOARD Agenda Item 11 
Attachment 



02-15-17 BOARD Agenda Item 11 
Attachment 



02-15-17 BOARD Agenda Item 11 
Attachment 



02-15-17 BOARD Agenda Item 11 
Attachment 



02-15-17 BOARD Agenda Item 12 

Page 1 of 1 

 

 
 

STAFF REPORT 

 

 

TO: Board of Directors  

FROM: Mark Foree, General Manager 

DATE: February 6, 2017 

SUBJECT: General Manager’s Report  

 

 

Attached please find the written reports from the Management team including the Operations 

Report (Attachment A), the Customer Services Report (Attachment B), the Web Usage and 

Social Media Report (Attachment C), and the Water Resource and the Annexation Activity 

Report (Attachment D). 

Included in your agenda packet are press clippings from January 12, 2017 through February 8, 

2017.  

 

At the February 7th meeting, the TMWA Standing Advisory Committee amended their 

Governing Rules. Please find the amended Governing Rules attached. 



TRUCKEE MEADOWS WATER AUTHORITY 

STANDING ADVISORY COMMITTEE 

GOVERNING RULES 

 

 

1. Members:  Membership in the Standing Advisory Committee (“Committee”) is 

governed by the Truckee Meadows Water Authority’s Board of Directors 

(“Board”).  Each Member is appointed for a two-year term.  Members serve and 

may be reappointed at the Board’s pleasure.  As requested by the Board, the 

Committee shall take action to make recommendations to the Board regarding 

membership in the Committee.  

2. Alternates: In its discretion, the Board may appoint a Member to serve in either a 

primary (“Primary”) or alternate (“Alternate”) position.  When making a 

recommendation to the Board to fill a Primary position vacancy, the Committee 

shall give preference to the existing Alternate(s).  

3. Participation:  Each Member is expected to attend all Committee meetings and 

review the agenda and all supporting materials prior to arrival.  Failure by a 

Member to attend more than two meetings in a year may result in the Committee 

making a recommendation to the Board that the Member be replaced.      

4. Compliance with NRS Chapter 241:  Meetings shall be conducted in 

compliance with NRS Chapter 241, the Nevada “Open Meeting Law.” 

5. Quorum:  A quorum shall consist of a simple majority of the Primary Members.  

Members may participate telephonically in meetings, but telephonic participation 

shall not be considered in establishing a quorum.  In the absence of a Primary 

Member, the Alternate Member for that customer class who is physically present 

at the meeting may be considered in establishing a quorum. 

6. Action:  For items other than those that constitute recommendations to the Board, 

an action may be taken by affirmative vote of the majority of Members physically 

present.  For items that constitute recommendations to the Board, an action shall 

be taken only by an affirmative vote of the majority of the Membership.  Each 

member shall have one vote.  Members participating telephonically may not vote 

on action items.  An Alternate sitting in for an absent Member has all of the 

voting rights of the absent Member.  Otherwise, an Alternate has no voting rights. 

7. Agenda Items:  The Committee may, by action at a prior meeting, make 

suggestions to staff as to items to be placed on a future agenda.  Except as 

otherwise directed by the Board, Staff shall have discretion as to the items that 

will be placed on the Committee’s agendas.  

8. Officers:  There shall be a Chair and a Vice Chair, elected by the Members.  The 

Chair will conduct the meetings.  The Vice Chair or such other Member as the 

Chair or Vice Chair may designate will conduct the meeting in the absence of the 

Chair.  Or, in the absence of the Chair and Vice Chair, a majority of the Members 

present may designate an Alternate to conduct the meeting.  The Chair and Vice 

Chair each shall serve for a one-year term, with their terms expiring at the first 

meeting scheduled following the beginning of the calendar year following their 

election.  The Vice Chair shall automatically succeed to the position of Chair for 

the subsequent term, unless an alternate action is made by the Members.  Officers 

02-15-17 BOARD Agenda Item 12 
Attachment 

Page 1 of 4



may be reelected.  The Chair or the Chair’s designee is the only Member who 

may speak on behalf of the Committee to the Board, to any member of the Board, 

or to the public. 

9. Conflicts of Interest:  Members shall disclose conflicts of interest regarding any 

decisions of the Committee and shall disclose any financial interest in Committee 

decisions and in organizations affected by Committee action, other than the 

financial interest that derives from being a TMWA customer.  Members who will 

receive a direct financial benefit from any action taken by the Committee, other 

than a financial interest that derives from being a TMWA customer, shall abstain 

from voting on such action.  In the event that a Member presents an idea to the 

Committee for consideration on behalf of another individual or entity, said 

Member shall disclose to the Committee the identity of said individual or entity.  

10. Uses of staff:  Staff will provide reasonable assistance to facilitate meetings and 

provide readily available information to the Committee to carry out its functions.  

The Committee shall reasonably limit its demands on staff time, and any demands 

made in excess of what staff deems reasonable shall require Board approval.  No 

Member may request the use of staff time without approval of the Committee. 

11. Amendment of Rules:  Any amendments to these Rules shall require an 

affirmative vote of the majority of the members. 

 

As amended, February 7, 2017   

 

 

 

02-15-17 BOARD Agenda Item 12 
Attachment 

Page 2 of 4



TRUCKEE MEADOWS WATER AUTHORITY 

STANDING ADVISORY COMMITTEE 

GOVERNING RULES 

 

 

1. Members:  Membership in the Standing Advisory Committee (“Committee”) is 

governed by the Truckee Meadows Water Authority’s Board of Directors 

(“Board”).  Each Member is appointed for a two-year term.  Members serve and 

may be reappointed at the Board’s pleasure.  As requested by the Board, the 

Committee shall take action to make recommendations to the Board regarding 

membership in the Committee.  

2. Alternates: In its discretion, the Board may appoint a Member to serve in either a 

primary (“Primary”) or alternate (“Alternate”) position.  When making a 

recommendation to the Board to fill a Primary position vacancy, the Committee 

shall give preference to the existing Alternate(s).  

3. Participation:  Each Member is expected to attend all Committee meetings and 

review the agenda and all supporting materials prior to arrival.  Failure by a 

Member to attend more than two meetings in a year may result in the Committee 

making a recommendation to the Board that the Member be replaced.      

2.4.Compliance with NRS Chapter 241:  Meetings shall be conducted in 

compliance with NRS Chapter 241, the Nevada “Open Meeting Law.” 

3.5.Quorum:  A quorum shall consist of a simple majority of the Primary Members.  

Members may participate telephonically in meetings, but telephonic participation 

shall not be considered in establishing a quorum.  In the absence of a Primary 

Member, the Alternate Member for that customer class who is physically present 

at the meeting may be considered in establishing a quorum. 

4.6.Action:  For items other than those that constitute recommendations to the Board, 

an action may be taken by affirmative vote of the majority of Members physically 

present.  For items that constitute recommendations to the Board, an action shall 

be taken only by an affirmative vote of the majority of the Membership.  Each 

member shall have one vote.  Members participating telephonically may not vote 

on action items.  An Alternate sitting in for an absent Member has all of the 

voting rights of the absent Member.  Otherwise, an Alternate has no voting rights. 

5.7.Agenda Items:  The Committee may, by action at a prior meeting, make 

suggestions to staff as to items to be placed on a future agenda.  Except as 

otherwise directed by the Board, Staff shall have discretion as to the items that 

will be placed on the Committee’s agendas.  

6.8.Officers:  There shall be a Chair and a Vice Chair, elected by the Members.  The 

Chair will conduct the meetings.  The Vice Chair or such other Member as the 

Chair or Vice Chair may designate will conduct the meetings in the absence of the 

Chair.  The Chair or Vice Chair may designate an alternate to conduct the meeting 

in their absence.  Or, in the absence of the Chair and Vice Chair, a majority of the 

Members present may designate an Aalternate to conduct the meeting.  The Chair 

and Vice Chair each shall serve for a one-year term, with their terms expiring at 

the first meeting scheduled following the beginning of the calendar year following 

their election.  The Vice Chair shall automatically succeed to the position of Chair 

02-15-17 BOARD Agenda Item 12 
Attachment 

Page 3 of 4



for the subsequent term, unless an alternate action is made by the Members.  

Officers may be reelected.  The Chair or the Chair’s designee is the only Member 

who may speak on behalf of the Committee to the Board, to any member of the 

Board, or to the public. 

7.9.Conflicts of Interest:  Members shall disclose conflicts of interest regarding any 

decisions of the Committee and shall disclose any financial interest in Committee 

decisions and in organizations affected by Committee action, other than the 

financial interest that derives from being a TMWA customer.  Members who will 

receive a direct financial benefit from any action taken by the Committee, other 

than a financial interest that derives from being a TMWA customer, shall abstain 

from voting on such action.  In the event that a Member presents an idea to the 

Committee for consideration on behalf of another individual or entity, said 

Member shall disclose to the Committee the identity of said individual or entity.  

8.10. Uses of staff:  Staff will provide reasonable assistance to facilitate 

meetings and provide readily available information to the Committee to carry out 

its functions.  The Committee shall reasonably limit its demands on staff time, 

and any demands made in excess of what staff deems reasonable shall require 

Board approval.  No Member may request the use of staff time without approval 

of the Committee. 

9.11. Amendment of Rules:  Any amendments to these Rules shall require an 

affirmative vote of the majority of the members. 

 

As amended, February 73, 20157   

 

 

 

02-15-17 BOARD Agenda Item 12 
Attachment 

Page 4 of 4



02-15-17 BOARD Agenda Item 12.A 

  Page 1 of 2 

 

 

 

STAFF REPORT 

 

TO: Board of Directors  

THRU: Mark Foree, General Manager  

FROM: Scott Estes, Director of Engineering 

BY: Bill Hauck, Senior Hydrologist 

DATE: February 06, 2017 

SUBJECT: Operations Report  

 

Summary 

 The current water supply outlook is the best we have seen in over a decade 

 Lake Tahoe elevation is 2.20 feet above its natural outlet elevation (at this time) 

 Lake Tahoe is projected to fill and all other upstream reservoirs fill and spill  

 Normal river flows are expected through 2018 and beyond  

 More upstream reserves than ever are currently being held in storage (~39,730 AF) 

 Hydro revenue is expected to be approximately $26,730 for January 2017 

 

(A) Water Supply  

 

 Snowpack – Snowpack in both the Truckee and Tahoe basins is still roughly two times 

what is considered normal for this time of the year. Truckee River Basin snowpack is 

183% of average and Lake Tahoe Basin snowpack is 193% of average, respectfully. 

Precipitation for the water year to-date is roughly 230% of average in the Lake Tahoe 

Basin.  

 

 River Flows - Truckee River flows at the CA/NV state line were approximately 600 

cubic feet per second (CFS) as of this morning, but are expected to rise again in the 

coming days as another series of winter storms makes its way across our region..   

 

 Reservoir Storage - The elevation of Lake Tahoe is currently at 6225.20 feet (2.20’ 

above the natural rim of 6223.00 feet).  Current reservoir storage is as follows: 

 

 

Reservoir 

Current Storage 

(Acre-Feet) 

% of Capacity 

(Percent) 

Tahoe 267,400 36% 

Donner 4,914 52% 

Independence 12,581 72% 

Prosser 9,662 32% 

Stampede 146,980 65% 



02-15-17 BOARD Agenda Item 12.A 

  Page 2 of 2 

 

In addition to Donner and Independence lakes, TMWA has approximately 23,597 acre-

feet of water stored between Boca and Stampede Reservoirs under the terms of TROA.  

TMWA has been and will continue credit storage operations as hydrological conditions 

permit. TMWA’s total back-up reservoir storage between Donner and Independence 

lakes and TROA is 39,730 acre-feet as of this morning.  

 

 Outlook - With precipitation to-date well over 200% of average and snowpack totals not 

too far behind, the 2017 Water Year is going to end up being a big one.  The month of 

January was especially impressive bringing record precipitation in the form of rain and 

snow to the region.  This led to significant increases in reservoir storage, particularly at 

Lake Tahoe which has risen 1.9 feet since January 1st alone.  And since the start of the 

water year in October, Lake Tahoe has gained almost 2.6 feet in elevation.  The latest 

streamflow runoff projections are pointing towards a significantly above-average year 

showing Lake Tahoe coming close to and likely filling by early summer. With a 

projected rise of almost 6½ feet (since October 01), the 2017 Water Year could very well 

end up being the best that Lake Tahoe has ever seen in terms of a gain in elevation in 

over 110 years of record keeping. All other reservoirs on the Truckee River system are 

projected to fill and spill as well.  The 2017 Water year is well on its way to becoming 

one of the biggest the region has ever seen, and is by any measure a true drought buster.  

 

(B) Water Production  
 

Demand - Customer demands are still at their wintertime lows, averaging ~36 million gallons 

per day which is typical for this time of year.  About ninety seven (97) percent of customer 

demands are being met with surface water from the Chalk Bluff water treatment plant, and the 

remaining three (3) percent from groundwater production wells located throughout TMWA’s 

consolidated service area.  

 

(C) Hydro Production   
 

Generation - Average Truckee River flow at Farad (CA/NV state line) for the month of January 

was 1,255 cubic feet per second (CFS). This flow was above average due to a couple of 

significant flooding events the region experienced earlier in the month.  All three of TMWA’s 

hydro plants were off-line during the flooding events but the Verdi plant was able to be brought 

back into service the last week of January.  The Fleish and Washoe plants were off-line for 

scheduled maintenance during the entire month but work is anticipated to be completed soon.   

 

 

Hydro Plant 

Days 

On-Line 

Generation 

(Megawatt hours) 

Revenue 

(Dollars) 

Revenue 

(Dollars/Day) 

Fleish 0 0 0 0 

Verdi 8 380 $26,730 $3,342 

Washoe 0 0 0 0 

Totals  380 $26,730 $3,342 

 

 



02-15-17 BOAD Agenda Item 12.B 

  Page 1 of 2 

 

 

STAFF REPORT 

 

 

TO: Board of Directors  

THRU: Mark Foree, General Manager 

FROM: Marci Westlake, Manager Customer Service 

DATE: February 15, 2017 

SUBJECT: January Customer Service Report 

 

 

 

The following is a summary of Customer Service activity for January 2017.   

 

Ombudsman 

There was one call due to leaks and high bills, call was passed to Marci and handled.   

Communications  

 

Attached is the website / social media report. 

 

Customer outreach in January included:   

 Neecie Schlesener had a presentation at the Sparks Heritage Museum for 5-14 year olds. 

 Travis Bunkowski had a presentation at Chalk Bluff for the Northern Nevada Electrical 

Training Center. The subject was Water Treatment and 10 attended.  

 Ryan Dixon and Ian Dasmann had a presentation at Chalk Bluff for Hunsberger 

Elementary.  The subject was Water Treatment and 60 attended. 

 

Conservation (January 1 – January 31) 

 

 2 Water Watcher Contacts 

 129 Water Usage Reviews 

 

Customer Calls – January 

 

 7,723 phone calls handled  

 Average handling time – 4 minutes, 36 seconds per call 

 Average speed of answer – 20 seconds per call 

 

 

 



02-15-17 BOAD Agenda Item 12.B 

  Page 2 of 2 

Billing – January 

 

 124,475 bills issued  

 255(<.2%) corrected bills 

 13,609 customers (11.0%) have signed up for paperless billing to date.  

 

 

Service Orders – January (% is rounded) 

 

 5,574 service orders taken 

 2860 (51%) move-ins / move-outs  

 720 (13%) cut-out-for-non-payment and cut-in after receiving payments, including deposits 

and checks for tamper 

 529 (9%) zero consumption meter checks 

 272 (5%) re-read meters  

 380 (7%) new meter sets and meter/register/ERT exchanges and equipment checks 

 381 (7%) problems / emergencies, including cut-out for customer repairs, dirty water, no 

water, leaks, pressure complaints, safety issues, installing water meter blankets, etc.  

 108 (2%) high-bill complaints / audit and water usage review requests 

 324 (5%) various other service orders 

 

Remittance – January 

 

 33,910 mailed-in payments 

 25,056 electronic payments  

 24,549  payments via RapidPay (EFT)  

 16,555 one-time bank account payments 

 5,779 credit card payments  

 3,548 store payments  

 2,130 payments via drop box or at front desk 

 

Collections – January 

 

 16,812 accounts received a late charge                     

 Mailed 7,747 10-day delinquent notices, 6.2% of accounts     

 Mailed 1,391 48-hour delinquent notices, 1.1% of accounts    

 236 accounts eligible for disconnect 

 223 accounts actually disconnected (including accounts that had been disconnected-for-non-

payment that presented NSF checks for their reconnection) 

 0.19% write-off to revenue 

 

Meter Statistics – Fiscal Year to January 31 

 

 2 meter retrofits completed 

 707 meter exchanges completed 

 944 new business meter sets completed  

 122,178 meters currently installed    



02-15-17 BOARD Agenda Item 12.C 

 

 Page 1 of 4 

 
 

STAFF REPORT 

 
TO: Chairman and Board Members 

THRU: Mark Foree, General Manager 

FROM: Robert Charpentier 

DATE: February, 2017 

SUBJECT: Web & Social Media Overview for January 2017 + Five-Year Review  

 

Web & Social Media Overview – January 2017 + Five-Year Review 

Highlights 

 Website Overview – Trends over the Last Five Years: annual visitor numbers have increased 

29% since 2012. Mobile use grew from 13% to 36% in the same period.   

 Social Media Engagement Grows: TMWA’s Facebook and Twitter followers have increased by 

32% and 15% respectively since February of 2016. 

 2016 Post-Drought Traffic Decline: 2016 visits to tmwa.com dropped by 6% compared to 2015. 

User traffic analysis indicates this is largely attributable to elevated interest in drought and 

conservation content during the historic, 2015 drought year. Online account registration grew, 

increasing 10.4%, from 104,195 to 115,044, in 2016. 

tmwa.com — Website Review – Trends Over the Last Five Years  

User traffic to the tmwa.com website over the last five years has grown from 313,891 visitors in 

2012 to 471,014 in 2015 followed by a 6% drop in 2016 due to diminishing drought-related 

visits. The overall traffic increase in the last five years has been 29%. In 2017 we will be paying 

close attention to see if the website’s new, responsive formatting will deliver a bump in traffic 

from mobile devices. 

Year Visits New Returning Pages/Visit Avg. Visit Duration Bounce Rate 

2016 ..... 441,686 ......... 55% ............... 45% ................... 1.54 .................... 1:12 min .............................. 34% 

2015 ..... 471,014 ......... 48% ............... 52% ................... 1.61 .................... 1:23 min .............................. 25% 

2014 ........ 377,618 .......... 47% ................. 53% ....................... 1.65 ...................... 1:36 min ................................... 39% 

2013 ........ 342,275 .......... 55% ................. 45% ....................... 1.63 ...................... 2:04 min ................................... 26% 

2012 ........ 313,891 .......... 55% ................. 45% ....................... 1.73 ...................... 1:53 min ................................... 36% 

 



02-15-17 BOARD Agenda Item 12.C 

 

 Page 2 of 4 

Growth in Mobile Traffic 2011 - 2016 

There has been substantial growth in the number of users who access tmwa.com via mobile 

devices – from a little over seven percent in 2011 to nearly a third of all users in 2015. 

2011 ................................. 7% 

2012 ................................ 13% 

2013 ................................ 21% 

2014 ................................ 27% 

2015 ................................ 31% 

2016 ................................ 36% 

Website Results for YTD 2017 vs. 2016 

This admittedly-thin sampling of web data wouldn’t normally be useful but the numbers do indicate year-

over-year traffic numbers are trending upward again after the drought-related surge of 2015, and 

subsequent drop in 2016, created a statistical dip in an otherwise steady rise. January of 2015 generated a 

large bump in visitor numbers vs 2014 or 2016. 2015 saw 38% more user sessions and 51% more page 

views than the same period in 2014 and 17% more user sessions and 28% more page views than in 2016.  

 

Top Content (January 2017) 

The most visited pages on tmwa.com (listed below) are quite different from what we have seen in the 

past. After the homepage—our most visited page—traffic previously went mostly to our residential 

payment, employment and “contact us” pages. It remains to be seen if this change is the result of the new 

website’s content organization.  

Rank Page Pageviews %Pageviews 

1 ............. Homepage ............................................... 29,671 ...................................... 63% 

3 ............. Bidding Opportunities ............................ 1,943 .......................................... 4% 

2 ............. Contact Us .............................................. 1,814 ....................................... 3.8% 

4 ............. Billing ..................................................... 1,350 .......................................... 3% 

5 ............. Lake Levels ............................................. 1,348 .......................................... 3% 

 

Growth by Platform 2016 vs. 2015:  

Desktop Users ......................................................... -12% 

Mobile Phone .......................................................... +14% 

Tablet Use ............................................................... -13% 

 

 

 



02-15-17 BOARD Agenda Item 12.C 

 

 Page 3 of 4 

Traffic to tmwa.com came from the following sources (Jan. 2017): 

 

 

TMWA Social Media 

C urrently TMWA has 1472 Twitter followers and 1712 Facebook fans. There is a current 

Twitter feed on the tmwa.com homepage that is updated daily to reflect current topics.  

 

TMWA’s YouTube Channel: http://www.youtube.com/user/truckeemeadowswater 

TMWA videos are intended to provide tips for addressing issues customers may face with their 

water supply, as well as give customers a window into TMWA’s everyday operations, showing 

everything from infrastructure improvements to water-main repairs. It's a great way to 

understand both the scope and complexity of the many processes and projects we manage here at TMWA 

 

“About TMWA” Videos: 

 A Day in the Life of a Water Conservation Consultant 

 TMWA Takes it Personally 

 

“TMWA How-to” videos: 

 How to Perform a Home, Self Water Audit (NEW!) 

http://www.youtube.com/user/truckeemeadowswater
http://youtu.be/i3U3KIglSVg
https://youtu.be/Q3jYE4PkNS0
https://youtu.be/Z1QFALZyLiU


02-15-17 BOARD Agenda Item 12.C 

 

 Page 4 of 4 

 Household Winterization – Get Ready for the Cold 

 How to Reduce Your Water Use 10% 

 Spring Sprinkler System Start-Up   

 How to Shut off Your Home’s Water in an Emergency 

 How to Use Your Water Meter to Determine if you have a Leak 

 How to Test for and Fix a Leaky Toilet Flapper 

 How to Make an Online Bill Payment from Your Checking Account 

 

 “TMWA at Work” videos: 

 Stead Water Tank Rehabilitation 

 Partnership For Safe Water Award     

 Idlewild Pump Station Improvements 

 Steamboat Spillway, Flume Repair 

 Fleish ‘Railcar Bridge 

 Water Main Repair  on Haskell St. 

 Highland Canal Improvement Project 

 Ice Fighting 

 

TMWA also manages the following informational websites: 

 www.communityforestry.org:   

 www.tmwastorage.com:  

 www.tmwalandscapeguide.com:  

 www.truckeeriverfund.org:  

https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=ZkZdPeqgnNU
http://youtu.be/ZRuWEe4NYw8
http://youtu.be/2-vL2vQV_QU
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=c0B_Nx36hhE
http://www.youtube.com/watch?v=ceOM1urjHQ8
http://www.youtube.com/watch?v=RhqgnlVa-zg
http://www.youtube.com/watch?v=NR-m5uyviNE&feature=youtu.be
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=EmKZLJfkzt0
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=14BlCQ50gdA&feature=youtu.be
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=14BlCQ50gdA&feature=youtu.be
http://www.youtube.com/watch?v=8YZZ8Zzm6sc
http://www.youtube.com/watch?v=g_nCxXRfEgw
http://www.youtube.com/watch?v=K77IOsexcDQ&feature=youtu.be
http://www.youtube.com/watch?v=5n516dIn4yE
http://www.youtube.com/watch?v=6q-Y87YB-uM
http://www.youtube.com/watch?v=2n0IT9aRmp4
http://www.communityforestry.org/
http://www.tmwastorage.com/
http://www.tmwalandscapeguide.com/
http://www.truckeeriverfund.org/


02-15-17 BOARD Agenda Item 12.D 

Page 1 of 2 

 

STAFF REPORT 

 

 

TO: Chairman and Board Members 

THRU: Mark Foree, General Manager 

FROM: John Zimmerman, Manager, Water Resources  

DATE: 6 February 2017 

SUBJECT: Report Water Resources and Annexation Activity 

 

 

RULE 7 

 

Rule 7 water resource purchases and will-serve commitment sales against purchased water 

resources through this reporting period: 

 

Beginning Balance                 6,494.52 AF 

Purchases of water rights                 37.10 AF 

Refunds              0.00 AF 

Sales            − 251.23 AF 

Adjustments            46.50 AF 

Ending Balance       6,326.89 AF 

 

Price per acre foot at report date:             $7,500 

 

WATER SERVICE AREA ANNEXATIONS 

 

A 40-acre industrial development in Spanish Springs.  (See attached map). 
  



02-15-17 BOARD Agenda Item 12.D 

Page 2 of 2 

 



 

 

 

 

 

TMWA Board Meeting 

Wednesday, February 15, 2017 

 

Press Clippings 

January 12, 2017 – February 8, 2017 

 

 

 

 

02-15-17 BOARD Agenda Item 12.E 



 



Washoe Updates On Bridges, Roads, Weather 
And More  
By KUNR STAFF • JAN 9, 2017  
TweetShareGoogle+Email 

•  
Andrea Landis  

Monday, 6:20 p.m. update: 
The following information has been compiled by KUNR from local press releases: 
WEATHER: 
The National Weather Service in Reno is predicting snow and increased winds through 
Wednesday. The flood risk is decreasing. However, officials urge residents to avoid the Truckee 
River and flooded areas. First responders are still urging the public to stay away from the 
Truckee River. The water is very cold and very fast and hypothermia can set in quickly. 
In addition, there is a continuing risk of falling trees due to high winds and saturated ground. 
Trees could fall without warning. 
WATER ISSUES: 
Residents of the River Belle Mobile Home Park in Verdi are asked to boil water for at least 10 
minutes until further notice. 
Areas serviced by Truckee Meadows Water Authority are not affected by this warning. Water in 
the Autumn Hills area is safe to drink and the sewage system is fully functional. 
 

02-15-17 BOARD Agenda Item 12.E 

Page 1 of 58

http://twitter.com/intent/tweet?url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.tinyurl.com%2Fhcn76lh&text=Washoe%20Updates%20On%20Bridges%2C%20Roads%2C%20Weather%20And%20More�
http://twitter.com/intent/tweet?url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.tinyurl.com%2Fhcn76lh&text=Washoe%20Updates%20On%20Bridges%2C%20Roads%2C%20Weather%20And%20More�
https://plus.google.com/share?url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.tinyurl.com%2Fhcn76lh�
https://plus.google.com/share?url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.tinyurl.com%2Fhcn76lh�
http://mediad.publicbroadcasting.net/p/kunr/files/styles/x_large/public/201701/river.jpg�


Storms deliver big boost in water supply with 
more to come 
Benjamin Spillman , bspillman@rgj.com Published 3:29 p.m. PT Jan. 9, 2017 | Updated 22 
hours ago 

Buy Photo 

The Truckee River on the left crested on Monday Jan. 9, 2017(Photo: Andy Barron/RGJ)Buy 
Photo 
The amount of water flowing into Lake Tahoe and critical western Nevada river basins is surging 
thanks to a parade of rain and snowstorms. 
And the amount of water in storage for the Truckee Meadows is at an all-time high, although that 
has as much to do with deal-making among players on the Truckee River as it does with recent 
storms. 
Still, the mix of snowmelt and rainfall that flooded the Truckee and Carson rivers in the past 48 
hours is part of an ongoing series of storms that have pushed the region well above average for 
this time of year in terms of precipitation. 
“It is pretty incredible really how much that storm added,” said Jeff Anderson, hydrologist for 
the Nevada Natural Resources Conservation Service, which tracks snow and water in the 
mountains. 
For example, the amount of water stored in snow in the Tahoe Basin was 62 percent of normal 
on Jan. 1. In the Truckee River basin it was 84 percent of normal. 
On Monday the readings showed the Tahoe Basin surged to 131 percent of normal and the 
Truckee River basin to 158 percent of normal. The Carson River basin jumped from 80 to 148 
percent of normal. 

SCRIBD 

Tahoe area snowpack

02-15-17 BOARD Agenda Item 12.E 

Page 2 of 58

http://www.rgj.com/staff/18351/benjamin-spillman/�


 

 

 
 

Also, since the beginning of the water year in October, Lake Tahoe has risen about 18 inches. 
That’s well ahead of the rate of rise the lake typically sees between October and the traditional 
peak in late spring or early summer. 
During the winter of 2010-11 the lake rose more than five feet, Anderson said. 
“That is the kind of rise that can happen in a big year,” he said. 
As far as water storage goes much of the water from recent storms surged down the Truckee 
River on its way to Pyramid Lake so it wasn’t captured for drinking water. 

But the availability of water in general as well as the recently signed Truckee River Operating 
Agreement has helped the Truckee Meadows Water Authority increase the amount in storage to 
nearly 40,000 acre feet, the most it’s had on hand since 1985, the earliest date for which online 
records are available. 

It’s not just water storage that’s affected. The increase in the amount of water volume locked in 
the snow changes the characteristics of the snowpack from powder to a denser pack often 
referred to as Sierra cement. 
That type of snow tends to melt slower which means there could be skiing in the mountains well 
into the latter days of spring. 
“What it is going to do is ensure a longer ski season,” Anderson said. 
Meteorologist Scott McGuire of the National Weather Service said there’s nothing unusual about 
rain and snow hammering the Sierra Nevada during winter months. 

But the most recent storm is the strongest in more than a decade. 

“We haven’t seen that set up in 11 years,” McGuire said. 

And there’s more to come. 

The forecast for Reno calls for rain and light snow through Thursday. 

At higher elevations, such as Slide Mountain where Mt. Rose Ski Tahoe is located, there is the 
potential for more than four feet of snow by the end of this week. An additional than three feet of 
snow is possible at Incline Village. 

Top of Form 
Bottom of Form 

“There is an abundance of energy out in the Pacific and the jet stream is lined up perfectly,” 
McGuire said. 

Even an incredible week of moisture, however, guarantees nothing. 

If the storm door closes and the skies go dry the moisture deficit that’s marked the past several 
years in the Sierra Nevada could continue. 

“Just like that it could dry out,” Anderson said 

02-15-17 BOARD Agenda Item 12.E 

Page 3 of 58

https://www.scribd.com/document/336120246/Tahoe-area-snowpack�
https://www.scribd.com/document/336120246/Tahoe-area-snowpack�
https://www.scribd.com/document/336120246/Tahoe-area-snowpack�
https://www.scribd.com/document/336120246/Tahoe-area-snowpack�
https://www.scribd.com/document/336120246/Tahoe-area-snowpack�
http://tmwastorage.com/reserves/�
http://tmwastorage.com/reserves/�
https://www.scribd.com/document/336120246/Tahoe-area-snowpack�


TMWA Says Water is Safe to Drink 

Posted: Jan 10, 2017 11:12 AM PST <em class="wnDate">Tuesday, January 10, 2017 2:12 PM EST</em>Updated: Jan 10, 2017 11:12 AM 
PST <em class="wnDate">Tuesday, January 10, 2017 2:12 PM EST</em>  

 
  

 

From Truckee Meadows Water Authority: 

Truckee Meadows Water Authority (TMWA) says it wants to assure all TMWA customers that at no time during the 
flood event was the water system ever compromised. The water from TMWA is, and has been, safe to drink. Despite 
flood conditions throughout the Truckee Meadows this last weekend, the TMWA delivery system suffered no 
significant damage.  

“Without a doubt we watch things very closely during a flood event,” said Will Raymond, Water Operations 
Supervisor. “We were definitely in an all-hands-on-deck mode throughout the weekend. I’m happy to say we got 
through it in one piece and our customers can rest assured their water is safe to drink.”   

Once again, TMWA wants to emphasize that all customers within their service area should feel comfortable and 
confident that their water was never compromised and the water is safe to drink. 

If there are any questions from TMWA customers regarding water quality, please feel free to contact TMWA’s Water 
Quality department at 834-8118 or waterquality@tmwa.com. 

From Truckee Meadows Water Authority 

Link to video report here:  http://www.ktvn.com/story/34227827/tmwa-says-water-is-safe-to-drink 

 

02-15-17 BOARD Agenda Item 12.E 

Page 4 of 58

http://ktvn.images.worldnow.com/images/7411341_G.jpg�
http://ktvn.images.worldnow.com/images/7411341_G.jpg�
http://ktvn.images.worldnow.com/images/7411341_G.jpg�
http://www.ktvn.com/story/34227827/tmwa-says-water-is-safe-to-drink�
http://ktvn.images.worldnow.com/images/7411341_G.jpg�


Truckee Meadows Water Authority says drinking water 
is safe 

 
By Staff/TMWA Release |  
Posted: Tue 12:40 PM, Jan 10, 2017  |   
Updated: Tue 2:11 PM, Jan 10, 2017  

 
RENO, Nev. (KOLO) - TMWA STATEMENT: 

Truckee Meadows Water Authority (TMWA) wants to assure all TMWA customers that at no time 
during the flood event was the water system ever compromised. The water from TMWA is, and has 
been, safe to drink. Despite flood conditions throughout the Truckee Meadows this last weekend, the 
TMWA delivery system suffered no significant damage.  

“Without a doubt we watch things very closely during a flood event,” said Will Raymond, Water 
Operations Supervisor. “We were definitely in an all-hands-on-deck mode throughout the weekend. 
I’m happy to say we got through it in one piece and our customers can rest assured their water is 
safe to drink.”  

Once again, TMWA wants to emphasize that all customers within their service area should feel 
comfortable and confident that their water was never compromised and the water is safe to drink. 

If there are any questions from TMWA customers regarding water quality, please feel free to contact 
TMWA’s Water Quality department at 834-8118 or waterquality@tmwa.com 

 

02-15-17 BOARD Agenda Item 12.E 

Page 5 of 58

mailto:?subject=Truckee%20Meadows%20Water%20Authority%20says%20drinking%20water%20is%20safe&body=http://www.kolotv.com/content/news/Truckee-Meadows-Water-Authority-says-drinking-water-is-safe-410301195.html�


Recovery and Clean-Up Face Parts 
of Northern Nevada After Flooding 
JANUARY 9, 2017 BY BOB CONRAD 1 COMMENT Email

 

 

Image: Washoe County. 

The region is cleaning up and recovering from flooding that occurred yesterday and 
today. Officials continued to ask the public to stay away from the Truckee River. 
“Teams are working around the clock to assess and document damage,” according to 
Washoe County. “This includes reopening roads, when safe, and turning traffic signals 
back on. The Regional Transportation Commission (RTC) will be offering free rides 
through tonight at midnight.” 
Officials are urging citizens to avoid travel unless it is necessary. Drivers should be 
extra cautious of standing water and debris on roads. 
Residents of Verdi’s River Belle Mobile Home Park are asked to boil water for at least 
10 minutes until further notice. 

“Areas serviced by Truckee Meadows Water Authority are not affected by this warning. 
Water in the Autumn Hills area is safe to drink and the sewage system is fully 
functional,” officials said. 
Road Closures 

The Washoe County Sheriff’s Office is warning the public to pay attention to road signs 
that advise of impassable conditions over Donner Pass. 
Road closure information is posted here: Washoe County’s website
Multiple vehicles have gotten stuck on Henness Pass Road above Dog Valley. 
“This is not a safe I-80 alternate route, despite some GPS directions. WCSO advises 
people to stay in Reno until the road has been cleared,” officials said. 
Southeast Connector 
The Southeast Connector Project saw some flood damage, but according to the RTC, it 
was to be expected. 
“Once the creek water entered the construction site, the water did come into contact 
with stockpiles of soil containing mercury, however those stockpiles were surrounded 
with berms of soil without mercury,” said the RTC’s Michael Moreno. “A total of 12 
stockpiles of soil containing mercury are located between South Meadows Parkway and 
Mira Loma Drive. …It appears 11 of the 12 stockpiles are undamaged. 
“One stockpile appears to have had a partial failure of the clean soil berm. However, we 
are unable to ascertain the degree of contact, if any, of the actual stockpile of soil 
containing mercury which may have experienced erosion. Once the floodwater recedes, 
the project team will be able to more closely inspect and assess the situation,” Moreno 
added. 
He stressed that mercury  concentrations are likely to be lower that what occurs 
naturally in Steamboat Creek. 
“We do not expect there to be a risk to the public health and the environment,” he 
explained 

02-15-17 BOARD Agenda Item 12.E 

Page 6 of 58

http://thisisreno.com/author/bob/�
http://thisisreno.com/2017/01/recovery-clean-face-parts-northern-nevada-flooding/#comments�
mailto:?subject=Recovery%20and%20Clean-Up%20Face%20Parts%20of%20Northern%20Nevada%20After%20Flooding&body=The%20region%20is%20cleaning%20up%20and%20recovering%20from%20flooding%20that%20occurred%20yesterday%20and%20today.%20Officials%20continued%20to%20ask%20the%20public%20to%20stay%20away%20from%20the%20Truckee%20River.%20%22Teams%20are%20working%20around%20the%20clock%20to%20assess%20and%20document%20damage%2C%22%20according%20to%20Washoe%20County.%20%22This%20includes%20reopening%20roads%2C%20when%20safe%2C%20and%20turning%20traffic%20signals%20back%20on.%20The%20Regional%20Transportation%20Commission%20%28RTC%29%20will%20be%20offering%20free%20rides%20through%20tonight%20at%20midnight.%22%20Officials%20are%20urging%20citizens%20to%20avoid%20travel%20unless%20it%20is%20necessary.%20Drivers%20should%20be%20extra%20cautious%20of%20standing%20water%20and%20debris%20on%20roads.%20Residents%20of%20Verdi%27s%20River%20Belle%20Mobile%20Home%20Park%20are%20Read%20here%3A%20http%3A%2F%2Fbit.ly%2F2jwVwmG�
https://i2.wp.com/thisisreno.com/wp-content/uploads/2017/01/truckee-river-flood.jpeg�


 

 

Sutcliffe Without Running Water 
Posted: Jan 11, 2017 10:46 PM PST <em class="wnDate">Thursday, January 12, 2017 1:46 AM EST</em>Updated: Jan 11, 2017 10:46 
PM PST Residents in Sutcliffe are still without running water and the timeline for a permanent fix is still up in the air. 

Anyone who does not live in the area is asked to stay away while the community recovers. All fishing and recreation 
is closed at the lake until further notice. 

William R. Crutcher says he got power back at his house around 7 p.m. Tuesday night after it went out Monday, but 
his faucets are still dry.  

His home of 35 years is just one in Sutcliffe with no running water. He and his wife can't do chores like the dishes or 
laundry and until recently, couldn't flush the toilet.  

As a local firefighter, Kenny Phoenix is using water, not to fight flames, but help residents. He is going around the 
neighborhood filling jugs of non-potable water for people to use. He's focusing on homes with children or elderly or 
handicapped residents. 

"At this point in time, our priority is water. To restore water," says Alan Mandell, Vice-Chairman of the Pyramid Lake 
Paiute Tribe. 

The timeline for getting the water restored is up in the air. The pump house that fills the tanks supplying Sutcliffe's 
water is inaccessible.  

"We can't get to it to fix it," says Mandell, "so they have a couple of solutions that they're looking at to try and get 
some water in those tanks." 

A liaison with the state emergency management visited the area Wednesday to assess damages. Donated bottled 
water is available for residents and the Red Cross is sending out case workers to homes starting Thursday.  

The Nevada Department of Transportation says it will take an "extreme" amount of work to repair Highway 446. Flood 
water washed out the road forcing people to take a 90 minute detour from Sutcliffe to Nixon. 

Heavy equipment helped clear mud and debris off of Sutcliffe Dr. With no vegetation left after the Tule fire this 
summer, there was little to nothing stopping water from rushing into the community.  

"The rain, the fire, it's just been a dramatic year here so far and we've all stuck together and we're handling it, which 
is great," says Crutcher. 

Tribal members and officials held a community meeting Wednesday night. Most residents worried about the water 
problems, as well as access to health services with Highway 446 out.  

Officials discussed solutions like bringing in two large portable shower units for the community, mobile health clinics, 
and van/shuttle service to get medications to people and people to appointments if they need assistance. 

"There's a lot of departments," says Mandell, "both tribal departments and and outside agencies that have contributed 

greatly to the efforts." 

Anyone that needs information should call the tribe's flood hotline at (775) 574-1000. 

 

02-15-17 BOARD Agenda Item 12.E 

Page 7 of 58



Water master elated by storms’ gifts to Reno, 
Tahoe  

BENJAMIN SPILLMAN 

BSPILLMAN@RGJ.COM 

Chad Blanchard is not a man prone to colorful language. 

Blanchard is the federal water master in Reno who oversees sharing of the Truckee 
River between towns, tribes, farms and wildlife. 

The job requires a negotiator’s ear for word choice. 

But when it comes to describing the amount of water that’s flowed into Lake Tahoe 
and the Truckee River basin in recent days even Blanchard slips into superlatives. 

“We have had a supreme year, a wonderful year so far before this,” Blanchard said 
Tuesday morning. “But including this event it has been great.” 

Here are some of the numbers that have Blanchard, and others who watch water for a 
living, so impressed. 

Since Oct. 13, Lake Tahoe’s lowest point for the year, about 72 billion gallons flowed 
into the lake. Of that, more than 39 billion has come since Jan. 1. 

That equates to about 222,000 acrefeet of water. An acre-foot is enough to serve an 
entire household for a year. 

The impressive inflows have pushed the lake level up nearly 1.9 feet in the nearly 
three months since Oct. 15. It typically takes an entire year for the lake to rise that 
much. 

“It is an extreme amount of water we have seen,” Blanchard said. 

The big numbers don’t stop at theshore of Lake Tahoe. 

The snowpack in the Truckee River basin is up to 163 percent of normal as of 
Tuesday. At the SNOTEL site at Mt. Rose Ski Tahoe it’s at 204 percent of normal, the 
sixth highest level it’s been at since 1980, according to Jeff Anderson, hydrologist for 
the Natural Resources Conservation Service. Precipitation this water year, a period 
that starts Oct. 1 and ends Sept. 30, is at 206 percent of normal in the Truckee River 
basin. The only years with a better start were 1997 and 1982, according to Anderson. 
And all this water doesn’t include snow that’s currently dumping on the region. 

The National Weather Service in Reno reported that in the 24 hours ending late 
Tuesday morning 38 inches of snow fell at Mt. Rose Ski Tahoe, 36 inches fell at 
Northstar on the north side of the lake and 23 inches at Kirkwood on the south side of 
the lake. There are more storms on the way during the coming two weeks. How much 
moisture they deliver and the number and intensity of storms that follow will determine 
whether the region ends the winter with small or modest drought relief or whether 
Blanchard will keep using superlatives. 

 
Copyright © Reno Gazette-Journal, a Gannett Newspaper. Use of this site signifies your 
agreement to the Terms of Service and Privacy Policy/Your California Privacy Rights, 
updated 03/12/07 

 

02-15-17 BOARD Agenda Item 12.E 

Page 8 of 58

mailto:BSPILLMAN@RGJ.COM


Creating Nature from Our Flood Waters 

Posted: Jan 12, 2017 1:19 PM PST <em class="wnDate">Thursday, January 12, 2017 4:19 PM EST</em>Updated: Jan 12, 2017 1:50 PM 
PST <em class="wnDate">Thursday, January 12, 2017 4:50 PM EST</em>  

  

 

Besides the havoc and damage our floods have caused, at least they provided the first real test for the Truckee River 
Restoration Project, a huge 14-year effort to bring nature back along 11 miles of the river. Chris Sega, the project 
manager for the Nature Conservancy, told us it was a massive undertaking: "It was pretty daunting at first when I 
started working here. The scale of it was very large." 

We saw it for ourselves last year. We watched as bulldozers and excavators moved 100,000 tons of dirt, lowering the 
ground alongside the river between the Tracy Power Plant and USA Parkway east of Sparks. On days like these the 
river is full and active, only this time with a new floodplain. Come spring, the area alongside the river will all be muddy 
ground…perfect conditions to grow all the cottonwoods and thickets to bring back nature. Sega pointed out where the 
new forest will grow: "This area in here is where we've lowered the floodplain on the north side of the channel.” 

For Sega, the first flood waters over the last few days gave all the answers he has wanted for 14 years since the 
project first began. "It functioned as expected. Yeah, it's good." 

The work was finished a month ago, just in time for the storms. The new lowered floodplain is covered in water for the 
first time, working as it should. Preventing floods is not even the Nature Conservancy's prime objective. The group 
brings things back to nature. For the river, that meant returning it to its original design. As Sega told us, "We're going 
to create a surface here that will grow new riparian forests." 

Come spring, they'll bring seeds out for when this is muddy ground. A thicket of cottonwoods and willows will then 
take over. Even that, he said, helps flood control: "The roots of the trees and things will anchor the floodplain and 
keep things from moving around too much down here." The trees will then bring back the birds and wildlife. The clock 
will be set back over 100 years there with water spreading naturally over land, nature's original flood control…all part 
of the plan. 

There's more online on the Truckee River Restoration Project…what it costs, how to donate, the upcoming re-
vegetation and more. 

Click the link below: 

http://www.nature.org/ourinitiatives/regions/northamerica/unitedstates/nevada/placesweprotect/truckee-river-project 

 

02-15-17 BOARD Agenda Item 12.E 

Page 9 of 58

http://ktvn.images.worldnow.com/images/12901720_G.png�
http://ktvn.images.worldnow.com/images/12901720_G.png�
http://www.nature.org/ourinitiatives/regions/northamerica/unitedstates/nevada/placesweprotect/truckee-river-project.xml�
http://ktvn.images.worldnow.com/images/12901720_G.png�


Reno's irrigation ditches fail during floods, 
damaging homes 
Anjeanette Damon , adamon@rgj.com Published 6:00 a.m. PT Jan. 13, 2017 | Updated 43 
minutes ago 
When Craig DePolo got up in the middle of the rainstorm about 1 a.m. Sunday to check on the 
irrigation ditch that runs behind his property, he saw just a trickle of water along the bottom. 

Twelve hours later, the water roared through the Steamboat Ditch, coming within inches of its 
rim. Just down the road from DePolo's Vincent Lane home, the ditch would actually breach, 
sending torrents of floodwater through the ranches dotting Quilici Drive and the surrounding 
area. 
"We just started making sandbags," DePolo said, describing how neighbors formed teams to help 
protect each other's properties in the foothills above southwest Reno, rushing from one critical 
area to the next to fight the floodwaters. 

The residents ignored the county's call to evacuate the area. 

 

"We were going to stay and fight," DePolo said. "We figured it was up to us." 
DePolo, a researcher at the Nevada Bureau of Mines and Geology, knew well what could happen 
to that ditch as the massive rainstorm hit Reno and the Sierra. In addition to studying the 
hydrology of Reno’s ditch network, DePolo was here in 2005, when a similar storm caused 
breaches and run-overs, flooding dozens of homes in southwest Reno. 
He and his neighbors on Vincent Lane were able to keep the water out of their houses this year. 
Not everyone was so lucky. 
Leanna Ranieri and her fiancé Kit Carson launched a similar attack against the floodwater 
coming from the Last Chance Ditch that runs behind their home on Pineridge Drive. They 
deployed more than 100 sandbags and draped the back of their house with heavy-duty tarp, but 
the young couple still ended up with a flooded kitchen and master bedroom, and three feet of 
water in their basement. 
There was just no fighting the deluge. 
“There’s dirt and mud all over the floor in the basement. Our cabinets are ruined. The kitchen 
floor is bowing already,” Ranieri said. “I am at a loss for words. That’s my home. We literally 
just moved there.” 
Sunday was the second time in just over a decade that the area experienced a catastrophic failure 
of the ditch system, which both Washoe County and the city of Reno rely on as part of their 
storm water systems. 

Flood water bursts through a retaining wall in Leanna Ranieri's home in southwest Reno. (Photo: 
Provided by Leanna Ranieri) 

02-15-17 BOARD Agenda Item 12.E 

Page 10 of 58

http://www.rgj.com/staff/10359/anjeanette-damon/�
http://inread-experience.teads.tv/�


 

Storm water overflowed from each of the three ditches that form the storm water systems: Lake, 
Last Chance and Steamboat. Water rushed down Aquila Avenue, Sagittarius Drive, Bermuda 
Circle, Manzanita Lane, Lakeside Drive and other streets Sunday afternoon. 
It ended up in homes on Pineridge Drive and basements along Aquila Avenue. It washed away 
driveways and pasture land throughout southwest Reno. 

The worst breach occurred on Steamboat Ditch, prompting emergency officials to call for the 
voluntary evacuation of hundreds of homes in the area of Quilici Drive. 

 
 
 

The ditches date back to the 1860s, when ranchers in south Reno needed irrigation water from 
the Truckee River. Still today the ditches, which are owned by private companies, carry 
irrigation water in the spring and summer to agricultural land before ending in the Steamboat 
Creek. 
As Reno grew, the ditches also began to collect the city and county’s storm water, as well as 
continuing to collect runoff from the hills. 

About 15 years ago, the city of Reno formalized its relationship with three of the 11 active ditch 
companies, entering into agreements that cemented the 150-year-old ditches as part of the 
community’s storm water conveyance system. 
Washoe County also has similar agreements with various ditch companies. 
Under the agreements, the governments pay the ditch companies for part of their maintenance 
costs. For instance, in 2015, Reno paid the three companies a total of $327,000. Those 
agreements also indemnify the ditch companies from any damages caused by storm water, 
placing the liability on the city. 

The agreements have had their benefits, said Councilwoman Naomi Duerr, who also sits on the 
board of the Lake Ditch Co. 
For instance, the ditches are now cleaned out twice a year, in the spring and fall, instead of once. 
The city also works to ensure the ditches are free of debris and are in good shape before major 
storms such as Sunday's. 

Buy Photo 

Water from the Steamboat Ditch floods Sagittarius Drive in Reno. (Photo: Anjeanette 
Damon/RGJ) 

Reno public works director John Flansberg said city crews spent the days before this recent 
storm ensuring all of the spillway gates were open and clear so that water could flow as freely as 
possible in the storm. 

02-15-17 BOARD Agenda Item 12.E 

Page 11 of 58

javascript:bouncex.close_ad(424485);�
javascript:bouncex.close_ad(424485);�
javascript:bouncex.close_ad(424485);�
javascript:bouncex.close_ad(424485);�
javascript:bouncex.close_ad(424485);�


That didn't necessarily happen before the agreements, Duerr said. 
We're very lucky to have these relationships (with the ditch companies)," Duerr said. "It's not 
something we've had before." 
DePolo said that work was evident when the floodwater came Sunday. 

"Reno has been really aggressive about cleaning the ditches," DePolo said. "They took this storm 
110 percent seriously." 

Despite the work, the storm was too much for the ditches, which were never intended to act as a 
storm drain when they were built. 
Councilwoman Jenny Brekhus said it's time for the city to rethink its reliance on the ditches. 
"These ditches are almost historic and antique," Brekhus said. "And they were designed for a 
different purpose." 
While the Truckee River has always been the focus for flood planning, Brekhus said the city 
needs to pay more attention to the ditches, as well. Flooding from the ditches affects 
neighborhoods throughout the city and unincorporated county. Often, residents are unaware of 
the danger, believing they live out of harm's way because they aren’t in the path of the Truckee 
River. 
"Reno needs to look inward to its neighborhoods with its ditches and place a priority on that," 
she said. 

A few months ago, Duerr said, the city did an initial look at what it would cost to create a storm 
water district. The rough estimate: $100 million. 
"That would require tearing up streets, putting in pipe, acquiring right of way, repaving streets," 
Duerr said. 

Flansberg said the ultimate price tag could be much more. 

If the city insists on using the ditches as a storm water system, it should make sure homeowners 
are protected from overflows, Ranieri said. 
“They need to build a wall behind all the houses that protects the houses or something,” she said. 
“The city should be providing this for our community.” 

Leanna Ranieri and Kit Carson ended up with feet of water in their basement from the flooded 
Last Chance Ditch. (Photo: Provided by Leanna Ranieri) 

Her property, which the couple had just purchased in August, was so inundated that the water 
came up out of the soil, as well as cascading over the ground. 

02-15-17 BOARD Agenda Item 12.E 

Page 12 of 58



 

“It was going through the ground and flooding our entire property,” she said. “It was just gushing 
down. There was no way we could stop it.” 
Ranieri said the couple did not have flood insurance because they aren’t in a flood zone. She’s 
not sure how they will find the money to repair their home. 
Norm Dianda, president of the Last Chance Ditch Co., said both the city and his company 
constantly monitor and maintain the ditch. 

Dianda said he personally walked the ditch Saturday and Sunday, along with a crew of two 
maintenance people. They cleared grates and spillways. When the ditch overflowed near Evans 
Creek on Lakeside Drive, they used heavy equipment to remove the blockage. 

“The ditch company puts everything forward to make sure doing everything we can and the city 
and county do the same,” he said. “But there comes a point when Mother Nature is just too 
strong.” 
During storms in 1986, he said, one homeowner’s “whole backyard slid right into the ditch and 
blew the bank out.” 

“I don’t know if you could ever get it all done to guarantee there would never be flooding,” he 
continued. “That would be an impossible chore.” 
Dianda, who lives in the Quilici Drive area that saw evacuations because of the Steamboat Ditch, 
said this storm produced more runoff than he’s seen in his lifetime. 
“I have been living on Holcomb Ranch Road for 50 years and I’ve never seen the creeks run as 
high as they ran this time,” he said. “And once there is so much water, it can’t get through.” 
The city of Reno is still assessing storm damage. Flansberg said crews would eventually make it 
out to assess where the ditches failed and why. 

The Last Chance Ditch nears its rim on Pineridge Drive in southwest Reno. (Photo: Anjeanette 
Damon/RGJ) 

“I would say in the overall, yes, I have been concerned with the ditches and that being a major 
storm water backbone for the city,” he said. “What we will do is look at the locations we had 
failures, what was the cause and then determine what types of projects we could put in that might 
mitigate those locations where we had issues.” 
Short of putting in a whole new storm water system, the city could install more drains or 
spillways to help take the pressure off the ditches, Duerr said. 
Even that can be expensive. On Wednesday, for instance, the council approved a $4.1 million 
storm water drain project for the Highland Canal in northwest Reno. That project, necessary to 
protect the Chalk Bluff water treatment plan from storm water, is funded mostly by the Truckee 
Meadows Water Authority. 
Still, Brekhus said, it’s time to come up with a better solution for southwest Reno. 
“There comes a time where you have to take big city approaches, and a big city approach is 
setting up a storm water district,” Brekhus said. 

32 CONNECTTWEETLINKEDINCOMMENTEMAILMORE 

02-15-17 BOARD Agenda Item 12.E 

Page 13 of 58



 
 

Anatomy of a flood: How a a three-day flood 
receded in Reno-Sparks  
Siobhan McAndrew , smcandrew@rgj.com Published 5:47 p.m. PT Jan. 13, 2017 | Updated 
10:59 p.m. PT Jan. 13, 2017 

 

Student employee Mallory Goodrick feeds livestock after they were returned to the University of 
Nevada, Reno Farm following the flooding of the Truckee River this past weekend on Jan. 10, 
2017.(Photo: JASON BEAN/RGJ, RENO GAZETTE-JOURNAL-USA TODAY 
NETWORK)Buy Photo 

For four days, 400 cattle stood in the thick brown mud on higher ground. They were wet, cold 
and tired from the two-mile saunter from flood-prone fields of the University of Nevada, Reno 
main farm station off east McCarran Boulevard in Reno. 

Bo Kindred knows all too well that cows walk slowly. 

It was the third time in three months that he, some students and the cattle made the trek from the 
university's farm in southeast Reno to what is known as Dairy Hill, a three-acre plot that is 
considered safe, but cramped, ground for livestock when there’s a threat of a flood. 

The two previous storms had failed to deliver the expected wallop. This one was different. 

 

Over the last week, what officials called a "perfect storm" overwhelmed Northern Nevada. It 
filled homes with water, left roads washed out and shut schools and state offices.   The recovery 
is still ongoing as storms and snow continue to test the region. 

The threat started a week ago when city and county officials warned of the dangers being set up 
by a weather system that would dump precipitation while temperatures rose.  The Truckee River 
would flood. 

By Friday, Jan. 6, an official emergency command center was operational. Reno and Sparks 
mayors pleaded with residents to stay home and away from water. 

That's  when Kindred, who started working at the university farm bordered by the Truckee River 
and McCarran Boulevard while in college in 1996, made the decision to move his animals 

02-15-17 BOARD Agenda Item 12.E 

Page 14 of 58

http://www.rgj.com/staff/10381/siobhan-mcandrew/�


 
 

 

Livestock is brought back to the University of Nevada, Reno Farm and fed following the 
flooding of the Truckee River this past weekend on Jan. 10, 2017. (Photo: JASON BEAN/RGJ, 
RENO GAZETTE-JOURNAL-USA TODAY NETWORK) 

A storm that could change your life 
Kindred, now an assistant director of the station, oversees an operation that includes beef cattle 
and 50 sheep.  Some cows are sold and some butchered and sold through Wolf Pack meats, a 
processing plant. Others are part of university research on nutrition and vaccines. Sheep are used 
by agricultural students, who are taught how to care for the animals. 

Eight-hundred low-lying acres that are home to the cattle and sheep were likely to flood. 

Reno, Sparks and Washoe County declared states of emergency. Gov. Brian Sandoval vowed 
state support including from the National Guard. 

“What you do during this storm could change your life,” said Washoe County Sheriff Chuck 
Allen. 

Kindred remembers the 2005 flood when 400 sheep drowned. 

“It was tragic,” Kindred said. “We had other fields that were flooding and put those sheep in a 
field that wasn’t flooding. There were about 10 of us in the field trying to get the sheep in rising 
knee-deep water after a levee broke." 

“We were grabbing sheep and dragging them out,” he said. “We never expected that field to 
flood, but when it got dark we knew we couldn’t do anything. We knew it would be bad 
overnight.” 

For the Collins family, being trapped creates worries beyond a full pantry.  

The family’s 5-year-old son Jimmy suffers from life-threatening seizures. 
“Wemade some pretty intensive plans for how we’d care for Jimmy if we got cut off,” Collins 
said. She said it included making sure they had enough of the food for Jimmy's special diet, 
printed recipes instead of relying on the computer and plans if an ambulance was needed but the 
bridge was closed. 

By Saturday night, snow melted across the city. Rain began to fall. 

No knowing what to expect 
It was still raining Sunday morning when people flocked to downtown Reno and neighborhood 
parks along the river to see the rushing water. 

“We don’t know what to expect,” said Jason Sterrett of Northern Nevada Juniors Volleyball. 

His volleyball studio is in the heart of industrial Sparks, where officials said floodwaters could 
be the worst. 

02-15-17 BOARD Agenda Item 12.E 

Page 15 of 58

http://inread-experience.teads.tv/�


 

 

 

“There’s a lot of activity down here. Everyone is waiting to see.” 

Sparks officials feared its industrial area would be hard hit. 

“We are worried,” said Sparks spokesman Adam Mayberry. 

Sparks announced it would close many streets in the city by 1 p.m. 

As Sunday turned to late afternoon, roads began to flood and close around the area. Toll Road in 
south Reno became a river surrounded by large pools of water and mud. 

“It’s like a kayak park here,” said Reno resident Jodi Tenenbaum, who worked with neighbors 
Sunday in Caughlin Ranch to fill sandbags 

A picture of Jodi Tenebaum's backyard in Caughlin Ranch on Sunday, Jan. 8, 2017 (Photo: 
Provided to the RGJ) 

She watched her backyard fill with water. 

“We were well prepared overall but had a lot of challenges” said Washoe County manager John 
Slaughter Sunday.   “I’ll sleep tonight, but who knows what to expect when we wake up." 

While many slept as floodwaters reached peak levels and crested, Steve Coltra worked. 

The foreman for Q&D Construction was stationed on an excavator on downtown’s Sierra Street 
Bridge. 
“It’s a big arm,” said Coltra, who worked overnight Sunday into Monday, clearing debris and 
trees from the flowing river.  He estimates he grabbed the equivalent of 100 trees. 

“I was pulling out large trees, some 40 feet," said Coltra, who would have just seconds upon 
seeing something in the river before he grabbed it with a large claw. 
He said the force of the river surprised him. 
“You could feel the backend of the machine lift off the ground,” he said as he dipped into the 
raging river over and over again. 

“Put the bucket too far in there and the whole thing could tip in the water,” he said. 

Buy Photo 
Red Cross volunteer Alix Txe (Photo: Siobhan McAndrew/RGJ) 

02-15-17 BOARD Agenda Item 12.E 

Page 16 of 58



Alix Txe woke up at Wooster High early Monday morning. 

Txe, an American Red Cross volunteer, started nearly 24 hours earlier helping people check in to 
a shelter at the high school off Plumb Lane in Reno. 

“People who are homeless are in a constant state of emergency,” said Txe. 

Txe stayed through the shelter closing at 7 p.m. as city and county officials praised efforts and 
started assessing damaged areas. 
“For some people now, leaving the shelter, they are back in a state of emergency, even if nothing 
big happened with the flood,” Txe said.  “Now they go back out into uncertain weather.” 

The storm left some families feeling trapped. 

Pam Berek’s street off Toll Road in south Reno has not been passable since storms washed away 
dirt roads in her neighborhood. 
On a private road, Berek said the wheelchair van she uses to transport her teenage son won’t 
make the trip. 

Even the Washoe County School District told Berek the road wasn’t drivable so her son, Carson, 
has not been to school. 
“Even once these storm pass, the damage has been done,” she said. “The road has too much 
damage now.” 

The shelter filled to more than 200 people when volunteers, city officials and police tried to warn 
homeless living along the Truckee River. 

For animals, weather can be stressful. 
“We wanted to get the cattle home as soon as possible,” said UNR’s Kindred. 

He woke up early Tuesday morning to start moving the 400 cattle back home. 

“They are tired and hungry,” he said. “But everything with this went as it should.” 

Buy Photo 

Student employee Mallory Goodrick feeds livestock after they were returned to the University of 
Nevada, Reno Farm following the flooding of the Truckee River this past weekend on Jan. 10, 
2017. (Photo: JASON BEAN/RGJ, RENO GAZETTE-JOURNAL-USA TODAY NETWORK 

02-15-17 BOARD Agenda Item 12.E 

Page 17 of 58



Climate fight takes center stage at Lake 
Tahoe 
Benjamin Spillman , bspillman@rgj.com Published 9:56 a.m. PT Jan. 13, 2017 | Updated 10:31 
a.m. PT Jan. 13, 2017 
Lakeside climate conference exposes political fault lines over 
scientific warnings 

 

California Sen. Kevin DeLeon, who supports aggressive measures to combat human-caused 
climate change, conducts an interview in South Lake Tahoe on Jan. 12, 2017.(Photo: Contributed 
photo) 
There wasn’t much of a crowd when California Sen. Kevin DeLeón took the stage at Harveys 
Lake Tahoe Hotel and Casino for a defiant speech about climate policy during the Donald Trump 
era. 
The speech coincided with a blizzard that was burying the region in snow and making Lake 
Tahoe difficult to access even with a 4x4. 
But neither weather nor small audience diminished the passion DeLeón showed on the issue of 
climate change. 
DeLeón said President-elect Trump, who in 2012 claimed the Chinese created the concept of 
climate change to harm U.S. manufacturing, wouldn’t deter California from aggressive policy 
aimed at drastically cutting fossil fuel emissions to reduce the rate of planetary warming. 
“If you don’t do something about this sooner rather than later there will be an existential threat to 
who we are as a species,” said DeLeón, D-Los Angeles. 
The talk was part of Operation Sierra Storm, a conference for meteorologists from around the 
country. 
DeLeón wasn’t the only one to discuss the issue in apocalyptic terms. 

Also among the speakers was climate scientist Richard Somerville, a climate scientist and 
professor emeritus at Scripps Institution of Oceanography at University of California, San Diego. 
Somerville is also one of the scientists who operate the Doomsday Clock. Created in 1947 the 
clock is a symbolic device scientists use to estimate how close global civilization is to 
apocalypse. 
It was created with atomic bombs in mind but the factors it considers now include nuclear 
proliferation and climate change. 

02-15-17 BOARD Agenda Item 12.E 

Page 18 of 58

http://www.rgj.com/staff/18351/benjamin-spillman/�
http://sd24.senate.ca.gov/�


“Climate change if you don’t do anything about it does threaten humanity,” Somerville said, 
“We have taken control of the climate. We are the ones with our hand on the thermostat and your 
kids and their kids are going to have to deal with it.” 
Scientists have known since the 1800s that the earth’s atmosphere acts as a blanket that traps 
heat, a phenomena known as the greenhouse effect. 
As fossil fuel use has expanded around the globe the burning of fossil fuels contributes to the 
effect by emitting carbon dioxide into the atmosphere which leads to more heat being trapped 
and planetary warming. 
Since 1960 the concentration of carbon in the atmosphere has increased from fewer than 320 to 
nearly 406 parts per million. 

The implications of the current warming rate are daunting. They include catastrophic sea level 
rise, widespread species extinction and conditions so extreme it will be difficult for societies to 
adapt. 

Along with the carbon increase, each decade since the 1960s has been warmer, globally, than the 
previous decade and the three hottest years on record have come since 2014. 

And the key to slowing the problem down, according to Somerville and 97 percent of scientists 
who study the issue, is to drastically reduce the output of carbon dioxide from fossil fuel use. 
“For long-term climate change, the amount of warming depends on the total amount of carbon 
dioxide emitted into the atmosphere by people: past, present and future,” Somerville said. 

Climate scientist and Doomsday Clock operator Richard Somerville interviewed by a Chicago 
television station reporter in South Lake Tahoe on Jan. 12, 2017. (Photo: Contributed photo) 

In the United States federal, state and local governments, along with private companies, have 
made huge efficiency gains when it comes to fossil fuel consumption through everything from 
better buildings to more fuel efficient cars and trucks to increased use of renewable energy 
sources that don’t rely on burning oil, coal or natural gas. 
But previous efforts haven’t been enough to reduce the warming trend to a more tolerable level. 

Last year countries from around the world, including leading carbon emitters such as the United 
States, China and India, signed the Paris Agreement, a voluntary agreement to attempt to limit 
the global temperature increase to 1.5 degrees Celsius above pre-industrial levels. 

During his presidential campaign Trump threatened to cancel the agreement and also pledged to 
increase development of fossil fuels. 

02-15-17 BOARD Agenda Item 12.E 

Page 19 of 58

https://twitter.com/realdonaldtrump/status/265895292191248385?lang=en�
https://twitter.com/realdonaldtrump/status/265895292191248385?lang=en�
http://osstahoe.com/�
http://www.richardsomerville.com/�
http://thebulletin.org/timeline�
https://www.esrl.noaa.gov/gmd/ccgg/trends/�
http://www.climatecentral.org/gallery/graphics/the-10-hottest-years-on-record�


 

Trump also nominated former oil executive Rex Tillerson for Secretary of State and Oklahoma 
Attorney General Scott Pruitt, who as recently as October refused to accept the scientific data 
that shows the burning of fossil fuels is causing the planet to warm too fast for societies to 
readily adapt. 
Members of the Republican party, who as a group have been slower to acknowledge and quicker 
to outright deny climate change findings, also control Congress. 

The promises and controversial nominations have prompted scientists and political leaders who 
recognize the threat of climate change to consider how to proceed without help from the federal 
government. 
“These appointments should come as no surprise given Mr. Trump’s denial of climate science,” 
DeLeón said. “Political leadership is needed now more than ever.” 
DeLeón cited California’s decades-old quest to limit auto emissions, an effort that contributed to 
increased fuel efficiency nationwide as an example of leadership. 

More recently the California Legislature and Gov. Jerry Brown approved Senate Bill 350, a bill 
from DeLeón that calls on California to get half of its energy from renewable sources and double 
energy efficiency in all buildings by 2030. California also recently enacted Senate Bill 32, which 
calls on the state to limit greenhouse gas emissions to 1990 levels by 2020. 

“Our climate leadership is not going to take a back seat to any other state or any other country,” 
DeLeón said in an interview with the Sacramento Bee. 

He said California is seeking support from other non-national governments in the United States 
and beyond. So far, according to DeLeón, 165 jurisdictions in 33 countries on six continents 
have signed memorandums of understanding that outline a path to greenhouse gas reductions. 
Nevada is not on that list. 
The two states share the Sierra Nevada, Lake Tahoe and roughly 600 miles of border. 
And while they do cooperate with federal and local governments on managing Lake Tahoe, 
Nevada hasn’t kept up with California’s aggressive climate goals. 
Assemblyman Justin Watkins, D-Las Vegas, highlighted bill requests that would restore 
incentives for rooftop solar and restrict fracking, a controversial method of extracting fossil 
fuels, in the state as examples of pending legislation that could reduce greenhouse gas output 
from Nevada. 

“The legislative session will have a lot to say about reducing our carbon footprint as a state,” 
Watkins said. 
Watkins also said it’s reasonable for the Legislature to consider more measures, especially if the 
federal government cuts back. 

“If we have a federal government that is no longer willing to carry the water that is why we have 
state law,” Watkins said. 

He said it’s important for political leaders to acknowledge scientific data that shows humans are 
changing the climate. 

02-15-17 BOARD Agenda Item 12.E 

Page 20 of 58

http://climate.nasa.gov/scientific-consensus/�
http://unfccc.int/paris_agreement/items/9485.php�
https://www.theguardian.com/us-news/2016/nov/13/trump-looking-at-quickest-way-to-quit-paris-climate-agreement-says-report�
https://www.donaldjtrump.com/policies/energy�
https://theintercept.com/2017/01/12/rex-tillerson-doesnt-sound-like-a-climate-denier-but-he-acts-like-one/�
http://www.cnn.com/2016/12/13/politics/kfile-scott-pruitt-climate-change-epa/�
https://prod-cdn-static.gop.com/media/documents/DRAFT_12_FINAL%5B1%5D-ben_1468872234.pdf�
https://prod-cdn-static.gop.com/media/documents/DRAFT_12_FINAL%5B1%5D-ben_1468872234.pdf�


But he stopped short of saying the state should increase funding for more academic research on 
the subject or pick up the tab if federal money falls short. 

“It is impractical to say if all federally funded research is cut in the state of Nevada we would 
pick up the tab,” Watkins said. 

Republican Gov. Brian Sandoval cited a litany of efforts by Nevada to improve efficiency in 
energy and water use. 

Sandoval is one of 17 governors, including Brown, to sign the Governors’ Accord for a New 
Energy Future. It’s a pledge to expand the use of clean energy, including in transportation, but it 
doesn’t include greenhouse gas reduction goals like the California legislation. 

Sandoval also signed a bill in 2013 that required the retirement or elimination of 800 megawatts 
of power from coal burning sources. 

It also required 900 megawatts of new power from cleaner sources, including 350 from 
renewables. 

It put Nevada in compliance with proposed requirements of the federal clean power plan. 

But in an email response Sandoval declined to support future federal research and funding into 
the implications of climate change in Nevada, the Great Basin, the Sierra Nevada and across the 
west. 

He also declined to answer whether he thinks the existence of human caused global climate 
change is an area for political debate or whether the conversation should advance to avoidance 
and adaptation. 

Somerville said he’s hopeful the United States will continue the fight on climate change if for no 
other reason an increasing number of citizens across the political spectrum say global warming is 
occurring, it’s mostly caused by human activity and they are worried about it. 

“There are no liberal or conservative thermometers. There are no Republican or Democratic 
satellites,” Somerville said. “Whether to act to meet the challenge of global warming should not 
depend on your politics.” 

 

02-15-17 BOARD Agenda Item 12.E 

Page 21 of 58

http://gov.nv.gov/�
http://www.governorsnewenergyfuture.org/the-accord/�
http://www.governorsnewenergyfuture.org/the-accord/�
https://lasvegassun.com/news/2013/may/17/reid-sandoval-among-heavy-hitters-going-bat-compro/�


A Check Up for the Truckee River 
Posted: Jan 17, 2017 2:16 PM PST <em class="wnDate">Tuesday, January 17, 2017 5:16 PM EST</em>Updated: Jan 17, 2017 2:21 PM 
PST <em class="wnDate">Tuesday, January 17, 2017 5:21 PM EST</em>  
By John Potter 
Email 
Connect 
producers@ktvn.com 

 
  

 

The river flows 121 miles from lake to lake, the lifeblood of the Truckee Meadows…a prime source of irrigation and all 
that it grows in the valleys. Sometimes calm, sometimes fierce…and today churning and rushing after our recent 
bounty from the sky. Today it was visited by a U.S. Geological Survey field crew to find out just how healthy the 
Truckee River is right now after the storms, collecting new stream flow data and watching for potential hazards. 

Wearing a smile while he was watching the noisy rapids near John Champion Park, USGS Hydrologic Technician 
Douglas Hutchinson told us, "Water is very precious in an arid state like Nevada, so every drop counts." 

The results they got today (Tuesday) were very exact. Have you ever heard of the acoustic Doppler River Current 
Profiler? They put the boat-like machine into the river where it measures water velocity, which in turn tells the story of 
how the Truckee is now. Hutchinson described how it works: "It measures the particles in the water as they're going 
by in the flow. It doesn't measure the water. It measures how fast the particles in the water are flowing by." 

Above, up on the footbridge, USGS hydro tech Emil Stockton received the real time numbers via Bluetooth, and 
broke them down for us: "Normal flows this time of year would be around 300-500 CFS. Today it’s coming in about 
1,100 CFS." 

That's cubic feet per second, and a reading more than double what's normal. This area near downtown has been 
used for these measurements since 1906, back when they used a brass instrument to get their numbers. Either way, 
it's an important measurement. They know the information they get here could possibly save lives downstream. 
Hutchinson told us the measurements “are so we can give people a heads up to move their property or themselves 
out of the way of a potential high flow event coming through." 

There are automated gauges up and down the river, reporting water level readings for flood and landslide warnings 
and watches…vital information safeguarding lives and protecting property. The USGS comes out in person every 6 
weeks to get these velocity flow measurements with the $60,000 profiler, always in the same spot for consistent 
readings. Hutchinson says “We’re trying to keep the flow confined into 1 channel. It’s very difficult to try and collect 
data when it’s spread all over the valley." 

Today's verdict? The river's back in the black...an A-plus grade at least for now. 

You can always keep in touch with the Truckee's flow yourself through the USGS website, where you can see all the 
flow numbers from each remote location along the river. Just click below: 

https://waterdata.usgs.gov/nv/nwis/uv/?site_no=10348000&PARAmeter_cd=00065,00060 

 

02-15-17 BOARD Agenda Item 12.E 

Page 22 of 58

mailto:producers@ktvn.com?body=http://www.ktvn.com/story/34281073/a-check-up-for-the-truckee1�
http://www.ktvn.com/story/34281073/a-check-up-for-the-truckee�
mailto:producers@ktvn.com?body=http://www.ktvn.com/story/34281073/a-check-up-for-the-truckee1�
http://ktvn.images.worldnow.com/images/12931657_G.png�
http://ktvn.images.worldnow.com/images/12931657_G.png�
http://ktvn.images.worldnow.com/images/12931657_G.png�
https://waterdata.usgs.gov/nv/nwis/uv/?site_no=10348000&PARAmeter_cd=00065,00060�
http://ktvn.images.worldnow.com/images/12931657_G.png�


Boil water order issued for Sutcliffe 
community near Pyramid Lake 
by News 4-Fox 11 Digital Staff 

Tuesday, January 17th 2017 

 
AA 
SUTCLIFFE, Nev. (News 4 & Fox 11) — A boil water order has been issued for the Sutcliffe community 
effective immediately, according to a statement from the Pyramid Lake Paiute Tribe. 

Officials say residents are discouraged from bathing in the water, but that it is okay for washing clothes and 
dishes. 

Damage from recent flooding disrupted water service in Sutcliffe this past weekend, requiring deliveries from 
the Red Cross and National Guard. 

Tribal officials say water is being "recharged into the system" over the next few days and will have a smell of 
chlorine due to the purification process. 

State Route 446, which connects Sutcliffe to Nixon, remains closed, according to the Nevada Department of 
Transportation.  

Contractors will also be making emergency repairs to Pyramid Highway and State Route 447, or the Gerlach 
Highway, which can result in some delays, an NDOT spokesperson said in a statement. 

Pyramid Lake is still off limits for boating and fishing, with a reopening still to be determined, officials said in 
a statement Tuesday. 

 

02-15-17 BOARD Agenda Item 12.E 

Page 23 of 58

http://mynews4.com/news/local/residents-in-sutcliffe-left-without-water-power-after-flood-damage�
http://mynews4.com/news/local/residents-in-sutcliffe-left-without-water-power-after-flood-damage�
https://twitter.com/plpt/status/821410355087753216�
https://twitter.com/plpt/status/821410355087753216�


Special to NNBW: 
From water to web: TMWA debuts new website from Noble 
Studios 

Heroes to the greater Reno/Sparks area, the water experts at Truckee Meadows Water 
Authority (TMWA) work tirelessly year-round to ensure the highest-quality drinking water to 
more than 385,000 northern Nevada residents. And much like all community-valued 
organizations, effective communication and digital presence matter significantly to their 
business. 

TMWA choose Noble Studios to redesign its website to create a compelling user experience 
that would help to tell its own unique story of customer-focused water service. Noble 
Studios is proud to announce that the all-new TMWA.com has launched. The new website, 
which has been fully redesigned, shines a light on this invaluable organization and what it 
does for the community. 

“Truckee Meadows Water Authority is an organization that we are all passionate about, not 
only because they’re our neighbors, but because our region’s water is an invaluable 
resource in need of a larger spotlight,” said Noble Studios’ CMO and partner Michael 
Thomas in a press release. “It’s a great feeling to be able to bring best practices that we’ve 
learned from working with high-level clients back to our own hometown.” 

The newly branded website is responsive on all devices and features intuitive navigation, 
making it easier for TMWA customers to access important tools and resources. The 
homepage features dynamic widgets designed to illustrate the Truckee River’s ever-
changing water flow and reserves. And, as part the overall content strategy, TMWA.com 
features an all-new blog, which houses articles covering such water-related topics as home 
winterization, facility tours, ongoing workshops and more. 

Noble Studios also provided its photography and videography services to the project. The 
website now includes beautiful imagery and video of the Truckee River as well as TMWA’s 
state-of-the-art facilities and expert researchers, which illustrate the organization’s 
dedication to producing the highest-quality water for its community. 

Headquartered in Reno, Nev., Noble Studios has worked with and continues to support 
other northern Nevada businesses, including the University of Nevada, Reno, the Discovery 
Museum, and most recently, the Reno Sparks Convention and Visitors Authority (RSCVA). 

Experience TMWA’s new website by visiting <http://www.tmwa.com> 

 

02-15-17 BOARD Agenda Item 12.E 

Page 24 of 58

http://www.tmwa.com/�


Normal River Flow Expected Next Two 
Years Thanks to Recent Precipitation 
JANUARY 18, 2017 BY CARLA O'DAY LEAVE A COMMENT 

 

Image: TMWA 

By Carla O’Day 
This year has started off as one of the best for precipitation in recent history for the Reno-Lake 
Tahoe region, and another series of storms expected to hit in the next few days should improve 
the outlook even more, according to the Truckee Meadows Water Authority (TMWA). 
Thanks to above average precipitation this month, more TMWA drought reserves than ever are 
currently in storage, the Lake Tahoe snowpack is about double its average levels, and normal 
Truckee River flows are expected the next two years. 
“The region is experiencing one of the best water starts in recent history,” Bill Hauck, TMWA 
senior hydrologist told board members Wednesday. “At the end of December, snowpack levels 
were starting to fall off a bit. As of this morning, our water supply situation is in really good 
shape.” 

Image: Washoe County. 

Lake Tahoe is about 4.2 inches above its rim, rising more than two inches since October. 
After dealing with drought last year, extraordinary amounts of snow and rain that fell the first 
part of January caused flooding, street closures, school cancellations and potholes, among other 
things. But as rough as it was for commuters, it was as good for the area’s water supply. 

“It wasn’t easy to deal with the drought, but call it a godsend,” said Washoe County 
Commissioner Vaughn Hartung, a TMWA board member 

02-15-17 BOARD Agenda Item 12.E 

Page 25 of 58

http://thisisreno.com/author/carla/�
http://thisisreno.com/2017/01/normal-river-flow-expected-next-2-years-thanks-to-recent-precipitation/#respond�


4 Nevada watersheds receive funding to 
improve water quality 
by News 4-Fox 11 Digital Staff 

Thursday, January 19th 2017 

Share Video 

http://foxreno.com/new s/local/4

 
Share Video  

00:00 
01:07 
  
AA 

RENO, Nev. (News 4 & Fox 11) — Four watersheds in Nevada will receive federal funding to improve 

water quality, the U.S. Department of Agriculture announced on Thursday. 

Sheckler Reservoir, Stillwater Marsh, Soda Lake-Carson River and South Branch-Carson River, all in 

Churchill County, will be the beneficiaries. 

They are four of 197 high-priority watersheds across the U.S. that will receive $33 million, with the 

goal of helping landowners improve the water quality. 

The National Water Quality Initiative helps farmers and ranchers put into place conservation 

practices, like nutrient management and conservation cropping practices. 

 

02-15-17 BOARD Agenda Item 12.E 

Page 26 of 58



NSDC & Heritage Bank of Nevada work to facilitate loan for US 
Geomatics’ Midtown location 

 

US Geomatics, Inc., a Nevada-based corporation providing professional land surveying and 

mapping services for public and private businesses, has purchased a building at 1071 

Haskell Street in the Midtown Reno office and retail district that will serve as new company 

headquarters. 

To finance the $275,000 project, US Geomatics, Inc. (UGI) capitalized on an advantageous 

rate of just 4.091 percent on an SBA loan arranged through Nevada State Development 

Corporation (NSDC). Heritage Bank of Nevada also participated in the financing. 

UGI owner Glen Armstrong says the new location will put the company in a superb position 

to grow while operating more efficiently. 

“Since we opened UGI in 2004, this will be the first time that we have a true fixed operating 

cost that’s going to save us an average of nearly $7,000 a year in rent just for starters,” 

Armstrong said. “Additionally, the layout of this building is going to allow us to grow while 

providing the flexibility we need to grow the business moving forward.” 

As UGI grows and expands, the new property’s basement area can be utilized for additional 

office space while providing storage space for the firm’s present needs, Armstrong pointed 

out. 

“UGI’s new location is in the rapidly redeveloping Midtown Reno office and retail district,” 

said Roger Kadz, Vice President/Business Development Officer with Nevada State 

Development Corporation. “Nobody has a crystal ball, but with a little luck in the real estate 

market, they have an excellent opportunity to turn what would have been rent payments into 

a strong equity position. UGI will likely have an excellent chance of seeing some real 

appreciation over the next several years of business operations.” 

Services provided by UGI include topographic and hydrographic surveys, photogrammetric 

control, remote GPS survey, GIS, resource-grade GPS and data collection, water rights 

surveying and mapping, forensic surveying, aerial topographic surveys, public works and 

engineering support, project planning and management, legal description preparation, and 

ALTA/ACSM land title surveying for all of Nevada, Northern California, and Oregon. 

Clients of UGI include federal, state and local agencies, large- and small-scale utilities 

companies, commercial and residential real estate developers, private landowners, and 

large-scale water rights users. Key customers of the company include The Truckee 

Meadows Water Authority, Ormat Nevada, Inc., and Tectonics Design Group. 

UGI markets through industry-related professional organizations, advertisements in 

industry-specific publications, word of mouth, and a prominent online presence. 

For more information on Nevada State Development Corporation, please visit 

http://www.nsdc.com. 

For more information on US Geomatics, please visit usgeomatics.com 

02-15-17 BOARD Agenda Item 12.E 

Page 27 of 58



What's ahead for the Tahoe Pyramid 
Bikeway  

Janet Phillips 2:45 p.m. PT Jan. 24, 2017  

Construction work starts this summer on the next-to-last stretch of the Tahoe Pyramid Bikeway 
through the Truckee Canyon west of Reno. Engineering work is underway to complete the last 
steep section in 2018. 
When these last four miles are finished, bike riders from Reno will be able to ride to Truckee and 
on to Lake Tahoe, realizing a dream of many local adventurers and creating another tourist draw 
for the region. 
The Truckee Meadows Water Authority opened to the public its utility maintenance road into the 
Truckee Canyon at Verdi in 2013. The trail runs along the canyon walls, through a forest and 
then by the Truckee River starting at the Fleish footbridge. 

The utility road, temporarily closed for construction, is expected to reopen in March. And the 
section near Floriston is now impassable because of mud, fallen rocks and debris left over from 
the Truckee River flood on Jan. 8. Volunteers will be sought for a cleanup of debris and rocks on 
the trail planned for May. 
But an inspection just after the flood showed not a single rock had fallen in a 300-foot section 
built last year across a field of boulders. It is in amazing shape and we are one boulder field 
closer to completion. 
After the cleanup in May, people interested in riding or hiking an intermediate trail may want to 
check out the section from Floriston, through Farad, to the Fleish footbridge. This 6.3-mile 
segment runs along the Truckee River. 
Elsewhere, the Bikeway is closed at the Nature Conservancy east of Reno and Sparks because of 
flood damage, and I suspect the trail at the Pyramid Pauite Indian Reservation is also impassable. 
Returning to the Truckee Canyon, trailwork will begin this spring at Hirschdale Road, below 
Interstate 80 near Boca Reservoir. The trail starts by crossing an old bridge over the river and 
then runs on top of the old roadbed of U.S. 40 for a mile. Then a trail will have to be cut across 
the slopes below Interstate 80 to Iceland, across from the giant log cabin on the other side of the 
canyon. 
Firms interested in construction bidding are now being sought. 
The last two miles, scheduled for 2018 construction, will be very difficult and current plans call 
for a quarter-mile section to be cantilevered off the side of Interstate 80. This is around the big 
curve west of Floriston where CalTrans had to build a retaining wall to hold up the freeway. 
Jonathan Pease, a Reno geotechnical engineer, being assisted by several engineering students 
from the University of Nevada, Reno, is working to locate the trail as close to the Truckee River 
as possible. 

This steep section will take up much of a $2 million federal grant for the last four miles of the 
project. That grant requires $300,000 in matching funds, of which about half was raised last year. 
On the California side of the canyon, the Truckee Donner Recreation and Park District is 
accepting the grant and will be issuing contracts for the work required. 
Volunteers on a non-profit board oversee the Tahoe Pyramid Bikeway project since it began in 
2006. Since then, 93 percent of the money raised by the nonprofit has gone into trail 
construction. 
About 75 percent of a bike route is now open along the Truckee River’s 116-mile journey from 
Lake Tahoe to Pyramid Lake. That includes the work of the Town of Truckee, which opened five 
miles of Legacy trail two years ago, and other agencies in California and Nevada. 

Janet Phillips, based in Reno, is the founder and president of the Tahoe Pyramid Bikeway 

02-15-17 BOARD Agenda Item 12.E 

Page 28 of 58



Where to put the water? 

 

STEVE RANSON / LVN | 

A canal system in the Stillwater area east of Fallon could deliver thousands of acre feet of water to the Stillwater National 
Wildlife Refuge to mitig... 

 

STEVE RANSON / LVN | 
Harmon Reservoir is one of four reservoirs in the valley that has enough storage space for excess runoff if Lahontan 
Reservoir fills up. 
 

STEVE RANSON / LVN | 
Many canals heading east of Fallon are dry but ready to carry excess water if needed. 

02-15-17 BOARD Agenda Item 12.E 

Page 29 of 58

http://www.nevadaappeal.com/news/lahontan-valley/where-to-put-the-water/�
http://www.nevadaappeal.com/wp-content/uploads/2017/01/floodprep-lvn-012717-5.jpg�
http://www.nevadaappeal.com/wp-content/uploads/2017/01/floodprep-lvn-012717-5.jpg�
http://www.nevadaappeal.com/wp-content/uploads/2017/01/floodprep-lvn-012717-5-1.jpg�
http://www.nevadaappeal.com/wp-content/uploads/2017/01/floodprep-lvn-012717-5-1.jpg�
http://www.nevadaappeal.com/wp-content/uploads/2017/01/floodprep-lvn-012717-5-2.jpg�
http://www.nevadaappeal.com/wp-content/uploads/2017/01/floodprep-lvn-012717-5.jpg�
http://www.nevadaappeal.com/wp-content/uploads/2017/01/floodprep-lvn-012717-5-1.jpg�


 

steve ranson / lvn | 
Excessive vegetation in the Carson River could block water to cause localized flooding. 

 

STEVE RANSON / LVN | 
Harmon Reservoir is coming to life with more water. 

STEVE RANSON / LVN | 

The Carson River has the potential to overflow in the county's low-lying areas such as Bafford Lane. 

Since December Lahontan Valley ranchers and farmers have been euphoric because of the 
increasing snowpack in the Sierra Nevada mountain range that will eventually fill Lahontan 
Reservoir. 

STEVE RANSON / LVN | 

Yet, water always presents itself with a good news, bad news scenario. 
First and foremost, farmers expect to have a banner growing year with the abundance of 
water, something they haven’t seen since 2012 when the reservoir filled up. 
Now, the bad news, especially for those who live downstream from the Lahontan Dam. 
Once the snowpack melts and sends cold mountain water rushing down the Carson River to 
Lahontan, the reservoir will rapidly reach capacity, thus triggering a plan to redirect water to 
mitigate any lowland flooding. 

02-15-17 BOARD Agenda Item 12.E 

Page 30 of 58

http://www.nevadaappeal.com/wp-content/uploads/2017/01/floodprep-lvn-012717-5-3.jpg�
http://www.nevadaappeal.com/wp-content/uploads/2017/01/floodprep-lvn-012717-5-3.jpg�
http://www.nevadaappeal.com/wp-content/uploads/2017/01/floodprep-lvn-012717-5-4.jpg�
http://www.nevadaappeal.com/wp-content/uploads/2017/01/floodprep-lvn-012717-5-4.jpg�
http://www.nevadaappeal.com/wp-content/uploads/2017/01/floodprep-lvn-012717-5-2.jpg�
http://www.nevadaappeal.com/wp-content/uploads/2017/01/floodprep-lvn-012717-5-3.jpg�
http://www.nevadaappeal.com/wp-content/uploads/2017/01/floodprep-lvn-012717-5-4.jpg�


 “We’re now at a point to figure out the forecast of how much (precipitation) is in the 
mountain and how much will be coming into the Carson River,” Herwick said. 

Because of the deep snowpack in the Sierra, which ranges upward to 26-feet deep in the 
Lake Tahoe Basin, Churchill County, state and federal officials are juggling with numbers 
and scenarios. Earlier this month, TCID officials shut off water from the Truckee River to the 
Truckee Canal, which also flows into Lahontan, because of an operating agreement. 

Water master Kelly Herwick of the Truckee-Carson Irrigation District is soon to become a 
genie with a magic ball once the water roars down the mountain. 

Bureau of Reclamation hydrologists constantly monitor the added accumulation of water. 
For the time being, water from the Truckee River will keep flowing into Pyramid Lake.  
TCID relies on the lessons learned from previous years when flooding occurred 
downstream from the reservoir and through the Carson River corridor to the Carson Sink 
northeast of Fallon. If Herwick sees the reservoir filling up faster than predicted, he said 
Reclamation then guides TCID on precautionary drawdowns. TCID then follows a 
procedure to send extra water to the Stillwater National Wildlife Refuge in one or all three 
irrigation canals, marshes, reservoirs such as Harmon or Sheckler or Carson Lake south of 
the Greenhead Hunting Club on Pasture Road. 
The fourth and final scenario, he said, is sending the water to the Carson Sink to mitigate 
any potential flooding in low-lying areas. 
“In 2011, we had precautionary drawdown,” Herwick said, noting Lahontan Reservoir had 
about 191,000 acre feet of water on May 1. “We had quite a lot of storage with the reservoir. 
The drawdown worked out pretty good.” 
Each acre-foot of water equals less than 326,000 gallons of water and is enough to cover 
one acre of land one-foot deep.  
A similar scenario occurred during the winter of 1996-97 when a Pineapple Express 
weather pattern from the South Pacific moved over the Sierra in late December 1996, 
melting a substantial snowpack and sending water down the Truckee and Carson rivers that 
flooded low-lying areas from Minden to Fallon. 
Rusty Jardine, TCID’s district manager, said his agency meets weekly with Reclamation via 
videoconferencing to discuss the forecast and modeling done to determine snow totals. 
Additionally, Jardine said TCID is constantly in contact with the National Weather Service. 
Churchill County Sheriff Ben Trotter said similar concerns are occurring now as they did in 
2011 with the spring runoff. He said the flooding upstream on the Carson and Truckee 
rivers combined with the Sierra snowpack are causing officials to evaluate the county’s 
readiness. 
“We are asking for residents who live along the river to make sure you don’t have any cross 
fences in the river or obstructions that would block flow or collect debris when water is 
released into the river later in the year,” Trotter strongly advised. 
Herwick said residents who live near the river should be aware of any structures or debris 
that could impede the river’s flow. 
In 2011, Trotter and local officials issued the same advice and warnings about eyeballing 
the river and reporting any obstructions to TCID or the sheriff’s office. 

Jardine said TCID has applied for a state permit to clear out the river channel of any debris 
and other obstacles from the Carson River 

02-15-17 BOARD Agenda Item 12.E 

Page 31 of 58

http://www.nevadaappeal.com/wp-content/uploads/2017/01/floodprep-lvn-012717-5-5.jpg�
http://www.nevadaappeal.com/wp-content/uploads/2017/01/floodprep-lvn-012717-5-5.jpg�
http://www.nevadaappeal.com/news/lahontan-valley/where-to-put-the-water/#single-carousel�
http://www.nevadaappeal.com/news/lahontan-valley/where-to-put-the-water/#single-carousel�
http://www.nevadaappeal.com/wp-content/uploads/2017/01/floodprep-lvn-012717-5-5.jpg�


THE OPINION OF THE RGJ EDITORIAL BOARD 

Community members tell us the priorities we need to 
focus on 
With Reno’s mayor and Nevada’s governor giving recent speeches on their priorities, 
we took the pulse of what people in our community think. 
This came in the form of seeking public members for the RGJ Editorial Board, which 
operates separately from news coverage and weighs in on key issues affecting the 
community. We asked applicants to tell us what five topics they thought the board 
should focus on in its editorials. 
We tallied the picks from about 125 submissions. Far and away, education was 
considered the most important, with about 60% choosing it. 
Jeff Shaffer, a retired Democrat, said he thinks it is important to follow “the effects of 
the recently passed Washoe county tax increase on the educational system, how the 
monies raised are being used, if the tax increase negatively affected the business 
community and if the school board as newly constituted can start effectively managing 
the system.” 
Others just want to make sure children get a good education. William Esselstein, a 
Republican and former attorney, said the editorial board needs to look at the 
“effectiveness of current education programs in preparing students as citizens, 
parents and productive members of their communities.” 
The second most important issue was keeping an eye on local government. Dan 
Webb, a Reno CPA and Republican, expressed this view colorfully: “The radiant array 
of incompetence and dysfunction of our local boards needs neon.” 
A close third were concerns over growth. Applicants tackled this view from different 
angles. 
For instance, Mia Brink – a Democrat and schoolteacher – said, “Long-time residents 
are noticing a shift in traffic patterns and impatience in what used to be an easy trip to 
the store.” 
Robert D. Parker, a Republican living in Galena Forest Estates and a former 
aerospace executive, said the board should focus on “projected population growth 
and its impact on water supplies.” 
Another worry is that the population boom will affect our quality of life 
An almost equal number of applicants were concerned about issues often linked to 
growth: the environment, economic development and homelessness. 
Jackie McKinney, a Reno Democrat who works at a women’s shelter, said, “The 
homeless population in Reno and Sparks is insanely high and while we have great 
local resources, the organizations cannot accommodate everyone that needs 
assistance. We need to be better community members to those who mann, a Sparks 
carpenter and Republican, said he thinks it is important to continue the growth but 
also to make sure we maintain the “small town vibe” that brought him here in the first 
place. 
Health care was key for about 1 in 5 applicants. Dianne Wright, who has no party 
affiliation but considers herself a fiscal conservative and a social liberal, said she’s 
worried about expected changes to the system because of the new Trump 

02-15-17 BOARD Agenda Item 12.E 

Page 32 of 58



administration. Her words echo something a number of people brought up: 
volunteerism and community involvement. 
Tony Verde, a Midtown resident with independent/ Libertarian leanings, summed it up 
with a question: “How can the diverse talents of individuals/ communities across all 
socio-economic strata be enticed to work together to make Reno not only The Biggest 
Little City in the World but more importantly: The Best Little City to Live and Work In.” 
This desire to work together was mentioned by 1 in 6 applicants under the label of 
improving public discourse in a toxic political environment. 
Even for those who did not prioritize bringing people together rather than separating 
into political rivalries, a large segment of applicants expressed the desire to listen 
more than they talk and to understand rather than judge. 
Deno Paolini, a rightleaning independent voter and former small-business owner in 
Reno, said it this way: “I believe in building consensus while listening and valuing the 
ideas and opinions of others.” 
If these applicants are at all representative of this community, the RGJ Editorial Board 
is likely to reach its goal of moving the conversation forward on important issues 
affecting Northern Nevada. 
“I was denied health insurance when trying to move to Nevada due to a pre-existing 
condition,” she said. have nothing left.” 
 

02-15-17 BOARD Agenda Item 12.E 

Page 33 of 58



California Water Diverters Scramble to Satisfy 
New Reporting Rules 
Regulations adopted in 2015 require water-rights holders 
to gather better information on their diversions and 
report it more frequently. Attorney Amy Steinfeld helps 
shed light on the complicated new rules. 

Written byMatt Weiser 

 

Published onσ Jan. 27, 2017 Read time Approx. 6 minutes 

 

Rudy Mussi watches his grandson, Lorenzo, as the boy tries to turn a water valve on the family’s almond orchard in the Sacramento-San 

Joaquin Delta near Stockton, Calif., in March 2015. Thousands of farmers like Mussi, and many other water users, are working to meet new 
requirements to report more information on their water diversions to help the state manage water resources more closely.Rich Pedroncelli, 
Associated Press  

A crucial deadline passed quietly on January 1 that has big repercussions for the future of California’s water. 

It was the first of several deadlines that enforce  for water diverters to precisely measure and report the amount of water 
they take from the state’s streams. Some 12,000 people and businesses that hold state water rights, large and small, are bound by the 
new rules. 

new requirements

These water users were required in the past to report their water use. But there were few requirements to ensure accurate reporting. As a 
result, the information reported to the state has been spotty, unreliable and difficult to access. 

All this came to light during the drought, as state officials found they didn’t have solid information to guide their conservation efforts. 

The new reporting rules are more complicated, creating some confusion for water diverters. Fortunately Amy Steinfeld, an attorney at the law 
firm Brownstein Hyatt Farber Schreck, developed a handy infographic cheat sheet to help clients and others understand what’s required and 
when. Water Deeply recently interviewed Steinfeld, who is based in Santa Barbara, for the lowdown on these regulations. 

Water Deeply: Can you sum up these rules for us? 

 
Santa Barbara-area attorney Amy Steinfeld is helping clients and others understand what’s required of water diverters after a new law takes 
effect. (Photo Courtesy Amy Steinfeld, Brownstein Hyatt Farber Schreck) 

02-15-17 BOARD Agenda Item 12.E 

Page 34 of 58

https://www.newsdeeply.com/water/agriculture
https://www.newsdeeply.com/water/law-policy
https://www.newsdeeply.com/water/management-supply
https://www.facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u&src=sdkpreparse
https://www.newsdeeply.com/water/contributor/matt-weiser


The third piece is really a placeholder that gives the state board authority to allow for increased reporting. If, for example, the drought 
continues, the state board has the ability to require more frequent reporting if they find annual reporting is not adequate. 

With the measurement changes, there are two ways to comply. You can install and certify a measurement device, and the state board has 
given all kinds of examples. Or if you don’t want to install a measuring device on each diversion, you can come up with your own 
measurement method as long as you can certify that method meets the requirements. So if you’re a really big diverter, you can have a 
professional certify your measuring device or method is actually accurate to about 10 percent. 

Water Deeply: Why are these new rules needed? 

Amy Steinfeld: There are really three pieces to this new law that I think not everyone is really aware of. The first piece is that it requires more 
accurate measurement of diversions for all water right holders. Second, it requires all water users to report their water use annually. 
Previously, if you had a small livestock pond you only had to report every three years. So it’s quite a change for some users. 

Steinfeld: This law is bringing water users into the 21st century with their reporting. The state is no longer allowing you to send water 
diversion reports in via the mail. You have to go online and submit electronically. California is not the first to do this. Colorado has actually 
gone a step further by requiring real-time reporting. 
Of course, it was really the drought that spurred this on and produced the need for real-time accurate data. Because in 2015, the water board 
called for water users to predict what they were going to divert and report back on actual use. But what they got back, apparently, was 
insufficient for their purposes. So at that point, the state realized they needed to come up with some consistent way to make sure people had 
some accurate reporting device. So they devised these very complicated regulations where everyone would be required to comply and it would 
be a uniform way of monitoring compliance. 

Water Deeply: Will these regulations encourage conservation? 
Steinfeld: I think just by using newer technology, yes. You could be aware of how, for example, your water use was increasing if you are 
diverting from a lake or river. You could know very accurately how much you are using on a golf course on a particular day and correlate that 
with the temperature that day. So it may allow your land manager to make more precise decisions about how much water you actually need 
on a given day. Because if you’re just measuring water on a monthly basis, it’s really hard to get a handle on your hourly or daily use. So it 
may influence some decisions on how you’re actually using water. 

Water Deeply: Are these rules a hardship for water diverters? 
Steinfeld: Public agencies and investor-owned utilities, they have very sophisticated ways of measuring their water diversions because they 
provide water to the public. It’s really the smaller clients we’re hearing concerns from – small farmers, cattle ranchers and also wineries that 
have, for example, small ponds on their property. Not only do you have to now go out and hire a professional, you also have to pay for the 
device, you have to pay for someone to certify it and you have to pay for someone to maintain it. 
Also, if you’re going to be doing any work in a streambed to install the device, you may have to get a state permit and a local permit for that 
work. They are requirements for everyone who diverts over 10 acre-feet [around 12,000 cubic meters] annually, so it’s a pretty low threshold. 
It does present a drastic change, I would say in the way water users operate. 
There are potential fines of $500 per day for noncompliance. It is a lot. We’ve heard the state board is going to give some people time to 
comply because they understand this is a big change. 

Water Deeply: How much does it cost to comply? 
Steinfeld: The measurement requirement is not new. The piece that’s new is that you must do it using a certified measuring device. A lot of 
existing users may have something installed, for example, on their canal gate. They may have an existing flow meter. If you’re one of the lucky 
ones and your existing measuring device actually meets all these requirements, all you have to do is get a contractor to certify your device. If 
that’s the case, it would be a few hundred dollars. But for the large diverters, it could be up to $20,000, especially if you have a reservoir. It’s 
much more complex if you have storage on your property. 
There’s also the ongoing measuring and maintenance costs. Unless you’re going to put an automated system in, if you divert over 500 acre-
feet [around 600,000 cubic meters], the requirement is to measure on a daily basis. So you’re going to have to have one of your farm workers 
go out there and keep the written log every single day. So it’s also going to increase your staff time. And some farms may not have someone on 
the property on a daily basis. 
Once people get past the initial concern about how expensive and onerous this is, I think it’s going to help individual users make better water 
decisions for themselves. There are these great automated systems out there to ease your ability to keep these records – and I assume they’re 
pretty expensive. They transmit electronically to your laptop, and you’re able to download them on a regular basis. We have some clients 
looking at that because that’s going to take the guesswork out of it. 

Water Deeply: What else are you hearing from clients? 
Steinfeld: A lot of people believe this is an intrusion into private property rights. What’s different about this law is that it applies to existing 

water users, including people who may have been using water for over 100 years. So I can see how people see this as an invasion of 

property rights. Also, if you have a farmer who is also pumping groundwater, they were just hit with the Sustainable Groundwater 

Management Act and this huge change in how groundwater is managed. And there are quite a few farmers who utilize both surface water 

and groundwater. So they’re being hit on both ends. 

Water Deeply: Given all this effort, do you feel this information 
will be useful to the state? 
Steinfeld: I think so. It’s important for future policy and planning decisions. And also, it’s going to help water users protect their senior rights. 
Especially when you have a very sensitive stream system that may not have sufficient flows for all users, its going to help these users 
maintain their senior water rights and identify the junior users who perhaps cannot pump during certain seasons. 

Overall, with the prolonged drought, we no longer have the luxury of wasting water. So I think this is really going to help the state and its 
people understand water use through more accurate measurement, and also help the state understand climate change and how the drought 
is impacting various stream systems. I don’t imagine a lot of this data will actually see the light of day. It’s just too much information for 
anyone to absorb. But I think its in line with what other Western states are doing. It’s taking the water industry and water users into the 21st 
century. It’s no longer something we can just have a guessing game about. 

Never miss an update. Sign up here for our Water Deeply newsletter to receive weekly updates, special reports and featured insights on 
one of the most critical issues of our time. 

02-15-17 BOARD Agenda Item 12.E 

Page 35 of 58

http://www.waterboards.ca.gov/waterrights/water_issues/programs/diversion_use/water_use.shtml
http://www.bhfs.com/Templates/media/files/SB%2088%20Measurement%20Infographic_1417_010517.pdf


Wild Ride Awaits for Water Issues Under Trump 
Like his vow to build a border wall, Trump’s promises 
around water issues will be difficult to fulfill. And the 
path to get there could be disruptive for water agencies 
and the environment. 
Written byMatt Weiser 

 

Published onσ Jan. 20, 2017 Read time Approx. 8 minutes 

 

Donald Trump toured the Flint Water Plant and Facilities, on Wednesday, Sept. 14, 
2016, in Flint, Mich. He has vowed to triple funding for a federal loan program to help 
local agencies upgrade their water infrastructure.Evan Vucci, Associated Press  

Donald Trump made some big campaign promises about water during his election 
campaign. Now that he has been elected president, those promises could dramatically 
shake up how water is managed in the arid West. 

In one of his few direct statements about water, Trump has said he wants to invest in 
treatment systems to prevent problems caused by aging distribution lines, citing as an 
example the drinking-water contamination in the Michigan city of Flint. To do this, he 
proposes to triple funding for a federal loan program, called the state revolving fund, 
from the current $2 billion to $6 billion. 

This could be a boon to local water and wastewater utilities struggling to pay for 
decaying infrastructure. 

Paradoxically, Trump has also vowed to slash Clean Water Act regulations. In 
particular, he is targeting rules adopted by the Obama administration to protect 
wetlands and marshes, the nation’s natural water filters. 

Like Trump’s vow to build a wall on the Mexican border, these proposed changes would 
encounter a host of inconvenient realities associated with government. Working that out 
is certain to be disruptive, whatever the outcome. 

“Certainly what we’re hearing out of the Trump administration is encouraging to the 
water utility sector,” said G. Tracy Mehan, executive director of government affairs at 
the American Water Works Association. “But I don’t know how you triple the state 
revolving fund. There’s just a lot of unknowns.” 

02-15-17 BOARD Agenda Item 12.E 

Page 36 of 58

https://www.newsdeeply.com/water/contributor/matt-weiser


But Mehan – who was an assistant administrator for water programs at the EPA during 
the George W. Bush administration – said adding $4 billion to the loan program would 
be a tall order; it would require cutting a similar amount from other government 
programs. Mehan said it’s “really unclear” how that will happen in a Congress that fights 
to protect every dollar spent on existing programs. 

Trump also plans to convince private investors to spend $1 trillion on public 
infrastructure projects. He claims he can entice them to do this by giving them generous 
tax credits. 

But Mark Lubell, director of the Center for Environmental Policy and Behavior at the 
University of California, Davis, said tax breaks are not enough to drive that kind of 
investment because there is no profit being offered. 

“They’re not going to invest in a flood management system, for example, where they get 
no revenue from somebody – even with the tax breaks,” Lubell said. “That’s where we 
need to convince the Trump officials that a more traditional infrastructure plan is 
consistent with their strategy.” 

The AWWA, based in Denver, CO, has identified a need to spend $1 trillion rebuilding 
the nation’s drinking water systems over the next 25 years – just to maintain existing 
levels of service. The state revolving fund, a federal low-interest loan program overseen 
by the Environmental Protection Agency, is the backbone of infrastructure funding for 
water utilities. 

The way to do that, he said, is to highlight the economic benefits that come with building 
environmental infrastructure. Projects like levee construction, floodplain restoration, 
modern water lines and sewage treatment facilities all support thousands of jobs; they 
foster domestic manufacturing and protect the nation from disasters and health crises 
that harm economic productivity. 

“If you connect those issues to climate change or endangered species, I don’t think 
that’s going to fly in a new Trump administration,” Lubell said. “But what would fly is an 
economic argument.” 

Trump, the first property developer to be elected president, has vowed to eliminate the 
so-called Clean Water Rule (also known as the “waters of the U.S. rule”) adopted by the 
outgoing Obama administration. This regulation was crafted to clarify decades of 
uncertainty about which water bodies are subject to development restrictions under the 
Clean Water Act. 

The rule resulted from a lengthy regulatory process triggered by court rulings. Its goal is 
to protect surface water expanses – marshes, wetlands, floodplains and small streams 
– that act as natural filters and conduits for drinking-water sources. 

Lubell said eliminating the rule would not be simple; it would require a new rulemaking 
process that would likely take years. Simply suspending it would mean the regulations 
reverted to their prior state, which were a source of frustration because they 
were vague. 

“He doesn’t realize what it takes to change a regulation or rule,” Lubell said. “You can’t 
just go and magic-wand everything, which he apparently thinks is possible.” 

One water arena where Trump’s team may have a lot of influence is dams. The new 
water infrastructure bill approved by Congress in December gives certain cabinet 
secretaries unprecedented powers to enlarge existing dams and build new ones. 

02-15-17 BOARD Agenda Item 12.E 

Page 37 of 58

https://www.epa.gov/drinkingwatersrf
http://peternavarro.com/sitebuildercontent/sitebuilderfiles/infrastructurereport.pdf


The normal path to federal dam building involves a thorough environmental review by a 
federal agency such as the Bureau of Reclamation. Then the project is vetted by a 
congressional authorizing committee, such as the House Natural Resources 
Committee, which determines if the project is a wise investment of public dollars and a 
worthy environmental risk. 

These practices were pushed through a generation ago by then-president Ronald 
Reagan to rein in pork-barrel spending. 

The new legislation, however, allows the interior secretary single-handedly to approve 
new dams without congressional authorization. The secretary can also rely on 
environmental reviews done by a third party. 

It also grants the army secretary powers to enlarge Army Corps of Engineers dams for 
water storage in cases where they now mainly provide flood control. 

The bill allocates $335 million for new reclamation dam projects. That is not enough to 
fund even one new dam, but it could jump-start a number of projects with the 
assumption that more federal money will be allocated later. 

Therein lies the problem, says Ronald Stork, a senior policy adviser at Friends of the 
River. The existing approval process was created to ensure a reservoir proposal is 
based on reliable cost estimates and avoids unforeseen obstacles that could halt 
construction – such as insufficient water to fill it. 

That is a concern with projects like the proposed Temperance Flat dam on California’s 
San Joaquin River. The California Water Resources Control Board, which allocates 
water rights, has already determined the river is “fully appropriated” – meaning it has no 
water left for new storage projects. 

“The rules have been set up to make sure we don’t have circumstances where these 
half-baked projects get authorization,” said Stork, who has monitored federal water 
projects for decades. As a result, he said, “the administration is likely to not be a 
gatekeeper any more.” 

Republican congressman Ryan Zinke, shown campaigning in Columbia Falls, Mont., in 
2014, is Donald Trump’s choice to lead the Interior Department, an agency with broad 
responsibility over water issues, endangered species and public lands. Zinke has acted 
as a congressman to shortcut environmental regulations. (Brenda Ahearn via 
Associated Press) 

02-15-17 BOARD Agenda Item 12.E 

Page 38 of 58

https://www.epa.gov/newsreleases/clean-water-rule-protects-streams-and-wetlands-critical-public-health-communities-and
https://www.whitehouse.gov/the-press-office/2016/12/16/statement-president-water-infrastructure-improvements-nation-wiin-act


 

Trump’s nominee for interior secretary is Montana congressman Ryan Zinke, a 
Republican who has already shown a desire to shortcut regulations for new 
water projects. 

Zinke supported a controversial bill by Rep. David Valadao (R-Hanford) that would have 
amended the Endangered Species Act to free up water supplies in California. It would 
also have erased a Bureau of Land Management (BLM) finding that the San Joaquin 
River canyon to be dammed by Temperance Flat is eligible for federal Wild and Scenic 
River status. 

Valadao recently introduced a new version of the bill, no doubt hoping it will face better 
odds in the new Republican-controlled Congress. 

approved by Congress in April. 

Zinke also sponsored bills in 2015 requiring the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission 
to extend licenses for hydro-power development at two existing Montana dams. The 
licenses expired because the projects either had insufficient funding or no power lines 
existed to serve them. The bills became law when they were tacked on to the Energy 
Policy Modernization Act, 

As interior secretary, Zinke will be in charge of both the Bureau of Reclamation and the 
BLM, as well as the U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service, the federal agency that protects 
freshwater and terrestrial endangered species. 

In 2015, Zinke received a 3 percent rating from the League of Conservation Voters for 
his actions on environment-related legislation in the House. He supported bills to 
weaken the Clean Water Act, eliminate stream buffers at surface mining projects and 
allow large logging projects on federal land to skip environmental reviews. 

Trump’s appointments to a slightly more obscure agency, the Federal Energy 
Regulatory Commission (FERC), have received little attention but could have lasting 
impacts. Within months of inauguration, Trump will be able to seat a new majority on the 
commission, as well as a new chairman. 

The FERC issues federal licenses for hydro-power dams, typically with 50-year terms. 
Many of the licenses for large dams in the West are now coming due for renewal. In 
California, for instance, there are 22 hydro-power relicensings pending and another 18 
expected to come forward in the next four years. 

A 1986 law required the FERC to give equal consideration to energy and environmental 
issues. It also required it to seek recommendations from federal natural resources 
agencies during dam relicensing. 

As a result, in many recent proceedings it compelled dam owners to install fish ladders 
for the first time and increase water releases for aquatic habitat and recreation. 

But Stork said the federal agencies under Trump could stop making those 
recommendations, and the new FERC commissioners could place less value on them. 

“There is a probability that the resources agencies … are going to be essentially asked 
to stand down on their environmental mission for the duration of this administration,” 
said Stork. “They don’t have to change the law to do that. They just have to stop 
enforcing the law or, basically, reinterpret their mission.” 

That would be a big setback for river environments affected by dams. But it would save 
dam owners billions of dollars and lots of red tape. 

02-15-17 BOARD Agenda Item 12.E 

Page 39 of 58



Some states have their own rigorous environmental laws that may help take the sting 
out of any changes in federal policy. California, for instance, has its own clean water 
law, known as the Porter-Cologne Act, and its own Endangered Species Act, both of 
which are more rigorous than federal law. So it might be able to avoid backsliding on 
some environmental reforms. 

“I don’t think they can drive it in that direction in California, because we’re a blue state 
with a healthy Democrat-controlled legislature and a governor that holds environmental 
values pretty strongly,” said Tim Quinn, executive director of the Association of 
California Water Agencies. “We don’t want to see those regulations go away at all.” 

The ACWA represents 430 public agencies – urban and rural – responsible for 90 
percent of the water supplied to California’s farms and cities. 

Quinn notes that Trump was elected, in part, by exploiting the issues that divide rural 
and urban voters. One of those, he said, is water, which makes it an issue that 
California and other Western states can use to connect with the Trump administration. 

“In California, the rural-urban split is not entirely about water, but water is a huge factor 
in that,” said Quinn. “If we offer up ways to heal those wounds around one of the issues 
that divides us, I choose to believe we can get them interested.” 

About the Author 

Matt Weiser 

Matt Weiser is a contributing editor at Water Deeply. Contact him at 
matt@newsdeeply.org or via Twitter at @matt_weiser. 

Never miss an update. 

Sign up for our newsletter to receive weekly updates, special reports and featured 
insights as we cover one of the most critical issues of our time. 

 

02-15-17 BOARD Agenda Item 12.E 

Page 40 of 58

https://www.newsdeeply.com/water/contributor/matt-weiser
mailto:matt@newsdeeply.org
https://twitter.com/matt_weiser


Why Water Regulations Are Spurring Action on 
Tackling Homelessness 

The social and environmental problems that result from 
homeless encampments in the Bay Area are being 
addressed by a surprising regulation – cleaning 
up stormwater. 
Written byRobin Meadows  Published onσ Jan. 19, 2017 Read time Approx. 7 minutes  

A woman 
balances herself as she crosses a creek in the Jungle, a homeless encampment in San Jose, Calif., in March 2014. Eventually, environmental 

and social concerns prompt homeless encampments to be cleaned out or cleaned 
up.Marcio Jose Sanchez, AP  

California has nearly one quarter of the nation’s homeless people – the most of any state 
by far – and thousands of them live in the Bay Area. Many are in outdoor encampments 
that lack basic services most people take for granted, including clean water, sewer 
hookups and garbage collection. Human waste and the pathogens in it are untreated, 
and refuse piles up and escapes. 

And, out of all the social and environmental costs of homelessness, the trash that blows 
from encampments into waterways may help spur a solution to this problem in the Bay 

02-15-17 BOARD Agenda Item 12.E 

Page 41 of 58

https://www.newsdeeply.com/water/contributor/robin-meadows


Area. Under a new resolution by the San Francisco Bay Regional Water Quality Control 
Board, trash from homeless encampments now falls under the stormwater permit that 
requires Bay Area cities and counties to get storm drains virtually trash-free by 2022. 

“I was personally shocked that the homeless problem was going to be addressed through 
the stormwater program – that this was the strongest regulatory driver,” says Brett 
Calhoun, a Santa Clara Valley Water District (SCVWD) water quality specialist. 

Bay Area efforts to keep trash out of storm drains, and so out of streams and the Bay, 
began in 2009. However, cities soon recognized that homeless encampments are a 
major source of trash in waterways. “Creeks have become a haven for homeless people 
to hide from society in general,” says Tom Mumley of the regional water board. “If you 
pick a stream adjacent to an urban area, you’re generally going to find an 
encampment there.” 

But it probably won’t be obvious. Take the stretch of Coyote Creek that winds along 
Wool Creek Drive in the City of San Jose. From the curb, it looks like a nature reserve. 
It’s thick with oaks, sycamores and willows, and birds sing high above. But a single step 
into the ribbon of trees is all it takes to see what they hide: a homeless encampment. 
Rough stairs cut into the ground, leading to a tent site carved into the stream bank, 
resembling a small cave. The earthen wall provides shelter from the elements and hides 
the site from view of the elementary school grounds across the street. 

The land slopes steeply down to the creek, and a sycamore stands between the tent site 
and the slope. While this makes the site feel more secure, the tree’s unseasonably brown 
leaves say it’s dead or dying. The understory plants, which shelter salamanders and 
other ground-dwelling animals, are gone. And the stream bank is badly eroded. One 
good rain will wash loose soil down the slope and into the creek, where it will clog and 
bind gravel like cement. Steelhead need loose gravel for laying eggs as well as for 
overwintering fry habitat. 

This encampment is vacant, except for the eye-popping amount of trash left behind. 
Layer upon layer of food containers, cardboard boxes, fabric, plastic bags and refuse too 
matted and weathered to recognize. The stream bank is littered all the way down to the 
water, so that heavy rain will also wash plenty of trash into the creek. 

Due to a combination of open waterways and sizable homeless populations, streamside 
encampments are particularly common in Contra Costa County, Oakland and San Jose, 
and all three municipalities are addressing the issue. Contra Costa County cleans up 
encampments in flood control channels along streams, for example, while Oakland 
closes more than 100 encampments per year and prioritizes those within 250ft (75m) of 
waterways. So far, however, only San Jose is participating in a formal plan to clean up 
trash from homeless encampments under the stormwater permit’s new provision, along 
with partners including the Santa Clara Valley Water District (SCVWD) and Santa 
Clara County. 

02-15-17 BOARD Agenda Item 12.E 

Page 42 of 58



The San Jose area also has the largest homeless population of the three municipalities. 
According to the Annual Homeless Assessment Report to Congress, in 2015 Santa Clara 
County was number eight nationwide for homelessness – 6,556 people lacked housing 
during the cold of winter – and number three for chronic homelessness. Most of the 
county’s homeless live in San Jose, where the relentless rise in rent drives people out of 
their homes, according to a 2014 report by the San Francisco Center for 
Economic Development. 

 

A homeless tent is seen on the banks of Coyote Creek on Feb. 28, 2014, in San Jose, 
Calif. (Marcio Jose Sanchez, AP) 

The two waterways that meander through the heart of San Jose – Coyote Creek and the 
Guadalupe River – are a haven for the homeless. “The city has a small urban core that’s 
bookended by riparian corridors, which let people stay out of sight,” says Ray Bramson, 
who manages the San Jose Housing Department’s Homelessness Response Team. He 
has worked to help the homeless since participating in AmeriCorps in North Carolina 
right out of college: “People were living on the streets – I saw a terrible need.” 
The two waterways that meander through the heart of San Jose – Coyote Creek and the 
Guadalupe River – are a haven for the homeless. “The city has a small urban core that’s 
bookended by riparian corridors, which let people stay out of sight,” says Ray Bramson, 
who manages the San Jose Housing Department’s Homelessness Response Team. He 
has worked to help the homeless since participating in AmeriCorps in North Carolina 
right out of college: “People were living on the streets – I saw a terrible need.” 
The two waterways that meander through the heart of San Jose – Coyote Creek and the 
Guadalupe River – are a haven for the homeless. “The city has a small urban core that’s 
bookended by riparian corridors, which let people stay out of sight,” says Ray Bramson, 
who manages the San Jose Housing Department’s Homelessness Response Team. He 
has worked to help the homeless since participating in AmeriCorps in North Carolina 
right out of college: “People were living on the streets – I saw a terrible need.” 

02-15-17 BOARD Agenda Item 12.E 

Page 43 of 58



Historically, when the city cleaned up encampments along creeks, people moved right 
back in. “Just going in and picking up garbage doesn’t go to the core of the issue for 
keeping creeks clean,” Calhoun says. “Source control is a better approach.” So officials 
sought a long-lasting solution to encampments. “The question was how to get homeless 
people permanently out of creeks,” Bramson says. 

In 2011, San Jose began testing a possible answer: combining encampment cleanup with 
social services for the people living there, including individualized help, job placement 
and housing. The million-dollar pilot program, funded largely by a grant from the U.S. 
Environmental Protection Agency, took four years and focused on the largest 
encampment in San Jose and, according to news reports, the entire country. 

Dubbed the Jungle and notorious nationwide, this encampment initially had 176 people 
living along a stretch of Coyote Creek that runs between two large parks. Once the 
people were out of the riparian area and into the social services system, it took more 
than two weeks to deal with the mess they left behind. Cleanup crews removed 618 tons 
(560 tonnes) of debris; 2,850 gallons (10,800 liters) of biowaste; 1,200 needles and 315 
shopping carts. The final step was keeping homeless people from moving back in: Park 
rangers, who are police officers, patrol the area to deter entrenched encampments. 
Building on this successful approach, San Jose and its partners established an 
encampment cleanup program under the stormwater permit. It’s a big job. More than 
1,200 people lived along the city’s waterways in 2013. While that was down to fewer 
than 800 last year, it’s “still an enormous number,” says Bramson. Last year workers 
cleaned up 158 encampments along the city’s 140 miles (225km) of waterways. 

Just a mile from the encampment with the cave dug into the streambank, cleanup is 
underway at another encampment along Coyote Creek near Tully Road. It’s flanked by a 
community garden on one side and by a library, elementary school and baseball 
diamond on the other. The streambank is terraced into two levels of tent sites, which 
extend through the trees far along the creek. There are also toilet pits. The air smells 
sour and jumbles of trash are everywhere. Take-out cups, cereal boxes, bread bags, 
sheets, foil packets, wads of paper, tarps and so much more. It’s overwhelming. 
A crew wearing gloves and heavy boots hauls furniture – mattresses, metal bedframes, 
an olive green couch, a black office chair – into a sanitation truck. Paramedics stand by 
in case of injury, needle sticks or exposure to human waste. Park rangers and their 
police vehicles stand by in case of trouble. 
At the far end of the encampment, a man and woman have packed what they can into 
crates but have yet to vacate. Dozens of other people stand in a nearby parking lot, 
surrounded by bicycles, trash bags and shopping carts full of belongings. “They’ll move 
right back in,” Calhoun says. A park ranger says that as the program reaches homeless 
people who want help, encampments can become concentrated with difficult cases. This 
encampment, he adds, is hyperconcentrated with methamphetamine users who have 
refused social services. 

To understand the homeless population better, the Contra Costa County Flood Control 
and Water Conservation District commissioned a 2013 U.C. Berkeley study on 
encampments along waterways. “We wanted to know why people were setting up camps 
in our creeks under bridges,” says hydrologist Mark Boucher. Somewhat surprisingly, 
the study found that privacy rather than water is the main draw. “Usually when they 
don’t bother people, people don’t bother them,” he explains. 

02-15-17 BOARD Agenda Item 12.E 

Page 44 of 58



Another surprise was that the homeless population has several subgroups. “We’d never 
thought of the homeless that way – it was eye-opening even to homeless programs,” says 
Boucher, who serves as a liaison between the flood control district and social services. 
He’s also befriended a homeless man, shepherding him through the steps of 
getting help. 

The subgroups include the newly homeless, who have just lost jobs and homes, and are 
the easiest to find and reintegrate into society. In contrast, old-timers are well-hidden 
and tidy, making them harder to reach. Hardest of all to reach may be veterans, who live 
singly or in pairs and, thanks to their military training, know how to hide in plain sight. 

Besides job loss and skyrocketing housing costs, common causes of homelessness 
include disabilities and substance abuse. The 2015 Homeless Census & Survey found 
that 30 percent of homeless people in Santa Clara County have physical disabilities, 39 
percent have mental illnesses and 38 percent abuse drugs or alcohol. “Homelessness is a 
multifaceted problem and needs a multifaceted solution,” Boucher says. “It takes 
massive collaboration to attack the issue, you have to fill up the holes where the need is.” 
He works with partners including government agencies, nonprofits and the religious 
community. Likewise, it takes massive collaboration for the stormwater management 
community to clean up urban runoff. And curbing litter and pollution in stormwater 
involves regulations and outreach aimed at all people living, working and traveling 
throughout the Bay Area, not just the homeless. 
For all the complexity of the causes, however, homeless people obviously have 
something simple in common: They need homes. Demand far outweighs available 
resources but new funding is in the works. A state initiative called “No Place Like Home” 
was signed into law in July and will provide $2 billion for housing for people who are 
chronically homeless due to mental illness. And Bay Area voters authorized several 
measures in November that will house the homeless. A sales tax will provide $1.2 billion 
for homeless housing and services in San Francisco, and bonds will provide $580 and 
$950 million, respectively, for affordable housing in Alameda and Santa Clara counties. 

Last year’s Homeless Census & Survey also found that 93 percent of respondents in 
Santa Clara County want permanent housing. “We need to help these people live a better 
life than along creeks,” says Calhoun. “It’s not where they want to be either.” 

This story first appeared on Estuary News. Read the original here

 

02-15-17 BOARD Agenda Item 12.E 

Page 45 of 58



Controller: California water district misspending "shocking" 

Posted: Jan 31, 2017 11:36 AM PST <em class="wnDate">Tuesday, January 31, 2017 2:36 PM EST</em>Updated: Jan 31, 2017 11:36 AM 
PST <em class="wnDate">Tuesday, January 31, 2017 2:36 PM EST</em>  

By SCOTT SMITH 
Associated Press  

FRESNO, Calif. (AP) - State officials accuse a central California irrigation district of misspending, giving employees 
free housing, interest-free loans and concert tickets. 

State Controller Betty Yee on Tuesday announced the findings of a probe into the Panoche Water District. Based in 
Firebaugh, California it delivers irrigation water to farmers in Merced and Fresno counties. 

Yee called the lack of oversight shocking and potentially illegal. 

Yee says the district gave $86,000 in interest-free loans to its employees and six employees received free housing; it 
provided 50 cars to employees. 

Yes says employees used district credit cards to buy Raiders and Oakland A's tickets and attend a Katy Perry 
concert. 

Yee says she's considering what action to take to hold officials accountable. 

Panoche officials didn't immediately respond to a request for comment by The Associated Press. 

Copyright 2017 The Associated Press. All rights reserved. This material may not be published, broadcast, rewritten or 
redistributed. 

 

02-15-17 BOARD Agenda Item 12.E 

Page 46 of 58



Tahoe region had shovel-busting snow month 
Benjamin Spillman , bspillman@rgj.com Published 7:06 p.m. PT Feb. 1, 2017 | Updated 15 
hours ago 

Lake Tahoe-area residents who shoveled their own walks in January have something to boast 
about. 
They’re the most prolific Tahoe snow-shovelers in generations. 

Nearly an entire winter’s worth of snow fell on the region during the first three weeks of January, 
burying buildings and ensuring full reservoirs and steady stream flows in coming months. 

The region’s snowpack jumped from 62 percent of normal at the beginning of the month to 191 
percent by the end. 

In terms of precipitation it was the biggest January in the Tahoe, Truckee and Carson river basins 
since at least 1981, when the SNOTEL measuring system went into place. 
And in Tahoe City, Calif., January was among the highest-precipitation months recorded since 
1910. 

“What Tahoe experienced in January was historic in many, many ways,” said hydrologist Jeff 
Anderson, who tracks snowpack for the Nevada Natural Resources Conservation Service. “No 
one else has experienced what they did, back maybe 100 years.” 
It was a similar story at Slide Mountain, where a SNOTEL station on the grounds of Mt. Rose 
Ski Tahoe tracks snowfall. 

On Wednesday there was 150 inches of snow depth and the water content measured nearly 50 
inches. 

That’s 212 percent of the median for Feb. 1 and 134 percent of normal for even April 1, which 
means there is already more snow on the ground than usually falls all winter. 

All told for the month, 295 inches of snow, which adds up to more than 24 feet, fell on the site. 

The robust snowpack has ramifications for the region’s drought, as well. According to the U.S. 
Drought Monitor only 6 percent of Nevada is in drought and 23 percent is abnormally dry. 

 

02-15-17 BOARD Agenda Item 12.E 

Page 47 of 58

http://www.rgj.com/staff/18351/benjamin-spillman/


Prolonged snow nourishes Northern Nevada, Lake Tahoe 

 

MOLLY MOSER/Nevada Appeal |

 

Hydrologists of USDA Natural Resources Conservation Service measure snowpack score at Mount Rose summit on 

Wednesday. 

 

MOLLY MOSER/Nevada Appeal |

 

Hydrologist Jeff Anderson of NRCS Nevada scales a measuring pole full of snow at Mount Rose summit on Wednesday. 

 

MT. ROSE SUMMIT — The series of freak snowstorms that occurred in January is 

described as unforgettable, as it was the most historic weather month in 36 years.  

According to measurements taken by the Nevada Irrigation District, snowpack sits at 169 

percent of average in the mountains that supply NID according to an NID release. 

And although NID expects sufficient water supplies this year, the State Water Resources 

Control Board emergency drought regulations have not been lifted and statewide water use 

restrictions remain in effect. 

“This has obviously been a very wet start to winter,” said NID Water Resources Supt. Sue 

Sindt. “The precipitation total at Bowman has already exceeded the annual total and we are 

only in the first part of February and more storms are in the forecast.” 

The storms guided Northern California and Nevada out of drought conditions, and Lake 

Tahoe may have a chance for full capacity, said a hydrologist for the United States 

Department of Agriculture Natural Resources Conservation Service at Mount Rose on 

Wednesday.  

02-15-17 BOARD Agenda Item 12.E 

Page 48 of 58

http://www.theunion.com/wp-content/uploads/2017/02/SnowPack-NAP-020217-1.jpg
http://www.theunion.com/wp-content/uploads/2017/02/SnowPack-NAP-020217-1.jpg
http://www.theunion.com/wp-content/uploads/2017/02/SnowPack-NAP-020217-1-1.jpg
http://www.theunion.com/wp-content/uploads/2017/02/SnowPack-NAP-020217-1-1.jpg
http://www.theunion.com/wp-content/uploads/2017/02/SnowPack-NAP-020217-1-2.jpg
http://www.theunion.com/wp-content/uploads/2017/02/SnowPack-NAP-020217-1.jpg
http://www.theunion.com/wp-content/uploads/2017/02/SnowPack-NAP-020217-1-1.jpg


“January 2017 is something we’ll be talking about for years to come,” said Jeff Anderson. 

“We received three to four times of the amount of snowfall this month as we would typically 

get in a normal year.” 

That’s basically a whole winter’s worth of snowfall. Think of it as three Januarys back-to-

back-to-back.  

Through depths of snow, hydrologists measured the snowpack core at the summit of Mount 

Rose.  

The sensor reported 150 inches of snow depth and 49.4 inches of water content. In other 

terms, that’s more than four feet of water in the snowpack. That’s twice as much snow than 

what the area would typically have in a normal year, Anderson said, and that’s not including 

a dry year.  

The normal peak amount for April 1 is at 134 percent.  

Obviously, this is great news for Lake Tahoe. Thanks to the storms, the lake stored 2.6 feet 

of water, said Chad Blanchard of the Truckee-Carson Federal Water Master’s Office.  

“This is more than the typical, annual rise for the year,” Blanchard said. “We can include the 

water sitting in the snow and what we’ll receive from upcoming storms. It’s a unique type of 

year as there’s a chance it will fill up at its natural rim.”  

Snowpack at Lake Tahoe Basin tripled. It went from 62 percent to 191 percent in a month’s 

period, which is sixth best since the mid-1950s.  

It’s possible this could make up for the loss during the drought. The Sierra missed about a 

year and a half of precipitation, about 74 inches at Mount Rose. The average is 55 inches.  

But based on the precipitation the area already has, Anderson said we have a full year’s 

worth of water.  

With more forecasts of winter storms making its way, Blanchard said to embrace it instead 

of dreading it.  

“There’s always a threat when we have a large rainstorm and high snow levels,” he said. 

“It’s a risk with the extremely wet soil conditions and low elevation. Although it increases the 

threat, it’s great for the water supply.”  

 

02-15-17 BOARD Agenda Item 12.E 

Page 49 of 58



2016 was the warmest-ever year; what does it mean for Lake 
Tahoe? 

 

File photo | 

Lake Tahoe's water temperature has risen over the years. 

 

Courtesy NOAA | 

This graph shows NOAAâ��s land-ocean temperature index, 1880 to present, showing reising temperatures over the 
years. The solid black line is the g... 

More Online  View the report from NOAA here: https://www.ncdc.noaa.gov/sotc/summary-info/global/201612  

Check out NASA’s coverage here: https://www.nasa.gov/feature/goddard/2016/climate-trends-continue-to-break-
records  

Check out NASA’s coverage here: https://www.nasa.gov/feature/goddard/2016/climate-trends-continue-to-break-
records  

Learn about the UC Davis Tahoe Environmental Research Center, find out more about what they do and view their 
calendar of upcoming events here: http://terc.ucdavis.edu/  
The 2016 State of the Lake report is located here: http://terc.ucdavis.edu/stateofthelake/sotl-reports/2016/07-
meteorology.pdf  

Top scientists announced in January that last year was the hottest year on record — an 
announcement they’ve made three years in a row, with 2014, 2015 and now 2016 each 
being declared warmer than the previous year. 

02-15-17 BOARD Agenda Item 12.E 

Page 50 of 58

http://www.nevadaappeal.com/wp-content/uploads/2017/02/LAkeClarity-SSU-031414.jpg�
http://www.nevadaappeal.com/wp-content/uploads/2017/02/LAkeClarity-SSU-031414.jpg�
http://www.nevadaappeal.com/wp-content/uploads/2017/02/LAkeClarity-SSU-031414-1.jpg�
http://www.nevadaappeal.com/wp-content/uploads/2017/02/LAkeClarity-SSU-031414-1.jpg�
http://www.nevadaappeal.com/news/local/2016-was-the-warmest-ever-year-what-does-it-mean-for-lake-tahoe/#single-carousel�
http://www.nevadaappeal.com/news/local/2016-was-the-warmest-ever-year-what-does-it-mean-for-lake-tahoe/#single-carousel�
https://www.ncdc.noaa.gov/sotc/summary-info/global/201612�
http://www.nevadaappeal.com/wp-content/uploads/2017/02/LAkeClarity-SSU-031414.jpg�
http://www.nevadaappeal.com/wp-content/uploads/2017/02/LAkeClarity-SSU-031414-1.jpg�


That news isn’t particularly shocking to those living in the Sierra who have witnessed first-
hand the effects of a multi-year drought on tree mortality  and snowfall. 

Even the lake is getting warmer, according to researchers at the University of California, 
Davis, Tahoe Environmental Research Center. As the Sun reported last August after a UC 
Davis TERC presentation, climate change is having a clear impact on Lake Tahoe. 

But since the region just had multiple feet of snow dumped on it in January, does that mean 
2017 could be the year things go back to normal? 

It’s complicated, but the short answer is probably not, scientists say. 

Data from the National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration and the National 
Aeronautics and Space Administration shows the average global temperature of the Earth 
was higher in 2016 than it has been since the data first started being recorded in 1880. 

In fact, according to NOAA, the average temperature across global land and ocean surfaces 
in 2016 was 1.69 degrees Fahrenheit (0.94 Celsius) above the 20th century average. 

And while data from one year means very little, the trend of increasing temperatures over 
recent years tells a very different tale. 2014 and 2015 were also record-breaking years in 
terms of high global temperatures. 2009 was yet another hot year, but it doesn’t end there. 

According to data from NASA, the 10 warmest years on record all have occurred since 2000 
— and the record goes back 136 years. 

“With climate change in general, the principle is that you’re not drawing inferences on any 
given year — you’re drawing inferences on trends,” said UC Davis limnologist Dr. Steve 
Sadro, who studies lakes in the Sierra. 

Sadro said that while he is only beginning to focus on the Tahoe area, there’s more 
variation in weather patterns in the Sierra because of its elevation. What we do know, he 
said, is that we’re moving toward more extremes with regard to climate variability in the 
Sierra. 
Sadro’s focus is how climate change is affecting lakes like Tahoe. Lakes can be affected by 
a whole host of variables, including how much snowfall there is in a given year, ice 
coverage, exposure to solar radiation and whether or not the lake is fed by a groundwater 
source, just to name a few. 

He said that climate change is affecting temperature and precipitation, but just how those 
factors will change in the Sierra isn’t clear since there’s so much variability in mountain 
environments. 

Therefore, one month of heavy snowfall, or even one year, does not mean there will 
continue to be heavy snowfall. 

“The frequency of drought years is going up and the severity of drought is increasing,” 
Sadro said. “Does that mean we’re never going to have wet years? No.” 

02-15-17 BOARD Agenda Item 12.E 

Page 51 of 58

https://www.nasa.gov/feature/goddard/2016/climate-trends-continue-to-break-records�
https://www.nasa.gov/feature/goddard/2016/climate-trends-continue-to-break-records�
http://terc.ucdavis.edu/�
http://terc.ucdavis.edu/stateofthelake/sotl-reports/2016/07-meteorology.pdf�
http://terc.ucdavis.edu/stateofthelake/sotl-reports/2016/07-meteorology.pdf�
http://www.sierrasun.com/news/environment/report-36-million-more-california-trees-dead-due-to-drought/�
http://www.sierrasun.com/news/environment/scientists-unclear-with-long-term-algae-impacts-to-lake-tahoe/�
https://www.nasa.gov/feature/goddard/2016/climate-trends-continue-to-break-records�
https://www.nasa.gov/feature/goddard/2016/climate-trends-continue-to-break-records�
http://climate.nasa.gov/vital-signs/global-temperature/�


The 2016 State of the Lake report issued by TERC shows that since 1910, since local 
records were kept, the number of days with below-freezing air temperatures has declined. 

There have been years with many days of below-freezing temperatures, but the trend over 
time shows that the average number has declined by about 30 days since 1910. The report 
also shows average monthly temperatures have been increasingly warmer locally, which is 
consistent with the finding that global temperatures continue to rise. 

As for local snow, which is what most of us are here for, it’s important to remember we’ve 
seen strong winters in the past, and they aren’t not necessarily indicative of what’s to come.  

The USDA Monthly Snow Data record shows that on Jan. 1 of this year, Squaw Valley’s 
Gold Coast SNOTEL site had 36 inches of snow. On the same date in 2011, 103 inches of 
snow were recorded, but what followed was a drought that the California Department of 
Water Resources called “the driest consecutive three-year period on record in terms of 
statewide precipitation.” 

As for the trend, TERC’s State of the Lake report shows that despite a wide range of 
variation since 1910, the percent of precipitation that falls on the Tahoe-area is down. 

“Snow has declined as a fraction of total precipitation, from an average of 51 percent in 
1910 to 33 percent,” according to the report. 

Dr. Steve Sadro will give a community presentation on climate change and lake 
temperature in the Sierra Nevada on Feb. 9 at the UC Davis TERC campus at 921 Country 
Club Dr., Incline Village, Nev. The presentation is from 5:30-7 p.m. There is a suggested 
donation of $5. 

Amanda Rhoades is a news, environment and business reporter for the Sierra Sun. She 
can be reached at arhoades@sierrasun.com, 530-550-2653 or @akrhoades. 

 

02-15-17 BOARD Agenda Item 12.E 

Page 52 of 58

http://terc.ucdavis.edu/stateofthelake/sotl-reports/2016/07-meteorology.pdf�
https://wcc.sc.egov.usda.gov/reportGenerator/view/customWaterYearGroupByMonthReport/monthly/start_of_period/784:CA:SNTL%7Cid=%22%22%7Cname/-75,0:M%7C1,M%7C2,M%7C3,M%7C4,M%7C5,M%7C6/WTEQ::collectionDate,SNWD::value,WTEQ::value?fitToScreen=false�
http://www.water.ca.gov/waterconditions/docs/California_Signficant_Droughts_2015_small.pdf�
http://www.water.ca.gov/waterconditions/docs/California_Signficant_Droughts_2015_small.pdf�
http://terc.ucdavis.edu/events�


DIRECTIONS 2017: ENGINES OF CHANGE  

HIGH-SPEED GROWTH  
URBAN REDEVELOPMENT  &  

Speakers at Chamber event highlight bright indicators for the future of 
Reno  

MIKE HIGDON MHIGDON@RGJ.COM

 

This year’s Chamber event, called Directions 2017: Engines of Change, painted a 
much brighter picture of Northern Nevada’s economic future compared to last year. 
Speakers described a region that has made major strides in development and growth 
since the recession and even since 2015, most notably transforming from the state 
with the highest unemployment to the second fastest growing job market in the 
country. 

“I said we couldn’t have 4 percent job growth year over year,” said Mike Kazmierski, 
CEO of the Economic Development Authority of Western Nevada. “But it’s happening 
and it’s being projected that we’ll see more. Our historic job growth was 2 percent. 
This is not business as usual.” 

Kazmierski predicted Nevada would be at full employment soon. He also hinted at 
another 3,200 jobs coming from new or relocating companies in the next 18 months 
— thanks to EDAWN. 

Eight speakers presented a diverse set of indicators for the future of Reno: physical 
health, economic growth, small business growth, urban revitalization, civic 
engagement and commerce. 

Several speakers turned the audience of mostly business owners and executives’ 
attention toward workforce training. They said in order to attract and retain talent, the 
state needs to focus its energy on education. 

“We need to increase the number of Nevadans with post-secondary degrees and 
credentials,” said Manny Lamarre, executive director of the Governor’s Office of 
Workforce Innovation. “You need a trained and educated workforce. Employers are 
saying people are showing up to work without a degree. That’s not career ready.” 

Lamarre said his new department in the Governor’s Office of Economic Development 
will present a bill to the Nevada Legislature in hopes of making the Office of 
Workforce Innovation permanent. 

Lt. Gov. Mark Hutchison said this is the perfect time to engage in politics because 
American life is political — everything is affected by an election. 

Without workforce training and improved education, Nevada will continue to see more 
income disparity, said Frederick Steinman, an economic development specialist at the 
university. A focus on talent can close the wage gap in the region, which will in turn 
help people keep up with the rapidly increasing cost of living, according to Steinman 
and Kazmierski. 

Steinman also said Northern Nevada is more interconnected than ever. People 
commute from ex-urban counties to work in urban centers. For example, 74 percent 
of people who live in Carson City work in Carson City, while the rest commute to 
surrounding cities and counties. 

02-15-17 BOARD Agenda Item 12.E 

Page 53 of 58

mailto:MHIGDON@RGJ.COM�


As genXers look toward retirement and boomers settle into it, the consumer base of 
the region will also change, driving more consumption toward health care, Steinman 
said. 

That’s one of the reasons Renown Health and the Desert Research Institute 
partnered with 23andMe to conduct regional DNA testing. 

“Worrying about health insurance keeps people up at night,” said Anthony Slonin, 
CEO of Renown Health. “We have to think differently about community health if we’re 
going to be successful.” 

The 23andMe project, which uses genetic testing to determine ancestry, also helps 
the hospital build a regional database of health indicators. Slonin said he hopes their 
database can help doctors find early indicators for genetic diseases, such as cancer. 

“If we can identify cancer three years earlier, wow, we can really get somewhere,” he 
said. Renown’s goal is to build a database of 100,000 people. 

While Slonin talked about residents’ health, Tom Murphy, senior fellow at the Urban 
Land Institute, reiterated Reno’s need for improved urban health. 

“Cities don’t change or succeed by accident; they succeed or fail by intentionality,” 
Murphy said. 

The city of Reno previously hired Murphy’s team to give recommendations for 
improving the 5.7-mile Virginia Street corridor. 

“It typifies the good, bad and ugly of Reno, doesn’t it,” Murphy asked the crowd. 

He noted that boomers are looking for the same thing as millennials: vibrant, artistic, 
culturally relevant, walkable or bikable urban environments. Millennials in particular, 
are less likely to own a car, preferring other modes of transportation, he said. 

Reno needs to invest in making the corridor into a place where both generations can 
enjoy their evolving predilections, he said. 

At the end, Kazmierski said for Reno to achieve all of these things, it must address its 
affordability problem. He showed the audience the increasing cost of real estate and 
rent, while incomes increase modestly. 

“If you can’t afford a house what do you do? Rent a trailer, sleep on the river or rent 
an apartment,” he said. 

But he is bullish on Reno and in favor of managed growth even at the cost of what 
others consider historic and salvable, such as the motels demolished in downtown. 

“In case you didn’t notice, we’re growing,” he said. “But not everyone likes growth; 
people in line or waiting in traffic aren’t happy with (EDAWN) right now.” 

Similar to many of Kazmierski’s public addresses, he said there’s always more work 
to be done. 

“This is not a bubble. There is no projection in the future and some of the numbers 
are slowing down,” he said. “The best thing you can do is attract talent to the region: 
friends, family, alumni. Reno-Sparks is an opportunity and they need to come here.” 

“We need to increase the number of Nevadans with post-secondary degrees 
and credentials.” 

 

 

02-15-17 BOARD Agenda Item 12.E 

Page 54 of 58



Lake Tahoe Gained 8.7 Billion Gallons Of 
Water In Just 2 Days 

 

Trevor Nace ,   Contributor 
Opinions expressed by Forbes Contributors are their own. 

 

 
Lake Tahoe has gained billions of gallons of water in the recent months (Credit: Wikipedia) 
Lake Tahoe has had a great past few months, receiving 8.7 billion gallons of water in just two 
days. It hasn't stopped there; the lake has been receiving tremendous amounts of water lately to 
fill the lake above its natural rim level. 

The sudden rise in lake level is a result of several winter storms that hit the lake in late 2016 and 
early 2017. The National Weather Service calculated that since Jan 1st of 2017 the lake has 
gained over 40 billion gallons of water. The stormy weather and heavy rains don't appear to be 
slowing down with sequential blizzards hitting the region in almost weekly intervals. 

NOAA calculated that in the two-day span from December 9th through 11th Lake Tahoe gained 
8,690,131,707 gallons of fresh water. The natural rim of Lake Tahoe is 6,223 feet and on 
December 11th the height got up to 6,222.97 feet. 

02-15-17 BOARD Agenda Item 12.E 

Page 55 of 58

http://www.forbes.com/sites/trevornace/�
http://www.forbes.com/sites/trevornace/�


 

Lake Tahoe water level from December 6th through December 13th shows rapid 8.9-billion-
gallon increase (Credit: USGS) 

That's the equivalent of filling 13,158 Olympic size swimming pools. It is early in the winter 
season for Lake Tahoe to gain so much water and a good sign for drought conditions in southern 
California this year. 

Lake Tahoe gained 8.9 billion gallons of water in 2 days (Credit: National Weather Service) 

Last year this time Lake Tahoe's level was 6,222.1 feet, whereas this year the level is 6,225.2, 
over 3 feet higher. With Lake Tahoe's surface area of 191 square miles, adding three feet of 
water amounts to a tremendous addition to the lake's water storage. In fact, the total Lake Tahoe 
volume is estimated at 39 trillion gallons of water. 

Lake Tahoe is the second deepest lake in the United States and is fed by 63 tributaries that drain 
505 square miles known as the Lake Tahoe Watershed. Although approximately half of the water 
entering the lake is from rain or snow falling directly onto the lake surface. The only outlet is the 
Truckee River, but doesn't tell the whole story of water leaving the lake. In fact, some estimates 
point to over 100 billion gallons of water evaporates from the lake every year. This is enhanced 
by the high elevation, low cloud cover, and large surface area of the lake. 

02-15-17 BOARD Agenda Item 12.E 

Page 56 of 58



 

Lake Tahoe water level since December 1st 2016 has risen almost 2.5 feet. (Credit: USGS) 

This is good news for residents of southern California who have witnessed one of the most 
extreme drought seasons in recent memory for the past few years. The Sierra Nevada runoff is at 
its highest level in 22 years. It's going to be a little easier to be a California resident, at least for a 
short while. 

Trevor Nace is a geologist, Forbes contributor, and adventurer. Follow him 
on Twitter @trevornace 

 

02-15-17 BOARD Agenda Item 12.E 

Page 57 of 58

https://twitter.com/trevornace�


 

 

Audit: California water authority mismanaged millions 

Posted: Feb 07, 2017 6:36 AM PST <em class="wnDate">Tuesday, February 7, 2017 9:36 AM EST</em>Updated: Feb 07, 2017 6:36 AM 
PST <em class="wnDate">Tuesday, February 7, 2017 9:36 AM EST</em>  

LOS ANGELES (AP) - An audit finds a wastewater treatment authority that serves a large swath of the high desert 
northeast of Los Angeles mismanaged millions of dollars in federal emergency management funds. 

The Los Angeles Times reports Tuesday (http://lat.ms/2ljF9H6 ) that auditors determined the Victor Valley Water 
Reclamation Authority did not comply with numerous regulations on Federal Emergency Management Agency 
contracts worth nearly $32 million. 

The agency - which serves cities including Victorville, Hesperia and Apple Valley - got the money after major flooding 
six years ago led to a ruptured pipeline. 

A spokesman says officials are disappointed by the report and that the agency had responded in detail to concerns 
raised by auditors. 

The audit was conducted by the Office of Inspector General of the Department of Homeland Security. 

Information from: Los Angeles Times, http://www.latimes.com/ 

Copyright 2017  

 

02-15-17 BOARD Agenda Item 12.E 

Page 58 of 58

http://lat.ms/2ljF9H6�
http://www.latimes.com/�

	__2017.0215-BOD-04-Agenda.Final
	__2017.0215-BOD-05-Draft-01-18-17-Minutes
	__2017.0215-BOD-06-Water-Supply-Update
	__2017.0215-BOD-07-LegislativeUpdate.Report
	_2017.0215-BOD-07.0-LegislativeUpdate.Report
	_2017.0215-BOD-07.1-TMWA-LSC-Bill-Tracking

	__2017.0215-BOD-08-Appointment-To-WRWC
	__2017.0215-BOD-09-Presentation-First-Half-FY2017-Financial-Report
	_2017.0215-BOD-09.0-Presentation-First-Half-FY2017-Financial-Report
	_2017.0215-BOD-09.1-Attch-A1-A4

	__2017.0215-BOD-10-TMWA-Refunding-Bonds-2017
	_2017.0215-BOD-10.0-Refunding-Bonds-2017-Report
	_2017.0215-BOD-10.1-TMWA-Bond-Refund-ResolutionNo.248
	Blank Page

	__2017.0215-BOD-11-TMWA-Ombudsman-Contract
	_2017.0215-BOD-11.0-New-Ombudsman-Report
	_2017.0215-BOD-11.1-Ombudsman-Contract

	__2017.0215-BOD-12.0-General-Managers-Report
	_2017.0215-BOD-12.0-GM-Report-cover
	_2017.0215-BOD-12.1-GM-Attachment
	2017.0215-BOD-12.1-GM-SAC-Governing-Rules-Amended
	2017.0215-BOD-12.1-GM-SAC-Governing-Rules-Red-Lined

	_2017.0215-BOD-12.A-GM-Operations.Report
	_2017.0215-BOD-12.B-GM-CustomerService.Report
	_2017.0215-BOD-12.C-GM-Web-Report
	_2017.0215-BOD-12.D-GM-Water-Rights.Report

	__2017.0215-BOD-12.E-Press-Clips
	2017.0215-Press-Clippings Cover
	__2017.0215-BOD-13.E-Press-Clips
	__2017.0215-BOD-13.E-Press-Clips
	01-09-17_kunr_washoe-updates-on-bridges-roads-and-more
	Washoe Updates On Bridges, Roads, Weather And More

	01-09-17_rgj_Storms-deliver-big-boost-in-water-supply-with-more-to-come
	Storms deliver big boost in water supply with more to come

	01-10-167_rgj_MWA-Says-Water-is-Safe-to-Drink
	TMWA Says Water is Safe to Drink

	01-10-17_kolo_Truckee-Meadows-Water-Authority-says-drinking-water-is-safe
	Truckee Meadows Water Authority says drinking water is safe

	01-10-17_thisisrneo_Recovery-and-Clean-Up-After-flooding
	Recovery and Clean-Up Face Parts of Northern Nevada After Flooding

	01-11-17_ktvn_Sutcliffe-Without-Running-Water
	Sutcliffe Without Running Water

	01-11-17_rgj_Water master elated by storms
	01-13-16_KTVN_Creating-Nature-from-Our-Flood-Waters
	Creating Nature from Our Flood Waters

	01-13-17_rgj_Renos-irrigation-ditches-fail-during-floods-damaging-homes
	Reno's irrigation ditches fail during floods, damaging homes

	01-15-17_rgj_Anatomy-of-a-Flood
	Anatomy of a flood: How a a three-day flood receded in Reno-Sparks

	01-16-17_RGJ_Climate-fight-takes-center-stage-at-Lake-Tahoe
	Climate fight takes center stage at Lake Tahoe
	Lakeside climate conference exposes political fault lines over scientific warnings


	01-17-16_KTVN_A-Check-Up-for-the-Truckee-River-USGS
	A Check Up for the Truckee River

	01-17-17_fox11_Boil-water-order-issued-for-Sutcliffe
	Boil water order issued for Sutcliffe community near Pyramid Lake

	01-18-17_NNBW_Special-to-NNBW-TMWA-Debuts-New-Website-from-Noble-Studios
	Special to NNBW:
	From water to web: TMWA debuts new website from Noble Studios

	01-18-17_thisisreno_Normal-River-Flow-Expected-Next-Two-Years-Thanks-to-Recent-Precipitation
	Normal River Flow Expected Next Two Years Thanks to Recent Precipitation

	01-20-17_KXRIFOX_Four Nevada Watrsheds Reieve Funding
	01-20-17_nnbw_US Geomatics Midtown location
	01-25-17_rgj_Whats-Ahead-for-Tahoe-Pyramid-Bikeway
	What's ahead for the Tahoe Pyramid Bikeway

	01-26-17_nvappeal_Where-to-put-the-water
	Where to put the water?

	01-29-17_RGJ_Community-members-tell-us-the-priorities
	01-31-17_water-deepely_New-calif.-Regulations
	California Water Diverters Scramble to Satisfy New Reporting Rules
	Water Deeply: Can you sum up these rules for us?
	Water Deeply: Why are these new rules needed?
	Water Deeply: Will these regulations encourage conservation?
	Water Deeply: Are these rules a hardship for water diverters?
	Water Deeply: How much does it cost to comply?
	Water Deeply: What else are you hearing from clients?
	Water Deeply: Given all this effort, do you feel this information will be useful to the state?


	01-31-17_water-deeply_Trump-Regulations
	Wild Ride Awaits for Water Issues Under Trump
	About the Author
	Matt Weiser
	Never miss an update.



	01-31-Water-Deeply_Why-Water-Regulations-Are-Spurring-Action-on-Tackling-Homelessness
	Why Water Regulations Are Spurring Action on Tackling Homelessness

	02-01-17_ap_Controller-California-water-district-misspending-shocking
	Controller: California water district misspending "shocking"

	02-01-17_rgj_Tahoe-Region-Had-Shovel-Busting-Snow-Month
	Tahoe region had shovel-busting snow month

	02-02-17_nv-appeal_Prolonged-snow-nourishes-Northern-Nevada
	Prolonged snow nourishes Northern Nevada, Lake Tahoe

	02-02-17_sierrasun_2016-was-the-warmest-ever-year
	2016 was the warmest-ever year; what does it mean for Lake Tahoe?

	02-05-17_rgj_DIRECTIONS-2017

	02-07-17_Forbes_Lake-Tahoe-Gained-8.7-Billion-Gallons-Of-Water-In-Just-2-Days
	Lake Tahoe Gained 8.7 Billion Gallons Of Water In Just 2 Days

	02-07017_AP_Audit-Calif-Water-Authority-Mismanaged-Millions
	Audit: California water authority mismanaged millions






